
Eczacıbaşı Investment Holding Co.

Annual Report
2020



 

Eczacıbaşı Holding Chairman 
Bülent Eczacıbaşı began his 
professional career in 1974, and 
held various positions in Eczacıbaşı 
Group companies. He also served 
in the management of a number 
of prominent business associations, 
including TÜSİAD, the Turkish 
Industry and Business Association, 
where he was Chairman of the 
Board (1991- 1993) and Chairman of 
the High Advisory Council 
(1997-2001); and the Turkish 
Pharmaceuticals Manufacturers’ 
Association (İEİS), where he 
was Chairman of the Board 
(2000-2008). He serves as 
chairman of several Eczacıbaşı 
Group companies. Bülent 
Eczacıbaşı continues to serve 
both TÜSİAD and İEİS as 
Honorary Chairman. He is also 
an Honorary Member of both the 
Foreign Economic Relations Board 
(DEİK) and Turkish Enterprise and 
Business Confederation 
(TÜRKONFED), and a member 
of the High Advisory Council of 
the Aegean Industry and 
Business Association (ESİAD).

Bülent Eczacıbaşı is also on the 
boards of various civic organizations. 
He is Chairman of the Board of 
Trustees of the Istanbul Modern 
Art Foundation, Chairman of the 
Board of Directors of the Istanbul 
Foundation for Culture and Arts 
(IKSV), and a member of the 
High Advisory Board of the 
Turkish Economic and Social 
Studies Foundation (TESEV), 
which he previously served as 
the Founding Chairman (1993-1997).

Bülent Eczacıbaşı graduated 
from the Department of Chemistry 
of the Imperial College of Science 
and Technology, London, and 
obtained his master’s degree in 
chemical engineering from the 
Massachusetts Institute of 
Technology. He has received 
French and Italian awards of 
merit, respectively the “Chevalier 
dans l'Ordre National de la 
Légion d'Honneur” and 
“Commendatore dell'Ordine 
della Stella d'Italia”. He is the 
author of "A Rip in the Sea: New 
Responsibilities for Business" (2020), 
a book about his experiences in 
business and the new roles and 
responsibilities of business leaders. 
Bülent Eczacıbaşı is also an 
avid photographer who loves 
to experience diverse cultures. 
A selection of photographs 
bearing witness to the people 
and stories he encountered 
during his travels was also 
published in 2020 under the 
title "From the Road".

F. Bülent Eczacıbaşı 

Faruk Eczacıbaşı began 
working in the Eczacıbaşı 
Group in 1980 after completing 
his graduate work at Berlin 
Technical University, and 
for many years managed 
the Group’s e-transformation 
process.

Faruk Eczacıbaşı is President 
of the Turkish Informatics 
Foundation (TBV) which he 
co-founded in 1995. In this 
role, he contributes to the 
preparation of numerous 
studies on related issues as 
well as the shaping of public 
policy.

In 1996, Faruk Eczacıbaşı 
assumed his current position 
as Vice Chairman of the 
Eczacıbaşı Group. He serves 
as chairman or vice-chairman 
of several Eczacıbaşı Group 
companies. In 1999, he also 
became President of the 
Eczacıbaşı Sports Club.

Faruk Eczacıbaşı has written 
a book on the transformational 
changes taking place in 
Turkey and around the world 
as a result of new digital 
technologies. Published in 
Turkish in 2018, the book 
considers the challenges for 
individuals, institutions and 
societies, and discusses ways 
to prepare for the positive 
and negative aspects of the 
digital future.

R. Faruk Eczacıbaşı 

Atalay Gümrah graduated 
from Galatasaray Lycée and 
Boğaziçi University’s Industrial 
Engineering Department. 
He received a master’s degree 
in Industrial Engineering from 
the same university.

Gümrah initiated his career in 
1992 at Ekom Eczacıbaşı 
Foreign Trade as Regional 
Manager. In 1994, he was 
appointed Commercial 
Manager of VitrA UK, and in 
1997, General Manager of the 
Group’s newly established 
marketing and sales company 
in Russia, EBM Jsc., where he 
was given the responsibility 
of developing its business. In 
1999, Gümrah joined Intema 
Building Materials Marketing 
and Sales, where he served 
respectively as Projects and 
Operation Manager, Sales 
Operation Manager, Assistant 
General Manager, and General 
Manager, a position he held 
between 2006 and 2011. In 
January 2011, he was 
appointed Vice President of 
the Eczacıbaşı Building 
Products Division (Bathrooms) 
and General Manager of 
Eczacıbaşı Building Products, 
and in October 2013, he was 
given the additional role of 
Executive Vice President of 
the Eczacıbaşı Building 
Products Division. A member 
of the Board of several 
Building Products Division 
companies, Gümrah was 
appointed CEO of the 
Eczacıbaşı Group e�ective as 
of 1 February 2017.

In addition to serving on the 
boards of several Eczacıbaşı 
Group companies, Gümrah is 
Chairman of the Clay, 
Ceramic, Cement and Glass 
Industry Employers’ 
Association of Turkey.

Atalay M. Gümrah

Sacit Basmacı began his 
career in the Ministry of 
Finance as a tax accountant 
between 1974 and 1981. In 
1981, he joined Eczacıbaşı 
Holding as an auditor, 
remaining here through 1983. 
In 1984, he moved to 
Cankurtaran Holding as Vice 
President of Financial and 
Administrative A�airs, later 
becoming Member of the 
Management and Executive 
Board, and Certified Public 
Accountant and Financial 
Advisor.

Basmacı returned to the 
Eczacıbaşı Group in 2003 as 
Assistant Vice President of 
Financial A�airs. Since 
January 2004, Basmacı has 
served as Executive Vice 
President, Head Comptroller 
and Legal A�airs, and General 
Manager of Eczacıbaşı 
Holding. M. Sacit Basmacı 
continues to serve as Chief 
Audit Executive.

Born in 1952, Basmacı 
received his undergraduate 
degree from the 
Economics-Finance 
Department of the Faculty of 
Political Science of Ankara 
University in 1974.

M. Sacit Basmacı
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Seyfettin Sarıçam graduated 
from Bosphorus University 
Industrial Engineering 
Department in 1995 and started 
his career in the audit 
department of PwC Istanbul 
Ofice and worked there until 
1997.

Through 1997-1999; Sarıçam 
received his MBA degree 
from New York University 
Stern School of Business and 
subsequently pursued a career 
in investment banking & 
advisory sectors. He worked 
respectively for JPMorgan 
Chase in New York and 
London ofices as Investment 
Banking Associate (1999-2001), 
Istanbul based corporate 
finance and advisory 
boutique Antika Partners as 
Vice President (2002-2006), 
and Merrill Lynch Turkish 
Investment Banking 
department as Vice President 
(2006-2008) and Director 
(2008-2010). Sarıçam joined 
Deutsche Bank’s Turkish 
Investment Banking 
department in 2010 and 
became Head of Turkish 
Corporate Advisory in 2014. 
Sarıçam completed several 
M&A, divestiture, equity and 
bond ofering, and financing 
transactions for corporates, 
private equity houses, and 
sovereign wealth funds in 
Turkey and abroad.

Sarıçam joined Eczacıbaşı 
Group as Deputy Head of 
Strategic Planning and 
Finance in July 2016 and 
became Head of Strategic 
Planning and Finance in 
October 2016. Sarıçam 
continues to serve as Chief 
Financial O�icer since 
January 2019.

Seyfettin Sarıçam

Simhan Savaşçın Başaran was 
born in 1962, after completing 
her high school education at 
Izmir American High School; 
she graduated from Dokuz 
Eylül University Law School 
in 1984.
 
Following her legal training, 
she began her professional 
career in 1985 as attorney at 
law. After 1993 she continued 
her legal career at Turunç & 
Savaşçın  law  ofice  as partner. 
Joining Eczacıbaşı Group in 
2008, she worked as Assistant 
Chief Legal Counselor at 
Eczacıbaşı Holding Co. 
between 2008 and 2010; 
since January 2010 she is the 
Chief Legal Counselor at 
Eczacıbaşı Holding Co.

Simhan Savaşçın 
Başaran

Turgut Tokgöz earned his BSc 
in Economics from the Middle 
East Technical University 
(METU) in 1989. Following his 
graduation from METU, he 
briefly worked for the 
Undersecretariat of Treasury 
and Foreign Trade as an 
assistant supervisor. In 1992, 
he completed his graduate 
study in international relations 
at The Johns Hopkins 
University (SAIS) followed by 
a graduate degree in economics 
from the University of 
California at Santa Barbara 
in 1993.

Between 1993 and 1996, he 
worked for TEB Research as 
economist and banking sector 
analyst. In the meantime, he 
held a part-time position as a 
lecturer in economics at 
Istanbul Bilgi University. 
In 1996 he joined Eczacibasi 
Securities and held executive 
positions until 2001. In May 
2001, Turgut Tokgoz took the 
position of Secretary General 
at the Turkish Capital Markets 
Association. Meanwhile, he 
served as Board Member at 
Turkish Derivatives Exchange 
and The Central Registry 
Agency. Tokgöz worked as 
Secretary General of the 
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers 
Association of Turkey between 
2004 and 2020. Turgut Tokgöz 
has been an independent 
member of Eczacıbaşı Group's 
Board of Directors since 2018.

Ahmet Turgut 
Tokgöz

Born in Balıkesir in 1957, 
Erkan Durusoy completed his 
higher education at the 
Faculty of Economics of 
Istanbul University.

Erkan Durusoy, who started 
his career as the Financial 
A�airs Manager in Aldağ 
Soğutma Sanayii A.Ş. of 
Alarko Group, served as 
Financial A�airs Director in 
the same company in 1981 
and as Financial A�airs 
Director in Etaş Elektronik 
Tic. A.Ş. in 1984.

Having joined Eczacıbaşı 
Group in 1985 as the Financial 
A�airs Director of Sunum 
Endüstriyel Temsilcilik ve 
Pazarlama A.Ş., Erkan 
Durusoy took o�ice as the 
Financial A�airs Director of 
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat 
Malzemeleri Yatırım ve 
Pazarlama A.Ş. in 1987 and 
served in the same position 
until 2013 when he retired.

Erkan Durusoy
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL REPORT 

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH 

 
To the General Assembly of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

 

1. Opinion 

 

We have audited the annual report of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (the “Company”) for the 

1 January - 31 December 2020 period. 

 

In our opinion, the financial information and the analysis made by the Board of Directors by using the 

information included in the audited financial statements regarding the Company’s position in the Board of 

Directors’ Annual Report are consistent and presented fairly, in all material respects, with the audited full 

set financial statements and with the information obtained in the course of independent audit. 

 

2. Basis for Opinion 

 

Our independent audit was conducted in accordance with the Independent Standards on Auditing that are 

part of the Turkish Standards on Auditing (the “TSA”) issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and 

Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 

the Auditor’s Responsibilities in the Audit of the Board of Directors’ Annual Report section of our report. 

We hereby declare that we are independent of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Rules for 

Independent Auditors (the “Ethical Rules”) and the ethical requirements regarding independent audit in 

regulations issued by POA that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements. We have also fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Ethical Rules and regulations. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained during the independent audit provides a sufficient and appropriate basis 

for our opinion. 

 

3. Our Audit Opinion on the Full Set Financial Statements 

 

We expressed an unqualified opinion in the auditor’s report dated 26 February 2021 on the full set 

financial statements for the 1 January - 31 December 2020 period.  



 

4. Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Annual Report 

 

Company management’s responsibilities related to the annual report according to Articles 514 and 516 of 

Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and Capital Markets Board’s (“CMB”) Communiqué Serial II, 

No: 14.1, “Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (the “Communiqué”) are as follows: 

 

a) to prepare the annual report within the first three months following the balance sheet date and 

present it to the general assembly;. 

 

b) to prepare the annual report to reflect the Company’s operations in that year and the financial 

position in a true, complete, straightforward, fair and proper manner in all respects. In this report 

financial position is assessed in accordance with the financial statements. Also in the report, 

developments and possible risks which the Company may encounter are clearly indicated. The 

assessments of the Board of Directors in regards to these matters are also included in the report. 

 

c) to include the matters below in the annual report: 

 

- events of particular importance that occurred in the Company after the operating year, 

-  the Company’s Company’s research and development activities, 

-  financial benefits such as salaries, bonuses, premiums and allowances, travel, accommodation 

and representation expenses, benefits in cash and in kind, insurance and similar guarantees paid 

to members of the Board of Directors and senior management. 

 

When preparing the annual report, the Board of Directors considers secondary legislation arrangements 

enacted by the Ministry of Customs and Trade and other relevant institutions. 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

5. Independent Auditor’s Responsibility in the Audit of the Annual Report 

 
Our aim is to express an opinion and issue a report comprising our opinion within the framework of TCC 

and Communiqué provisions regarding whether or not the financial information and the analysis made by 

the Board of Directors by using the information included in the audited financial statements in the annual 

report are consistent and presented fairly with the audited financial statements of the Company and with 

the information we obtained in the course of independent audit. 

 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the TSAs. These standards require that ethical requirements 

are complied with and that the independent audit is planned and performed in a way to obtain reasonable 

assurance of whether or not the financial information and the analysis made by the Board of Directors by 

using the information included in the audited financial statements in the annual report are consistent and 

presented fairly with the audited financial statements and with the information obtained in the course of 

audit. 

 

PwC Bağımsız Denetim ve 

Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. 

 

 

 

 

Ediz Günsel, SMMM 

Partner 

 

İstanbul, 26 February 2021 
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1. Reporting Period 

This report covers the period of 1st January - 31st December 2020.  

  

1.2. Trade Name         : Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

 Trade Registration No        : 125209 

       Headquarters' Contact Details : Kanyon Ofis Büyükdere Cad. No: 185 34394 Istanbul  

       Branch's Contact Details       : None 

     The Company's website       : www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr, www.eczacibasi.com.tr 

  

1.3. Capital and Shareholding Structure 

       Issued Capital   : TL 105,000,000 

       Registered Capital  : TL 500,000,000 

       Shareholding Structure : The Company’s shareholding structure is shown below, compared to the 

previous year. 

 

Shareholder 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Share Amount 

(TL) 

Share Ratio 

(%) 

Share Amount 

(TL) 

Share Ratio 

(%) 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 85,653,274 81.57 85,653,274 81.57 

Other  19,346,726 18.43 19,346,726 18.43 

Total 105,000,000 100 105,000,000 100 

 

The company is in the registered capital system and the authorized capital ceiling of the company is TL 500,000,000. 

The issued capital of the Company is divided into 105,000,000 shares with a nominal value of TL 1 each. (December 

31, 2019: TRY 105.000.000).  There is no privileged share and each share has one voting right. The Company has 

not acquired its own shares. 

 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. shares are traded on Borsa İstanbul A.Ş. (BIST) with the code ECZYT. 

 

Changes in Capital and Shareholding Structure During the Fiscal Period 

No change occurred in the capital and shareholding structure between 01 January 2020 - 31 December 2020. 

 

1.4. Information on the Company's Organization, Board of Directors, Senior Executives, and Number of 

Personnel, Financial benefits provided to Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Executives 

The Board of Directors consists of eight members, two of which are independent members. In 2020, there was no 

situation that eliminated the independence of independent members, the independence declarations received from 

independent members are included in our annual report. 

 

http://www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
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Information about the members of the Board of Directors is provided below: 

 

Name, Surname of Board 

Member 
Position 

Start Date of 

Taking Office (*) 

Status of 

Independency 

Ferit Bülent Eczacıbaşı Chairman of the Board of Directors 09.04.2020 - 

Rahmi Faruk Eczacıbaşı 
Vice Chairman of the Board of 

Directors 
09.04.2020 - 

Seyfettin Sarıçam Member/General Manager 09.04.2020   

Atalay M. Gümrah Member 09.04.2020 - 

Mustafa Sacit Basmacı Member 09.04.2020 - 

Simhan Savaşçın Başaran Member 09.04.2020 - 

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz Member 09.04.2020 Independent Member  

Erkan Durusoy Member 09.04.2020 Independent Member 

(*) The Members of the Board of Directors were elected to be in charge for 1 year during the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting 

dated 9th April 2020, and will hold the office until the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting to be held in 2021. 

The Board of Directors holds meetings as required by the Company businesses, as laid down in the Articles of 

Association of our Company. Agenda of meetings of the Board of Directors is determined upon notification of 

issues, explicitly ordered in the Articles of Association to be submitted to decision of the Board of Directors, by 

relevant departments to the Company's senior management and to the members of the Board of Directors. 

Committees Established within the Board of Directors  

“Audit Committee”, “Corporate Governance Committee” and “Committee of Early Detection of Risk” were 

established by the Board of Directors are established by Board of Directors within the framework of the provisions 

in the Corporate Governance Communiqué of the Capital Markets Board. Duties of “Nomination Committee” and 

“Remuneration Committee” are fulfilled by the “Corporate Governance Committee”. 

Audit Committee  

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz  Chairman 

Erkan Durusoy   Member 

 

Corporate Governance Committee 

Erkan Durusoy   Chairman 

Mustafa Sacit Basmacı  Member 

Bedriye Burcu Nergiz  Member 

  

Committee of Early Detection of Risk 

Erkan Durusoy   Chairman  

Simhan Savaşcın Başaran Member 

 

Assessment of the Board of Directors Related to the Activities of the Committees 

Established by the Board of Directors, the committees discharged their duties and responsibilities set forth in their 

duty and working principles and took care to convene at frequencies deemed necessary for effective work. The 

Board of Directors provided the committees with any resource and support required for the fulfillment of their 

duties. The committees informed the Board of Directors, verbally and in writing, about their works.  
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Number of Personnel 

Our Company does not have any permanent employees and the management services are carried out by outsourced 

services and consultancy. 

Total amount of the financial benefits provided to the Board members and senior executives, such as 

attendance fees, remunerations, premiums, dividends 

No fee and attendance fee is paid to the Board members, except for the independent members of the Board of 

Directors. A monthly gross attendance fee of TRY 12,000 is paid to the independent members of the Board of 

Directors, as determined at the general assembly meeting held on 9 April 2020, where 2019 activities were 

discussed. 

Information on the total amount of the allowances, travel, accommodation and entertainment expenses, as 

well as opportunities in kind and in cash, insurances, and similar guarantees provided to the Board members 

and senior executives 

There is no amount paid. 

Information on Activities of the Board Members within the Scope of the Prohibition of Competition 

The members of the Board of Directors did not take any action against the prohibition of competition within the 

period of January 1 – December 31, 2020.  

 

2. ACTIVITIES, SUBSTANTIAL DEVELOPMENTS RELATED TO ACTIVITIES AND FINANCIAL 

POSITION 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. was founded on December 29th, 1973 in Istanbul. 

The main subject of actitivity of the Company is to participate in the capitals of existing or future equity companies 

with a profit making capability or potential, established in such areas as may be deemed appropriate by the 

Company, or to invest in shares and other securities issued or to be issued by such companies. 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı has 5 affiliates which are wholly owned by Eczacıbaşı Group as of 

31.12.2020. 

 General information about investments in associates: 

 

Trade Name Scope of Activity 
Shareholding 

Ratio (%) 

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri Yatırım ve 

Pazarlama A.Ş. 

Sales of construction and installation 

materials and after-sales services 
46.21 

E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve Tic. 

A.Ş. 

Developing and producing smart card 

solutions 
31.01 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç. Sınai ve Finansal 

Yatırımlar San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 

Participating and making real estate 

investments 
29.69 

Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 

Producing and selling ceramic sanitary 

ware, bathroom furniture and accessories, 

bathtubs and shower trays and fixtures 

10.29 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.* Participating 11.54 

*Our Company holds 11.54% of the shares in our main shareholder Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., and it does not have any directive effect 

or control over the organization and investment policies of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 
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E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 

 

                  2020                2019 

Paid-in Capital TL 3,110,000 TL 3,110,000 

Total Assets TL 109,718,035 TL 82,701,835 

Equity TL (17,487,756) TL (4,337,958) 

Proceeds TL 158,223,790 TL 206,927,645 

Net Profit TL (14,378,120) TL 16,917,939 

   

Innovation-based security: Innovation-based security: We have the responsibility to connect individuals to the 

digital world without interruption. 

In today's modern world, where secure and uninterrupted connection experience is an indispensable part of our lives, 

an increasing number of people can connect securely and easily to the digital world and have an uninterrupted and 

secure exchange of information, ensuring that their personal information will not be altered, stolen, or used for any 

other purposes. 

E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. E-Kart was established in 1999 with the purpose of 

providing its customers with innovative, secure and uninterrupted connectivity systems and processes that can be 

easily carried out anywhere/anytime and that protect the privacy and security of their personal information. 50 

percent of shares in E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri were sold in 2001 to Giesecke & Devrient GmbH, the world's 

second largest enterprise in its field. Having started the production in 2001 and having the facility that is able to 

produce and personalize the first Visa/Europay-approved credit card in Turkey and the smart credit card, E-Kart 

has also become the first sim card production facility in Turkey. The annual card production capacity of E-Kart is 

100 million. E-Kart incorporates within itself the daily card personalization operations of many banks thanks to the 

fast, quality and reliable service concept it offers to its customers, besides its smart card production.  

E-Kart possesses an infrastructure that is capable of performing Visa/Europay, SAS, and other international security 

certification operations, as well as card production, software, and personalization operations. Holding ISO 27001 

Information Security Management System Certificate, E-Kart added to its list AMEX certificate and ISO 14298 

Secure Printing Processes Management certificate in 2014, and Diners Certificate in 2015. The organization led the 

way in Turkey with ISO 22301 Business Continuity Management System certificate to ensure the continuation of 

our products and services under exceptional circumstances. In 2011, it added ISO 14001 Environmental 

Management System and ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System certificates to its ISO 

9001 certificate that certifies it quality management system. 

A key player in all markets where it operates, E-Kart has become a large vendor in TRNC, Moldova, Ukraine, 

Azerbaijan, Georgia, and Kazakhstan thanks to the marketing and sales activities it carries out in line with its 

geographic growth target. E-Kart that is getting ready to penetrate into new markets in addition to the said countries 

aims to grow also in such markets. 

The Covid 19 outbreak, which started in March 2020 and is still ongoing, has also affected the business lines of the 

E-Card. In this period, due to the decrease in the demand for change in the identity cards of the citizens, the e-ID 
cards market contracted. With the increase in the use of contactless cards, a growth trend has been achieved in the 

contactless cards market in the banking and telecommunications segment. 
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EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 

 

 

 31.12.2020  31.12.2019 

Paid-in Capital    TL 685,260,000  TL 685,260,000 

Total Assets TL 5,970,231,000 TL 4,838,337,000 

Equity TL 5,282,308,000 TL 4.277.258.000  

Proceeds    TL 909,132,000    TL 877,076,000 

Net Profit   TL 322,114,000       TL 162,728,000 

 

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. was established on 24th October 1951. The 

Company is not engaged in any actual manufacturing activity and it has a holding structure with its existing 

subsidiaries, business partnerships, and affiliates.  

Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar was established in partnership (50%-50%) with İş Gayrimenkul 

Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş. in Istanbul Province, Şişli District, Büyükdere Caddesi Location and owns the half of Kanyon 

shopping center, which was realized as the first outdoor shopping center project in Turkey, and the entire 26-storey 

office block. Due to Covid-19 disease that was declared as pandemic all over the world in March 2020, the Shopping 

Centers and Investors Association first announced the decision changing the opening and closing hours of SCs for 

the public health by also taking into consideration the demands of the society and retailers. On 20 March 2020, a 

recommendation decision was made to close SCs. Accordingly, it was decided to close Kanyon SC as of 20:00 on 

20 March 2020 for a temporary period. During the period when the shopping center did not carry on business, the 

markets and pharmacies where visitors could meet their basic needs remained open under the initiative of store 

owners. It was resolved not to collect rent from store lessees for those stores that would remain closed from 20 

March 2020, when Kanyon Shopping Center was closed, to 30 April 2020. In accordance with the announcement 

by public authorities that the pandemic showed a relatively positive course in May in our country and that the 

measures taken started showing their effect, and with the announcement of the Presidency that the shopping centers 

could be partially opened as of 11 May 2020, Kanyon SC started carrying on business gradually on 11 May 2020. 

It was resolved that the rent for May be not collected from the lessees, who opened their stores as of this date, in 

accordance with the conditions to be determined by Kanyon Yönetim İşletim ve Pazarlama A.Ş., that all lessees 

(except for the lines of business determined to remain closed in accordance with the official measures) in Kanyon 

Shopping Center be started to carry on business until 1 June 2020 at the latest, and that a rental discount of 50% be 

applied to the monthly fixed rental fees for June. Due to the ongoing impacts of Covid-19 pandemic on the retail 

sector, Kanyon Management agreed upon rent discount and other rent support practices that may be required at 

Kanyon Shopping Center throughout July-December 2020, given the current number of visitors and business 

volume, and it was further resolved that such supports and practices be ascertained by Kanyon Management as long 

as impacts of Covid-19 outbreak continue. 

On December 31st, 2007, Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar purchased the half of 22 building plots equal 

to 196,409.74 m2 in total which were situated in Yorgancı Çiftliği Location, Uskumru Quarter of Sarıyer District. 

And the other half of them belongs to Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. The construction of 90 thousand m2 in total was built 

on the mentioned real estates, and this project completed is mainly for residence purpose and it has partially 

commercial areas. The occupancy permits were obtained for all the buildings (residence and commercial units). 
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- In Ormanada which was designed in collaboration with Torti Gallas and Partners, Kreatif Mimarlık and Rainer 

Schmidt Landscape Architects having international knowledge and experience; the residences are of 170 to 700 m2. 

In Ormanada, the residences that have not been sold are of 368 to 479 m2 and unit residence sale prices vary from 

about TL 10.7 million to TL 14.5 million. 

 - In Ormanada, there are 273 residences as 188 villas and 85 row houses; and there are 150 residences on the 1st 

Phase and 123 residences on the 2nd Phase. The delivery of the residences on the first phase started as of April 2013 

and the delivery of the residences on the second phase started as of December 2013. 

- As of December 31, 2020, 263 residences were sold in total and rent income is generated from 8 of the existing 

residences. 

 

Due to Covid-19, the flow of patients to Family Health Centers, polyclinic services, and the number of operations 

were decreased and this has negative impacts on the pharmaceuticals market. In April-June, a loss in the sales of 

products other than the chronic disease and immunization products was experienced. A certain level of recovery 

was observed in June upon the normalization process and return of medical promotion personnel to the field, even 

though partially. However, the flow of patients and the number of operations did not reach the expected level. As 

the period when the impacts of the pandemic will continue either in our country and the world, the severity of its 

impacts, and its duration become clearer, it will be possible to make more explicit and reasonable estimations for 

the medium and long-term. Our subsidiary EİP Eczacıbaşı İlaç Pazarlama A.Ş. ("EİP") implements the working 

from home model and has started to benefit from short-time working allowance since 13 April 2020 for its personnel 

who took office as Medical Promotion Officer and Specialist Medical Promotion Officer and who could not carry 

out their promotion activities due to the fact that the product promotion activities, carried out by visiting health 

institutions and organizations, were stopped on 19 March 2020 by the Turkish Medicines and Medical Devices 

Agency until further notice. As of June 15, 2020, promotional activities started 2 days a week, and the personnel 

engaged in promotional activities were partially covered, and the personnel who could not carry out promotional 

activities due to the exclusion of pandemic hospitals were included in the scope of full-time short-time work 

allowance. Depending on the partial normalization of the activities in hospitals, the hospital field team started 

working 20% of the time in September. As long as the utilization of the short-time working allowance continues 

legally to be in force, EİP will continue assessing the scope of the short-time working allowance in line with the 

density of the activities in its field of activity, and adapting it to market conditions. 

 

Necessary actions have been taken to minimize the possible effects of Covid-19, which affects the whole world, on 

the activities and financial status of Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai and Finansal Yatırımlar. Due to the Covid-19 outbreak, 

measures were taken to minimize the negative effects of investment expenditures, operational expenses and the 

increase in stocks in parallel with the developments / slowdowns in both the sectors they are in and in the general 

economic activity, and the cash management strategy was revised to strengthen the liquidity position. 

 

The company's total number of personnel as of 31 December 2020 is 9 (31 December 2019: 11) and all of them are 

subject to the Labor Law. There are no collective labor agreement practices applicable. The wages and rights of the 

employees should be determined in accordance with the relevant legislation and the internal regulations of 

Eczacıbaşı Group. In this framework, the employees have the opportunity to participate in training and career 

programs suitable for their personal and professional development in addition to the benefits they might have 

according to their positions, such as private health and life insurance, clothing, relocation and meal benefits, 

marriage, birth-death, and child benefits. 
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İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 

 

 2020 2019 

Paid-in Capital TL 19,440,000 TL 19,440,000 

Total Assets TL 362,921,159 TL 411,005,948 

Equity TL 27,113,196 TL 24,380,507 

Proceeds TL 157,617,374 TL 747,451,738 

Net Profit TL 2,732,689 TL (289,513) 

   

İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. ("İntema") was incorporated in 1978 in İstanbul 

and its actual scope of activities includes the marketing and sales of Eczacıbaşı Construction Group's products across 

Turkey, as well as the realization of the guiding and informative presentation, exhibition, consultancy, sales, and 

after-sales services, which start from the project and design, for the whole of products and services addressing the 

bathroom renovation market.  

Intema carries out marketing and sales of bathroom products in the wholesale and retail markets and of tiles and 

construction chemicals in Turkey in the retail channel within the body of Ezacıbaşı Construction Group. The product 

groups marketed and sold consist of ceramic health tools, washbasins, bathtubs, bathroom furniture, ceramic coating 

products, construction chemicals and fittings.  

The point of sale structure ensured through İntema stores is spread to the authorized dealer channel and the correct 

representation of the organization's and brand's reputation, as well as the standardization of the showcase and service 

quality, are ensured. İntema stores put their signatures under "turnkey" projects by carrying out all processes from 

the drawing to the assembly of a project. Carrying out their activities under the organization of İntema and being 

the first coordinated service organization in their sector, VitrA-Artema authorized services today provides after-

sales service support for the construction group products to 95 points around Turkey. 

 

According to the statistics for December 2020 period published by the Statistical Institute of Turkey (TUIK):  

 

- 1,499,316 total housing sales in Turkey has been increased by 11% compared to 2019 in 2020. The number 

of residences sold for the first time across Turkey was approximately 469.740 thousand corresponding to a 

decrease of 8% compared to the previous year. 

 

- Seasonally adjusted Construction sector reliability index increased from 68.9 in December 2019 to 73.3 in 

December 2020. 

 

- The building construction cost index increased by 22% in November 2020 compared to the same month of 

the previous year. 

 

According to the Sector Report of December 2020 prepared by the Association of Turkish Building Material 

Producers (Turkish IMSAD); the construction sector and construction materials industry closed the first quarter of 

2020, prior to Covid-19 outbreak, with a growth, and shrinkage started during the second quarter with the impact 
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of the outbreak. Aids offered for the economy and return to economic activities helped the construction industry to 

record a growth in the third quarter for the first time in the last eight quarters. An important increase took place in 

terms of production and export of the construction materials industry. In the last quarter of the year, growths went 

on, yet the business went back into a recession process as a result of the second wave of the outbreak that was felt 

a lot more severely both at home and abroad around the year end.  

 

Within the framework of the measures taken within the scope of the Covid-19 global epidemic, Intema's retail stores, 

which have suspended their activities as of March 20, 2020, have been opened as of June 1, 2020. During the 

interruption period, we applied for short-time work allowance for store employees and benefited from the short-

time work allowance from April to 30 June 2020. 

 

The Company has, as at 31 December 2020, 205 employees (31 December 2019: 295) Collective Labor Agreement 

entered into with the employees is not included. As explained in detail in Intema's PDP statement dated 24.01.2020; 

Pursuant to the sales and distribution agreement signed with Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 

(Manufacturer), the employees in the staff who took the responsibility of the manufacturer were transferred to the 

Manufacturer.  

 

Necessary actions have been taken to minimize the possible effects of Covid-19 on the activities and financial status 

of our company. In parallel with the developments / slowdowns in the construction sector and general economic 

activity due to the COVID-19 epidemic, actions were taken to minimize the increase in investment expenditures, 

operational expenses and stocks, and the cash management strategy was revised to strengthen the liquidity position. 

 

The text of the announcement prepared regarding the merger of İntema under the structure of İntema in a facilitated 

manner by taking over the subsidiary İntema Yaşam Ev ve Mutfak Ürünleri Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., of 

which İntema is wholly owned (100%), was issued by the Capital Markets Board dated 28.01.2021 and 5/103, the 

announcement text approved by the Capital Markets Board was announced on the Public Disclosure Platform on 

01.02.2021. 

 

Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 

 

 

 2020 2019 

Paid-in Capital TL 112,830,900 TL 112,830,900 

 

Being the first and the largest ceramic medical equipment manufacturer and exporter in Turkey, Eczacıbaşı Yapı 

Gereçleri (EYAP) has been manufacturing VitrA branded ceramic medical equipment since 1958 and bathroom 

furniture, bathtubs, and shower trays since 1991. EYAP's facility established in Bozüyük in 1977 is one of the 

world's largest manufacturing complexes carrying out activities under a single roof in the ceramic medical 

equipment sector. The facility is the first owner of TS EN 16001 Energy Management System Certificate, the latest 
and the most advanced international standard in its field, in its sector. In addition, EYAP is the first and only ceramic 
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medical equipment manufacturer in Europe to have been awarded the Type-III Environmental Product Declaration 

that is the most comprehensive standard of eco-labels in the world.  

EYAP is among the top 10 manufacturers of Europe with the armatures it has produced since 1983 and the slogan 

"Aç Kapa" of Artema, which produced the first "single-operated faucet" in Turkey, is used as the generic name of 

the product in the sector. Having started manufacturing also bathroom accessories in 1995, the organization 

develops its products together with Turkish and foreign designers. Artema products that offer the water and energy 

savings up to 90%, besides their designs addressing to different tastes, include also electronic, thermostatic, and 

time-control faucets for professional spaces.  

In accordance with the "TSI Star" and "TSI Double Star" application started in 2014 by the Turkish Standards 

Institution (TSI), Artema documented its quality by becoming the first manufacturer in all sectors and the only 

manufacturer in its sector to obtain the certificate. Artema, almost the entire product range of which is of A energy 

class, is the first manufacturer to obtain the European Water Label certificate in the faucet sector in Turkey. 

 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 

Established at the end of 1969, Eczacıbaşı Holding carries out and directs the strategic planning, financial 

management, audit, and new project assessments of Eczacıbaşı Group, in addition to its general investment 

activities. In addition, it serves as a consultant in the activities of organization and human resources, information 

technologies, and communication systems of the Group's companies and conducts the corporate communication 

activities of the Group. The paid-up capital of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. is TRY 852,000,000. 

 

 

3.1. Finansal Position 

 

While case numbers of coronavirus are increasing rapidly around the world, with regards to vaccination efforts, 

start of the vaccination process around the world, especially in EU states and the USA, positively affected 

expectations associated with the period to come. IMF revised global growth estimation for 2020 upwards based 

on a more positive than expected recovery process in the global economic activity that was recorded during 

the second half of the year, whereas it draws attention to the fact that economic recovery and vaccination 

process vary depending on the country. Due to the coronavirus outbreak's effect, the US economy shrank by 

3.5% and Euro Zone economy shrank by 6.8% in 2020. In the Zone where announced leading indicators present 

a complicated outlook for the economic activity, introduction of additional restrictions aimed at avoiding 

spread of new coronavirus paves the way for uncertainty. 

 

In Turkey which is expected to be one of the few countries that complete the past year with a positive growth 

performance, limited though, leading indicators related to January indicate that the economic recovery is 

ongoing. Annual CPI inflation reached its highest level at end of 2020, with 14.6% since August 2019, whereas 

the inflation is expected to start a downfall trend in the second half of the next year based on the assumption 

that CBRT is to retain its tight money policy stance and a relatively stable outlook s to be effective in the 

financial markets. In the upcoming period, progress of the vaccination process and measures taken within 

scope of the pandemic will be decisive on the economic activity both domestically and globally.  

 

Necessary actions have been taken to minimize the possible effects of Covid-19 on the activities and financial 

status of our company. Our 2020 activities have been carried out in accordance with our current strategies and 

policies, adhering to the precautionary principle. In 2021, activities will continue within the framework of the 

same principles. 

 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. has a portfolio diversified in terms of business lines and In 2020, 

the operating margin increased by 16.41% compared to the previous year and reached TRY 43,792,647, and the 

net profit for the period increased by 87.23% toTRY  135,983,681, resulting in a strong financial structure. 
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3.1.2. Financial Indicators 

 

 

Summarized Profit & Loss 

Statement 

The Amount Regarding the 

Period 01.01.2020 -

31.12.2020 (TL) 

The Amount Regarding the 

Period 01.01.2019 -

31.12.2019 (TL) 

Change 

(%) 

Sales Income - - - 

Gross Profit - - - 

Real Operating Profit 43,792,647 37,619,456 16.41 

Depreciation and Amortization        17,025        15,971 6.60 

Operating Profit Before 

Depreciation 

43,809,672 37,635,427 16.41 

Net Profit for the Period 135,983,681 72,628,550 87.23 

 

 

 

   

Summarized Balance-Sheet 
31.12.2020  

Related Amount (TL) 

31.12.2019  

Related Amount (TL) 

Change 

(%) 

Total Assets 2,903,421,280 2.374,536,772         22.27 

Total Liabilities      55,661,601      44,767,996 24.33 

Total Equity 2,847,759,679 2,329,768,776 22.23 

Total Current Assets    107,320,293    105,925,218 1.32 

Total Short-Term Liabilities          996,339        1,377,698 27.68 

Investment Expenditures - - - 

 

 

Financial Indicators 

 

 

 

Liquidity Ratios 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 

Current Ratio 107.71 76.89 

Liquidity Ratio 107.71 76.89 

    

Ratios Related to Financial Position 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 

- Total Liabilities / Total Assets 0.02 0.02 

- Total Liabilities / Total Equity 0.02 0.02 

Total Shareholders' Equity / Total Assets 0.98 0.98 

- Total Shareholders' Equity / Total 

Liabilities 

51.16 
52.04 

    

Profitability Ratios 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 

- Net Profit for the Period / Total 

Shareholders' Equity 
0.048 0.031 

- Net Profit for the Year / Total Assets 0.047 0.031 
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The stocks of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. traded with the code “ECZYT” on the BİST were traded 

at  TL 6.77 the lowest and TL 29.78 the highest in 2020, and stood at TL 27.74 at the end of the year, up 188,05% 

compared to a year ago. In the same period, BIST 100 Index appreciated by %29,06 .  

 

3.1.3. Determination as to whether the Company’s capital is fully covered or indebted, and assessments by 

the managing body 

 
The company's issued capital is TL 2,847,759,679, 26.12% above the issued capital excluding equities amounting 

to TL 105,000,000.  

 

3.1.4. Measures considered to be taken to improve the financial structure of the Company 

 

There is no problem in the financial structure of the Company.  

 

4. ONGOING INVESTMENTS  

The Company does not have any ongoing investments. 

 

5. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

Due to our scope of activities, we do not have any research and development activity. 

 

6. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY’S INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND INTERNAL AUDIT 

ACTIVITIES, AND OPINION OF THE MANAGING BODY 

Internal Control System and Internal Audit  

 

Internal Control is the system which ensures that processes and transactions are performed within framework of 

relevant legislation and rules in accordance with the management strategy and policies, errors, frauds and 

irregularities are detected and avoided, account and record order can be rendered integral and reliable, information 

in the data system can be obtained in a timely and accurate fashion. The internal control system has been designed 

to provide reasonable assurance in terms of effectiveness and efficiency of activities, reliability of reporting as well 

as achieving objectives of compliance with the relevant legislation.  

 

Elements within the flow of business processes, including standard definitions, tasks and responsibilities, 

authorizations, policies and procedures, constitute the Internal Control System. This system, which also includes 

risk management, information systems and processes, is assessed under internal audit activities and its effeciency 

is checked.  

 

At Eczacıbaşı Group, the internal audit activities have been structured under the roof of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., 

the parent company. The Audit Board within Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. audits the activities of the organizations 

included in consolidation within the scope of the required processes and/or issues. The Audit Board works in 

coordination with the audit committees established in public companies of Eczacıbaşı Group. 

 

The Audit Committee is responsible for the accounting system, public disclosure of financial data, identification of 

the independent audit company, operation and effectiveness of the internal control system, and observation of the 

independent audit processes. During the period, the Committee monitored the accounting and internal control 

systems, independent audit and financial reporting processes, and encountered no irregular finding and concluded 

that operations were carried out properly.  

 

In addition to the duties conducted by the Audit Committee, the legal records of the affiliate companies, the business 
partnerships and the subsidiaries included within consolidation are quarterly controlled by the Certified Public 
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Accountancy company in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, the Uniform Accounting Plan and in 

terms of Tax Legislation. In addition, with the Capital Markets Board legislation and the Turkish Accounting 

Standards published by the Public Oversight, Accounting and Audit Standards Authority of the financial statements 

for January- December and of the annual financial statements for January-June are analyzed and audited by the 

independent audit company.  

 

 

7. ASSESSMENT ON RISKS AND THE MANAGING BODY  

 

7.1. Information on  risk management policy 

 

At Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş., risk management is dealt with a holistic perspective, considering it's 

a part of activities. Operations are performed to identify, assess, monitor any potential risk elements that may affect 

the Company's achieving short, medium and long term targets, pose a threat to its development and sustainability 

and to manage respective risks in accordance with the Company's risk-taking profile. 

 

The Corporate Risk Management unit, formed within the structure of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş Group Directorate of 

Financial Affairs and Financing to coordinate risk management activities of Eczacıbaşı Group, works in 

coordination with the Committee of Early Detection of Risk established at public companies. In the Eczacıbaşı 

Group, the Corporate Risk Management process has been designed in accordance with international standards in 

order to bring a structural perspective on an organizational basis. 

 

Corporate Risk Management is the management process that determines which risks should be managed to what 

extent in line with the determined goals and objectives and ensures that necessary actions are taken, reviewed and 

reported. In this way, it is possible to create a risk-oriented culture at all levels of the Company, to reduce the 

variability in revenues by avoiding events that can seriously harm the Company's value and thus to support 

sustainable growth. 

 

The primary risks incurred by the Company are monitored under two main categories as financial risks (foreign 

exchange, interest, liquidity and credit) and nonfinancial risks (strategic, operational, compliance and 

sustainability). 

 

Financial Risks 

 

The company focuses on minimizing the effects of fluctuation in markets and probable negative results on the 

financial performance in order to manage various financial risks it may be exposed to as a result of its activities 

and/or financial position. 

 

The financial risks any positive or negative influence on financial outcomes of the organization caused by instability 

in the markets such as exchange rate, interest, etc. In addition to these risks, liquidity risk and credit risk are also 

other financial risks that may play a role in deterioration of stability of the financial structure of the organization. 

The financial risks are analyzed under four titles as follows: foreign exchange risk, interest risk, liquidity risk, and 

credit risk. 

 

Foreign exchange risk 

 

This refers to the risks arising from any financial or operational transactions in foreign currency of the Company 

where the company has assets, liabilities and off-the-balance-sheet liabilities in foreign currency. These risks are 

monitored by analyzing using exchange position and controlled by keeping the amount exposed to exchange risk 

within defined limits. 

 

In order to manage foreign currency risk effectively, following sensitivity analyses and scenario studies, hedging 

transactions are made in accordance with the risk appetite and determined policies and limits. In addition, the market 

expectations are constantly followed in order to make the cash and credit portfolio of the Company be affected from 
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the foreign exchange movements at a minimum level, and the portfolios are dynamically managed depending on 

the up-to-date data. 

 

Interest risk 

 

Interest risk is is the effect that can be created by the change in interests on financial results of the Company in the 

event of assets and liabilities sensitive to the interest rate. The Company primarily manages this risk by balancing 

its interest sensitive forward receivables and forward debts using natural precautions. 

 

The decision is made to get loans as short or long interest, fixed or floating interest rate depending on the market 

expectations of the organization and on its pre-determined risk limits. In addition, duration calculations and 

sensitivity analyses are used in the management of the interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to, and 

derivative financial instruments are used when necessary, by preferring institutions that offer more favorable 

financing conditions. 

 

Liquidity risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not fulfill its net funding obligations due to occurrence of events 

giving rise to the reduction of fund resources, such as deterioration of markets or rating downgrades. Unless effective 

planning is made, financial liabilities may not be met on time, cost-effectively and at sufficient levels. 

 

The liquidity risk management consists of the ability to provide cash and assets convertible into cash, securities of 

sufficient amount, provide funding through sufficient credit facilities and resource diversification and close short 

positions. The Company has aimed for flexibility in the funding through rendering the loan channels ready due to 

the dynamic nature of the business environment.  

 

Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring credit usage, repayments, and cash flow projections and considering 

financial soundness indicators. The financial structure of the Company is analyzed by the indicators such as current 

ratio, liquidity ratio, total debt/total assets, net financial liability /equity, capability of the organization to pay 

interest, etc., and assessed from the weakest to the strongest; and actions are taken related to the working capital 

management as a result of the assessment. 

 

Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the risk of one party, involved in a commercial relation, suffering a financial loss as a result of the 

failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations related to a financial instrument. The Company's priority in the 

management of this risk is to distribute the value exposed to credit risk in a balanced and manageable manner.  

 

These risks are managed with credit rating studies based on historical data, inquiry studies, limiting the 

concentration on a single business partner within the total portfolio, and assurance structure to be applied for 

customers. Risk positions are constantly monitored by conducting detailed customer analyses and it is ensured that 

the domestic and foreign receivables are insured within the determined operation limits. 

 

Nonfinancial Risks 

In addition to controlling financial risks, following non-financial risks are strategic, compliance and sustainability 

risks. 

 

Strategic risks 

Structural risks that may prevent the Company from reaching its short, medium and long term goals are evaluated 

under this heading. Strategic risks are addressed as fluctuations in the demand for products and services, changes in 

the market shares, market risks arising from the developments that may affect competition, brand and reputation 

risks, economic and political risks, governance risks such as business model, value chain, investment decisions, 

risks related to innovation and transformation, such as technological advances, product and business development.  
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Strategic risks are managed with a rational and cautious risk management approach, keeping the balance of growth 

and returns at the optimum level and primarily considering long-term interests. In this context, necessary proactive 

measures are taken against potential risks with sectoral and geographical diversification, long-term dynamic 

portfolio management, feasibility studies regarding investment decisions, close monitoring of macro developments 

and market dynamics, and determination of innovative strategies in the fields of innovation and transformation. 

 

Operational risks 

Operational risks consist of risks affecting operations, arising from incidents that can cause business interruptions 

such as earthquake, fire, work or environmental health and safety, problems in information technology or 

infrastructure systems, management of business processes and interruptions in internal controls, employees, etc.  

 

These risks are reduced with the effective human resources management and the investments in technological 

infrastructure; and the coverable risks are frequently reviewed, covered based on a benefit and cost analysis, and 

transferred to the outside of the Company. Also, the Company processes and systems are periodically checked and 

audited against operational risks. 

 

The Company attaches utmost importance to ensuring continuity of all business processes and corporate operations 

in order to provide the highest possible value to its stakeholders. 

 

Compliance risks 

Compliance risks refer to legal sanctions and loss of image, reputation, material losses, etc. that may be encountered 

in case of non-compliance with all applicable laws, other legal regulations and legislations, codes of conduct, and 

defined rules such as internal policies and regulations that are part of corporate governance.  

 

All compliance risks related to changes in the legislation, lawsuits, possible legal disputes, competition rules, 

compliance with tax, customs and other regulations are effectively managed with coordination of relevant units in 

the Company. 

 

Sustainability risks 

The Company has adopted Eczacıbaşı Group's  holistic sustainability approach that focuses on balancing the 

business world and the needs of human life with the sustainability of natural resources.  

 

The Group intends to carry out planning from today to the future with its economic, environmental and social 

dimensions within the framework of its holistic sustainable development approach. In this context; in all Eczacıbaşı 

Group companies, management of sustainability risks including natural disasters, extraordinary weather events, 

climate change, biodiversity, efficient use of natural resources, recovery and cyclical economy, employee rights and 

equal opportunities, contribution to the stakeholder economy and sustainable economic growth is conducted 

effectively. Also, important risks such as occupational safety and reliability, product and service responsibility, 

innovation, business ethics, legal compliance, fight with bribery and corruption are handled within scope of 

sustainability risk management studies due to their economic, social and environmental dimensions apart from their 

effects on strategic, operational and compliance risks. 

 

7.2. Information on the employees and reports of the Committee of Early Detection of Risk 

 

The Committee of Early Detection of Risk has two members and Mr. Erkan Durusoy was appointed as the president 

and Ms. Simhan Savaşçın Başaran was appointed as the member. 7 reports were issued for the period of January-

December 2020.  

  

7.3. Future risks regarding sales, productivity, revenue generating capacity, profitability, debt/equity ratio, 

and similar issues 

 
No significant future risks are anticipated with respect to the sales, productivity, revenue generating capacity, 

profitability, debt/equity ratio, and similar issues. 
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8. OTHER ISSUES AND EXPLANATIONS 

8.1. Explanations on material events which took place in the Company after the end of the fiscal year and 

which may affect the rights of shareholders, creditors, and other related persons and entities 

None. 

8.2. Explanations regarding special audit and public audit  

 

No public and private audit associated with the activity period was conducted. 

 

8.3. Information on lawsuits instituted against the Company which may influence the financial position and 

operations of the Company and potential consequences thereof  
 

There is no lawsuit instituted against our Company which may influence the financial position of our Company. 

 

8.4.  Explanations regarding administrative or judicial sanctions imposed on the Company 

and members of the managing body due to such practices contrary to the legislation provisions 
 

No administrative or judicial fine was imposed due to practices contrary to the legislation provisions. 

 

8.5. Information and evaluations as to whether or not targets set in the previous periods have been 

accomplished, whether or not resolutions of the general assembly have been enforced, if targets have not been 

accomplished or resolutions have not been enforced, the reasons thereof 

 
The company has achieved the targets set in the previous periods and fulfilled the general assembly resolutions. 

 

8.6. If an extraordinary general shareholders' meeting was held during the year, information on the 

extraordinary general shareholders' meeting including date of the meeting, decisions taken at the meeting, 

and transactions conducted in relation thereto 
 

The Company did not hold any extraordinary general shareholders' meeting from 1st January 2020 to 31st December 

2020. 

 

8.7. Information on donations and aids made by the Company, as well as the expenditures made within the 

scope of social responsibility projects during the year 

 

There is no donation, aid or social responsibility expenditure from 1st January 2020 to 31st December 2020.  

 

8.8. If it is a group company; the legal transactions conducted together with the controlling company, with a 

subsidiary of the controlling company, upon instruction by the controlling company or in favor of the 

controlling company or a subsidiary of the controlling company, and all other precautions taken or avoided 

for benefit of the controlling company or a subsidiary thereof within the previous financial year 

 

81.57% of the Company's capital is held by Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. The Company gets information processing 

support, system infrastructure support, and management services from the affiliates of Eczacıbaşı Group within the 

scope of the commercial relations. The controlling company did not have any influence on the decisions regarding 

the purchase of such services.  

 

The transactions conducted with the controlling company and the affiliate companies within the group of companies 

are ordinary commercial activities and there was not any transaction conducted upon instruction by the controlling 

company or in favor of the controlling company or a subsidiary of the controlling company, or any precaution taken 

or avoided within the said scope.  
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8.9. If it is a group company; whether or not a suitable counter-action has been taken in each legal 

transaction, under the known circumstances, at the time of the legal transaction mentioned above was 

conducted or precaution was taken or avoided; and whether or not the precautions taken or avoided have 

caused any loss to the company, and if so, whether or not such loss was set off  
 

Upon the Resolution of our Board of Directors numbered 4 and dated February 25th, 2021,  and the report dated 

February 25th, 2021 which was issued, in accordance with article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code number 

6102, during the activity year regarding the relations of our Company with its controlling partner and subsidiaries 

of the controlling partner was assessed according to the situations and conditions known by us and within this scope, 

the commercial relations of our Corporation during the previous activity year with its controlling partner Eczacıbaşı 

Holding A.Ş. and the subsidiaries of the controlling partner were examined in detail, and it was concluded that 

during the previous activity year, there was no transaction made with the controlling company or subsidiaries of the 

controlling company, upon instruction by the controlling company or in favor of the controlling company or a 

subsidiary of the controlling company, or that during the previous year, there was no precaution taken or avoided 

from being taken in favor of the controlling company or of a subsidiary of the controlling company; that the 

transactions made were performed in compliance with the commercial conditions and on arm's length principle; and 

that for this reason, there was no precaution that might cause loss on our Corporation, which was taken or avoided 

from being taken, and that there was no transaction or precaution to require offsetting. 

 

8.10.  Information on the Company's conflicts of interest with the organizations from which it gets services 

such as investment consultancy and rating services, and the measures taken to prevent the same  

 
None. 

 

8.11. Government incentives and supports 

 

 None. 

8.12. Related Party Disclosures for the Period of January 1st-December 31st, 2020 

The information on the Company’s related party transactions is provided in detail in footnote number 3 to the 

financial statements. 

8.13. Amendments made in the articles of association during the year and their reasons 

No changes were made during the period.  

 

8.14.Milestones during the period from the closing of the accounting period to the announcement date of the 

relevant financial statements 
 

8.15. Other 

During the period, no legislative change that might significantly affect the Company's activities took place.  

 

8.16. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

 

At the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. held on 20 January 2021, it was 

resolved that dividend amounting to TL 130,545,961 thousand be distributed (the share payable by Company for 

such dividend is TL 15,065,009 thousand), and the said amount was paid to the Company on 21 January 2021.  
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9. PROFIT DISTRIBUTION POLICY  

 

The Profit Distribution Policy of our Company is provided in the Report for Compliance with Corporate Governance 

Principles. The principles established by the Capital Markets Board are followed for the profit distribution of the 

Company. 

 

In the meeting held on March 6th, 2020, our Board of Directors determined that the distributable net profit of our 

Company regarding the period as of December 31st, 2019 was TL 72,628,550 on the financial statements, which 

were issued pursuant to the "Communiqué on Principles Related to Financial Reporting in the Capital Market" 

number II-14.1 of Capital Markets Board ("CMB") and which were independently audited, and was TL 110,145,880 

in the financial statements issued according to the legal records. 

 

As regards the distribution of the profit for 2019, the Board of Directors resolved that profit distribution in the 

manner described below be submitted to the General Assembly in accordance with the regulations of the CMB on 

profit distribution, article 37 of our Articles of Incorporation, and the principles indicated in our Profit Distribution 

Policy and by taking into consideration the net distributable profit for the period in connection with the distribution 

of the profit for the period, as indicated in the financial statements. 

 

Accordingly, it was unanimously resolved to submit a proposal to our shareholders during the Ordinary General 

Assembly for the year 2019 with regards to : 

 

1) Distribution of a cash dividend amounting to TL 50,001,000 corresponding to 47,62% of the issued capital 

of our Company, 

 

2) payment of dividends of gross 47,62% in cash to a share with a par value of TL 1, and the net amount 

found, after deducting the withholding rates included in the tax laws, to our full taxpayer real person 

partners and to our limited taxpayer real and legal person partners, 

 

3) the balance amount of TL 60,144,880, after deducting the dividend planned to be distributed from the net 

profit for the period of TL 110,145,880 accrued according to the legal records, be transferred to the 

Extraordinary Reserves, 

 

4) initiation of the dividend distribution on May 20th, 2020 

 

was discussed at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting for 2019 held on 9 April 2020 and the proposal for the 

profit distribution amount and profit distribution table was accepted as proposed; and it was resolved to change the 

profit share payment date to 14 April 2020. Profit distribution was completed on April 16th, 2020. 

 

10. Human Resources Policy and Ethical Rules 

Our company is a part of the Eczacıbaşı Group and implements the Human Resources Policy and the Code of 

Conduct that apply to the Eczacıbaşı Group companies. Please visit  https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-

toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz  for the Human Resources Policy of our Group and 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf  for the Code of 

Conduct. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
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Profit Distribution Proposal 

 

The distributable net profit for the period of our Company regarding the accounting period 01.01.2020-31.12.2020 

is TL 135,983,722, as set forth in the financial statements, which were issued based on Turkish Financial Reporting 

Standards consistent with the "Communiqué on Principles Related to Financial Reporting in Capital Market" 

number II - 14.1 of Capital Markets Board ("CMB") and which were independently audited, and that distributable 

net profit for the period is TL 97,845,711 in the legal financial statements issued according to provisions of the Tax 

Procedure Law ("VUK"). 
 
With regards to distribution of the profit for the year 2020, it was deemed fit to distribute profit in the manner shown 

below in accordance with regulations of CMB on profit distribution, the article 37 of our Articles of Association, 

and the principles set forth in our Profit Distribution Policy and it was resolved that profit distribution proposal be 

submitted to our shareholders for approval at the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting for the year 2020. 

 

Accordingly;  

 

1) No general legal reserve be set aside for the year 2020 since current general legal reserve amount within legal 

records of the general legal reserve that is required to be set aside at the rate of 5% as per article 519 of the 

Turkish Commercial Code has reached 20% of the capital, 

 

2) Distribution of a cash dividend amounting to TL 130,200,000 corresponding to 124% of the issued capital of 

our Company, and the profit decided to be distributed, 

 

- Be covered from “net distributable profit for the period” amounting to TL 135,983,722 in its entirety and 

the remaining amount of TL 5,783,722 be transferred to retained earnings as per financial statements 

issued as per TFRS, 

- According to legal records prepared as per provisions of VUK, a portion amounting to TL 97,845,711 be 

covered from “legal net distributable profit for the period” for the year 2020, and the remaining amount 

of TL 32,354,289 be covered from “extraordinary reserves for the year 2019” account, 

 

3) dividends of gross 124% be paid in cash for a share with a nominal value of TL 1, and the net amount found, 

after deducting the withholding rates included in the tax laws, be paid to our full taxpayer real person partners 

and to our limited taxpayer real and legal person partners, and 

 

4) Distribution of dividends be commenced on 28.04.2021, 

 
it was unanimously resolved that the dividend distribution proposal, which includes the issues of interest, be 

submitted to the approval of our shareholders at the 2020 Ordinary General Assembly Meeting. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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1 105,000,000

2 21,000,000

Not applicable.

According to 

CMB

According to 

Legal Records 

(LR)

3 140,701,026 102,563,015

4 (4,717,304) (4,717,304)

5 135,983,722 97,845,711

6 0 0

7 0 0

8 135,983,722 97,845,711

9 0 0

 
10 135,983,722 97,845,711

11

130,200,000 130,200,000

0 0

130,200,000 130,200,000

12 0 0

13 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

14 0 0

15 0 0

16 0 0

17 0 0

18 0 0

19 5,783,722 0

20 0 32,254,289

CASH                   

(TL)

BONUS 

(TL)
RATIO (%) AMOUNT (TL) RATIO (%)

NET (*) - 110,670,000 0 81.38 1.054 105.4

(*)

General Legal Reserve Fund

Statutory Reserves

Special Reserves

EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES

Other Resources Envisaged to Be Distributed

STATEMENT OF PROFIT RATIOS

GROUP

TOTAL PROFIT 

DISTRIBUTED

TOTAL PROFIT 

DISTRIBUTED / NET 

DISTRIBUTABLE 

PROFIT FOR THE 

PERIOD

PROFIT CORRESPONDING TO A 

SHARE WITH NOMINAL VALUE OF 

1 TURKISH LIRA

For the calculation of the net dividend amount, the withholding rate of Income Tax has been taken as 15%.

Second Dividend to the Shareholders

Net Distributable Profit for the Period Including Donations

First Dividend to the Shareholders

    - Cash

    - Bonus

    - Total

Profit Distributed to Privileged Shareholders

Other Profit Distributed

    - To Members of the Board of Directors

    - To Employees

    -To Persons Other Than Shareholders

Profit Distributed to Holders of Dividend Shares

Donations during the Year (+)

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT OF 2020 (TL)

Paid-up/Issued Capital

General Legal Reserve Fund (According to Legal Records)

Information on privileges, if any, in the distribution of profits in accordance with the articles of association

Profit for the Period 

Taxes (-)

Net Profit for the Period (=)

Accumulated Losses (-)

General Legal Reserve Fund (-)

NET DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (=)
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SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE FRAMEWORK DECLARATION 

 

The Communiqué numbered II-17.1.a on amendment to the Corporate Governance Communiqué of the Capital 

Markets Board numbered II-17.1 was promulgated in the volume of the Official Gazette dated 02.10.2020 and 

numbered 31262. Within scope of amendments to the Corporate Governance Communiqué (Communiqué), 

“Sustainability Principles” have been laid down compliance with which is voluntary. Eczacıbaşı Yatırım 

Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (“Company”) voluntarily adopts the said Sustainability Principles Compliance 

Framework as a requirement of its general targets for adherence to Corporate Governance Principles. In this 

context, the Company aims to adhere to the Sustainability Principles so published within a frame suitable for 

its fields of activity, partnership and affiliate structure, organizational, corporate and operational qualities. 

 

The Company does not have a dedicated Environment, Social, Corporate Governance (ESG) policy established 

within the Company and divisions in charge of enforcing such policies, the Company pursues sustainability 

policies, strategies and practices of Eczacıbaşı Group of which it is a member. The company and some of its 

affiliates do not have physical operations where practices required by the Communiqué may be put into 

practice, and only those affiliates engaged in industrial operations can have the chance of implementation1. The 

Company does not have key performance indicators pursued by the Company in the field of sustainability 

(KPI) ve a separate sustainability report prepared specifically for the company. Those affiliates of the company 

with production operations pursue main sustainability KPIs established by Eczacıbaşı Group. Eczacıbaşı 

Group's Sustainability Report share values that are consolidated at the Group scale and validated by the 

independent audit firm2. Since information included in the report covers operations of the Group companies 

and its affiliates, information on social and environmental practices taking place in the partnership value chain 

or their performance is not included. Sharing of such information will be re-considered after relevant systems 

and processes of external stakeholders such as customers and suppliers included in the value chain are adapted, 

in the future, to Group Companies. 

 

Although Eczacıbaşı Group's Sustainability Reports include projects, actions and initiatives aimed at reducing 

environmental impacts, information on total number of projects and financial gain associated with projects is 

not provided.  

 

The Company and its affiliates do not have legal actions filed against them or that were concluded in 

environmental, social and corporate governance matters. 

 

Main elements of management approach and studies associated with principles complied with are declared 

under the heading “Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Activities”, whereas sustainability efforts of those 

affiliates engaging in  production activities are offered a room in Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Report 

published annually. Eczacıbaşı Holding Sustainability Reports are available at the corporate website 
www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari3. 

 

Due to existence of nuances between Some of the Sustainability Principles indicated in the Communiqué and 

the Company's practices that have been routinely performed and lack of time for making necessary 

amendments until end of the reporting period, putting into practice certain principles requires a comprehensive 

assessment and field studies and existence of sectoral and reliable data at a national and international scale, 

and certain principles are not consistent with the field of activity of the Company and its affiliates, the Company 

has not been able to fully comply with the said principles. We're currently working on those principles that 

have not been put into practice yet and it is planned to put into action necessary practices. 

 

Although no adverse impact is observed in the reporting period of 2020 activity year in terms of environmental 

and social risk management due to principles that have not been put into practice or the Company has not fully 

                                                           
1 Our company is a holding and does not have industrial or service production. One of its affiliates, E-Kart Elektronik Kart 

Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.S. and Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. have production activities. 
2 Our affiliates whose data are shared within the scope of Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Report: E-Kart Elektronik Kart 

Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. ve Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 
3  As of the publication date of our annual report, Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Report for 2020 has not been published yet. 

Sustainability reports of previous years are available at www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-

sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari. 

http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari
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complied with, it is predicted that uncertainties associated with environment and social risk in terms of risk 

management owing to enhanced compliance in future periods. 

 
 

SUSTAINABILITY ACTIVITIES OF ECZACIBAŞI GROUP 

 

The Company adopts the sustainability approach evaluating social, economic and environmental impacts with 

a holistic perspective of Eczacıbaşı Group of which it is a part. The Company and its affiliates pursue 

sustainability policies and strategies laid down by Eczacıbaşı Holding for application across the Group 

companies in their respective activities, and they conduct studies in fields of action suitable for their field of 

activity and operational structure. 
 

Eczacıbaşı Group's tradition of serving is shaped by the respect for the individual, community and environment 

which is the main element of the Group values. In this context, Eczacıbaşı Group adopts this philosophy as a 

guide for the purpose of all activities and dispositions and adopts sustainability as a course of action. The 

Group endorsed UN Global Compact (UNGC) in 2006, UN's Women's Empowerment Principles (WEP) in 

2013 with a view to institutionalizing sustainability within its own structure, and after its publication, the Group 

has accepted contribution to the UN Sustainability Development Objectives as some of the main purposes of 

its sustainability efforts. The Group's sustainability understanding is striving for advancement in the 

community it operates and, above all, across the world with a more sustainable development model apart from 

its own operations. In this context, in order to contribute to sustainable development agenda at local and 

international scale, the Group becomes members of initiatives, sectoral and business world societies such as 

Business World and Sustainable Development Society, IMPACT 2030 and Business World Plastics Initiative 

which run their operations with this agenda, and contributes to efforts of national, regional and international 

policy-making on resolution of social and environmental problems. 
 

The basic commitment of Eczacıbaşı Group towards its stakeholders is materializing its long-term economic 

performance with a sustainable value production model which increases the welfare of the community and is 

based on efficiency of resources. Therefore, social, environmental and corporate management risk and 

opportunities companies of the group are exposed to are considered along with their impacts upon sustainable 

development, expectations and opinions of internal and external stakeholders of the group and a road map is 

ascertained. In this scope, throughout the year 2020, the Group conucted a study aimed at determining its 

sustainability priorities together with around 200 Group executives and around 50 participants representing 

various external stakeholder groups. During this study, after approximately 100 socials, environmental, 

economic and corporate management subjects, mega-risk trends that have an impact upon sustainable 

development and 17 UN Sustainable Development Objectives were considered, with the approval of the senior 

management of Eczacıbaşı Holding, Group's priorities on which sustainability studies to be conducted in the 

short-term and long-term will focus were agreed upon. In this scope, matters of climate and environment, 

equality of opportunity, occupational safety and reliability, recycling and circular economy, business ethics 

and legal compliance, product liability and innovation; UN Sustainable Development Goals such as SDG3 

Healthy Individuals, SDG4 Qualified Education, SDG5 Societal Gender Equality, SDG6 Clean Water and 

Sanitation, SDG8 Decent Work and Economic Growth, SDG9 Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure, SDG12 

Responsible Consumption and Production, SDG13 Climate Action, SDG17 Partnerships for Goals are among 

priorities of Eczacıbaşı Group. 
 

Management of sustainability risks, as part of Eczacıbaşı Group's corporate management structure and risk 

management model, is realized with an organizational structure spreading from Eczacıbaşı Holding Board of 

Directors to business units of the Group's companies. The The Board of Directors is responsible for making 

strategic decisions for management of sustainability. The The Board of Directors determines strategic 

orientations and corporate policies to be pursued by the Group's companies in line with risk and opportunity 

assessments conducted. At the senior management of the Holding, management of sustainability is represented 

by the Group CEO and Presidency of Human Resources and Sustainability Group that reports to her/him. Such 

organization built at the level of Eczacıbaşı Holding meets the Sustainability Strategy Team and Group 

companies composed of Holding representatives and representatives of the Group companies and 

representatives of study groups organized in the context of sustainability priorities. The Strategy Team agrees 

upon studies to be conducted in line with the strategic plan and pursues results of such studies. 
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Sustainability priorities including matters of social, environmental, economic and corporate management are 

managed by determining short-term and long-term goals. Key Performance Indicators suitable for following 

up such goals are determined. Since Group companies have differing operational structures and fields of 

activity, goals and indicators are assigned after shaping them in the context of impacts arising in the company's 

operations. The progress is tracked with CEO Sharing Meetings that are held. Results derived also are reviewed 

along with senior managers of the Group companies and assessments conducted are submitted to the Board of 

Directors. At year-end meetings, sustainability performances of companies are assessed and rewarded. 
 

Responding to expectations and priorities of stakeholders, building a regular, transparent and reliable 

communication constitute a substantial part of sustainability activities. Although annual reports contain main 

elements of sustainability activities and declarations associated with “Sustainability Principles Compliance 

Framework”, Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Report and the website are the main means of communication 

used for sharing detailed information. Corporate policies and strategies related to the Group sustainability 

priorities shaped with stakeholder opinions, short- and long-term goals, results derived from such goals with 

comparison by years and activities and innovation works of the Group companies aimed at increasing 

sustainability at business processes, products and service and achieving their goals are included in such reports 

published annually by taking principles set forth in GRI Standards as reference. Care is taken to ensure that 

explanations made reflect a balanced and objective portrait of the Group's performance and it is ensured that 

stakeholders gain access to accurate information in the easiest way possible. Performance results derived for 

goals established in terms of environmental and social matters are published after verifying them with 

independent third parties. 
 

At Group companies whose shares are traded at Borsa Istanbul, it is planned to kick off works for inclusion in 

Borsa Istanbul Sustainability Index and/or other international indices. After such works are completed, 

concrete efforts will be exerted for inclusion in such indices. 

 

Management of Environmental and Social Matters 
 

At all affiliates with production activities within structure of Eczacıbaşı Group, social and environmental 

matters are managed in line with the Group's priorities. Matters managed under environmental priorities 

include energy and water consumption, waste management, recycling and circular economy, climate change 

and greenhouse gas emissions and innovation.4 Equality of opportunity, occupational safety and reliability, 

business ethics and legal compliance including human and worker rights, product liability are considered 

within scope of social priorities. The Group's companies consider, at every point of value production cycle, 

reduction of adverse impacts in these fields and increasing positive impacts as a performance area of high 

priority. 

 

Study groups have also been established, specifically for such matters tracked within scope of Eczacıbaşı 

Group's sustainability management organization. Such study groups focusing on areas of impact such as energy 

efficiency, water efficiency, waste management, logistics, equality of opportunity, occupational health and 

safety consist of representatives of companies and facilities. Study groups determine the Group's goals in line 

with the Group's policies and business strategies. Such goals are included in companies' corporate goals and 

annual plans of senior managers. Thus, the performance to be obtained is encouraged. The Group's companies 

create management system and processes aimed at their studies in targeted areas. In this scope, ISO 14001 

Environment Management Standard, ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Standard and similar 

international system standards are commonly tracked by those affiliates with production activities. Our 

companies with production activities create their environment policies and occupational health and safety 

policies and announce them to their stakeholders. Activities performed and measures taken, results derived are 

tracked over the performance management system and consolidated at the Group level, and they are published 

in sustainability reports. 

 

                                                           
4  Within scope of energy consumption data, primary fuel resources such as natural gas, diesel, LPG and fuel used facilities and 

indirect energy resources such as electricity, steam are reported. Therefore, energy consumptions within the class of Scope-1 and 

Scope-2 emission are taken as basis for emission measurements. Scope 3 emission calculation is not done.  



ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

 

SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

4 

 

Eczacıbaşı Group entities are not subject to any carbon pricing and taxation system. During the period subject 

to report, no carbon credit was taken for these purposes. 

 

Principles of human rights and worker rights applied at Eczacıbaşı Group are set forth in Eczacıbaşı Group's 

Code of Conduct document which is part of the personnel regulation. As an organization that has endorsed UN 

Global Compact, Eczacıbaşı Group adheres to human and worker rights specified in UN Universal Declaration 

of Human Rights and ILO Conventions to which Turley is a party.  

 

For Eczacıbaşı Group's companies, customers are the focal point of the quality understanding. Primary rules 

regulating relations of Group companies with customers are laid down in Eczacıbaşı Group's Code of Conduct 

document. Information and contact details for mechanisms by which customers or other stakeholders may 

convey their complaints related to violation of such rules are also available at this document. Also, Group 

companies create their own customer satisfaction policies and develop suitable complaint mechanisms. 

 

Anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies of Eczacıbaşı Group are available at Eczacıbaşı Group's Code of 

Conduct document, too.  

 

Although there is no standalone tax policy followed across the Group which is published at the corporate 

website, compliance with accounting and tax procedures is a part of our code of conduct, and information on 

tax performance is shared through financial statements of companies.  

 
The most comprehensive information regarding sustainability policies, activity and performance results of 

Eczacıbaşı Group can be found at Eczacıbaşı Sustainability Report published at www.eczacibasi.com.tr.5  

 

Eczacıbaşı Group's companies also carry out social responsibility works for the purpose of strengthening the 

perception of sustainable development in the overall society, supporting enhancement in environmental and 

social fields apart from their own operations. Below is the summarized information regarding social 

responsibility works of Eczacıbaşı Group. 

 

 

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY   

 
The views defended and implemented throughout his life by Dr. Nejat F. Eczacıbaşı, the founder of the Group, 

constitute the Eczacıbaşı Group's fundamental principles and traditions on social services. 

 

As Eczacıbaşı Group, our primary responsibilities include contributing to improvement of community life in 

the fields of culture-art, sports, education, science and IT, and we provide our social services directly through 

organizations which we have established or in incorporation and management of which we are effectively 

involved. 

 

Culture-Arts 

Our founder Dr. Nejat F. Eczacıbaşı believed that any investment in arts and culture was a direct contribution 

to the development of the entire being of the society, including its social being, economy and policy. In line 

with this belief, we have been among the founders of the Istanbul Foundation for Culture and Arts and have 

been supporting it as a Founding Sponsor for 48 years. Istanbul Modern Art Museum, to which, we, as the 

founder, provided the first investment and project management financing and the core collection, was founded 

in 2004 as the first private museum that organizes modern and contemporary art exhibitions in Turkey.  

 

In 2017, which was the 75th anniversary of our Group, we have launched the Kültür Sanat (Culture - Art) Card 

project, aiming to increase the access of young people to culture and art activities. Starting from 2020, 

Eczacıbaşı Culture-Art Card, which can be used at Istanbul Modern as well as IKSV (Istanbul Foundation for 

Culture and Arts) events, helped 6000 university students meet the culture-arts.  

                                                           
5 As of the publication date of our annual report, Eczacıbaşı Group Sustainability Report for 2020 has not been published yet. 

Sustainability reports of previous years are available at www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-

sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari. 

http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk/surdurulebilirlik/surdurulebilirlik-raporlari
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Sports 

 

Eczacıbaşı Sports Club is an institution that has continued its activities for more than 50 years. Our club, which 

includes various branches, operates in the “Women's Volleyball” branch in order to focus on an area and use 

its resources in the most efficient way. We continue our work with our Eczacıbaşı VitrA Women's Volleyball 

Team, "Slam Dunk for the Future" volleyball schools, infrastructure and young team.  

 

Education 

 

The Eczacıbaşı Hygiene Project, which we have been conducting since 2007 in the Boarding District 

Secondary Schools, is one of the most important projects of our Group. We are going to launch the project, 

which we carry out with our Group brands, including VitrA, Artema, Selpak and Eczacıbaşı Professional, in 

cooperation with Ministry of National Education(MEB). Within the scope of the project, after the plumbing 

infrastructure of wet spaces in BDSS in need is repaired by the MEB, bathrooms and toilets are renewed with 

VitrA and Artema branded products, Selpak personal hygiene training is provided to students, Eczacıbaşı 

Professional provides hygiene products to renovated schools. 

 

Eczacıbaşı Volunteers carry out many educational and creative projects, primarily in the fields of culture, art, 

science and technology. We aim to reach 60 schools by the end of 2021 within the scope of the project, which 

we carry out with a holistic perspective.  

 

Science 

 

The foundations of the Dr. Nejat Eczacıbaşı Medical Awards were laid 61 years ago with our founder's 

understanding that “The main power that creates the future from today is the passion for scientific research”. 

Within the scope of this rewarding tradition, which is carried out with the “contribution to science, award to 

success” approach, medical scientists and projects that contribute to the development of medical science are 

rewarded every two years with the evaluation committee composed of distinguished scientists.  

 

Informatics 

 
"Turkey Informatics Foundation", in which Board Chairmanship is held by Faruk Eczacıbaşı, has been 

conducting studies with Eczacıbaşı Group's support for 25 years for the purpose of setting up the necessary 

infrastructure in order to render Turkey's transformation into an information society effective and efficient. 

Within the scope of "CODE Awards Educational Game Competition", primarily sponsored by Eczacıbaşı 

Group, which has been organized since 2017, educational games in the fields of mathematics and science are 

rewarded for the first time in Turkey. 

 

For details of social responsibility works conducted by Eczacıbaşı Group, please follow the link: 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk . 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/toplumsal-sorumluluk
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DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş.'s (“Company”) Report for Compliance with Corporate Governance 

Principles ("CRF") and Corporate Governance Information Form ("CGIF") pertaining to the accounting period 

of January 1st- December 31st, 2020 has been issued in accordance with the "Corporate Governance 

Communiqué No. II-17.1" ("Communiqué") of the Capital Markets Board ("CMB") published on the volume 

of Official Gazette dated January 3rd, 2014 and numbered 28871 and procedures and principles set forth in the 

Board Principle Decision dated 10.01.2019 and numbered 2/49, and the Corporate Governance Compliance 

Report ("CRF") and Corporate Governance Information Form ("CGIF") were adopted with the Board of 

Directors Decision dated 26/02/2021. 

 

Within the framework of the Communiqué in force, the compulsory principles to be complied have been 

complied in full. Compliance has been also provided significantly with those principles not compulsory to be 

complied. The Company aims to fully comply with the noncompulsory Corporate Governance Principles. 

However, it has not been possible yet to achieve full compliance due to the reasons such as the discussions in 

terms of compliance with some principles both in our country and in the international platform, and some 

principles not fully overlapping with the current structure of the market and of the Company. The studies are 

conducted on compliance with the said noncompulsory principles and it is planned to put them into practice 

following the completion of the administrative, legal and technical infrastructure studies in a way to make a 

contribution to the effective management of our Company. It is believed that there is no conflict of interest 

resulting from those principles that have not been put into practice yet. Our remarks regarding those principles 

we have not complied with yet or we have partially complied with, from among principles that are not 

mandatory for compliance, are as follows: 

 

- The principle numbered 1.5.2; Our company does not have any privileged share that may limit exercise of 

shareholding/scarcity rights. Utmost care is taken for our shareholders to exercise their shareholding rights. 

Given our existing shareholding structure, distribution of our outstanding shares and general practices across 

our country, no change for expanding scope of scarcity rights in our articles of association is not foreseen, 

and applicable provisions associated with preservation of scarcity rights will continue to be adhered to.  

 

- The principle numbered 2.1.3; Special Conditions Disclousures  Besides Turkish, it is also not disclosed in 

English on the Public Disclosure Platform ("PDP"). Annual financial reports are added to the corporate 

website in English as soon as possible after the statement made on the PDP. We pay attention to ensure that 

important information and documents regarding the use of partnership rights are available in English on our 

website and we will make our English website better. It will be among the issues that we will consider in the 

future, in order to create a structure suitable for making special conditons disclosures in English at the same 

time and considering its effect on the developments in the ratio of foreign partners.  

 

- The principle numbered 2.1.4; Most of the information on our corporate website is available in English. 

Annual Report, Annual Financial Reports, Minutes of the General Assembly Meetings, General Meeting 

Information Document, General Assembly Invitation and Proxy Form for the Casting of Votes which are of 

particular importance for the use of shareholder rights are also available in English on the website. It is on 

our agenda to make improvements on the website and to add more content to the website in English. 

 

- The principle numbered 4.3.9; one of our current members of the Board of Directors is female (12,5%), and 

the minimum ratio of 25% stipulated in the principle has not been fulfilled. Equality of opportunity, at 

Eczacıbaşı Group of which our company is a part, has been adopted as one of the basic sustainability 

priorities. Actions are taken based on the perspective that the long-term success is not only based on increased 

overall share of women within the organization, but also active roles played by them. The said priority is 

taken into account when determining candidate board members for our company. Although the targeted ratio 

concerning ratio of female employees at the management and time are determined (the ratio determined for 
2020 is 35%), no target ratio and time concerning female members have been determined specifically for the 
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board of directors. Specifically for the board of directors, determination of 25% as the minimum female 

member ratio and the relevant time is among our long term targets.  

 

- The principle numbered 4.4.2; Although there is no minimum time by which information and documents 

relevant to the agenda items should be provided to all board members before the meeting, within framework 

of our established practices that have been in place for a long time, based on nature of matters to be discussed 

in the agenda, information and documents are made available to board members for review, as a rule, with 

ample time allowing them to carry out necessary assessment and review. No problems were encountered in 

this regard within framework of such functioning, and there was no need to draw up a separate written text. 

We are considering the matter of drawing up written regulations after conducting a comprehensive study on 

working principles of the board of directors in days to come. Such regulation will also include determination 

of a minimum time. 

 

- The principle numbered 4.4.5; The meeting procedures of the Board of Directors are determined in 

accordance with the principles of the Turkish Commercial Code, article 17 of our Articles of Association, 

and the established practices of our Company that has been in place for a long time. In this framework, agenda 

of the meeting is determined beforehand, and meetings are held according to a schedule consistent with the 

functioning of our company, providing information, documents and data required for the meeting. There was 

no need to draw up a separate written text in connection with this functioning that has turned into an 

established rule. We have, in our agenda, the matter of drawing up written regulations on working principles 

of the board of directors in days to come. 

 

- The principle numbered 4.4.7; duties to be assumed by board members outside the Group have been limited 

as a principle. Since care is taken for electing persons who will make a contribution to businesses and 

management of our Company due to nature of their duties within the Group, who have no obstacle for 

fulfilling their responsibilities related to board of directors membership, and could spare sufficient time for 

our Company, a restriction for duties assumed by members of the board of directors within the Group is not 

foreseen in the short term. Duties assumed by members of the board of directors outside the company are 

made available to shareholders for review in a public manner with our annual reports and Company's Overall 

Information Form available at PDP. 

  

- The principle numbered 4.5.5; Some of our board members work in more than one committee. Our company 

is not directly engaged in industrial or service production activity, and it has the structure of a holding owing 

to its affiliates. Given its existing activities and organization and management structure established in 

accordance with such activities, board members sitting at more than one committee do not cause them to 

neglect their committee duties or do not result them spending insufficient time for such duties. Members 

working at more than committee also assure communication and collaboration between committees. Given 

professions, knowledge and experiences of board member, persons who are experts of subject matters are 

appointed to committees.  The existing structure does not hinder the active fulfillment of duties by the 

committees, considering the qualifications and specialties required by committee membership. No change 

has been planned yet in this regard, no change in this regard has been planned yet, and it is possible to 

consider an increase in number of independent board members in compliance with requirements of the 

Company.  

 

- The principle numbered 4.6.1; our board of directors holds an annual meeting whereby it evaluates operations 

of the Company and results thereof and overall performance of the management. However, there is no 

methodology or a written performance assessment system used for performance assessment of the board of 

directors and/or its members. Performances of all companies under the roof of the Group including our 

company are periodically reviewed, but no less frequently than quarterly. The performance evaluation of the 

company's senior management is carried out under the performance evaluation system of the human 

resources. When required, it is possible to consider outsourcing services for performance assessment of the 

board of directors form specialized institutions.  
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The studies on compliance with the Corporate Governance Principles that are not compulsory to be complied 

with in accordance with the Communiqué will continue. 

 
Corporate Governance Compliance Report (CRF) and Corporate Governance Information Form (CGIF), pertaining 

to the Company's accounting period of 01.01.2020 - 31.12.2020, as adopted by the Company's Board of Directors 

Decision are available at the Company's corporate  website (www.eczacibasi.com.tr and www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr) 

under Investor Relations/Eczacıbaşı Investment Holding/Corporate Governance/Corporate Governance Compliance 

Report ” and at the Public Disclosure Platform (www.kap.org.tr). Also, reports are available at the end of this section. 

 

 

SHAREHOLDERS 

 

Investor Relations Department 
 

Relations between shareholder and investors and our Company are carried out under responsibility of “Investor 

Relations Department” as a result of collaborative work undertaken with the relevant division.  

 

Information regarding the executives in the Investor Relations Department: 

 
 

Name-Surname    : Bedriye Burcu Nergiz 

Position     : Investor Relations Department Manager 

       Capital Markets Responsible Specialist 

Telephone    : 0 212 371 71 38 

Fax      : 0 212 371 72 22  

E-mail     : burcu.nergiz@eczacibasi.com.tr  

Type / Number of License Certificate : Capital Market Activities Level 3 License / 213335 

        Corporate Governance Rating License / 702497 

         Credit rating license / 603614 

 

Name-Surname    : Dilek Alkan Turan 

Position     : IFRS Reporting Manager 

       Investor Relations Department Officer 

Telephone    : 0 212 371 72 35 

E-mail     : dilek.alkan@eczacibasi.com.tr  

 

Name-Surname    : Ebru Tercan 

Position     : Financial Reporting Responsible Specialist 

       Investor Relations Department Officer 

Telephone    : 0 212 371 73 29 

E-mail     : ebru.tercan@eczacibasi.com.tr  

 

The duties of the Investor Relations Department are mainly as follows: 

a) To ensure that correspondences exchanged between investors and the corporation and records pertaining to 

other information and documents are kept in a proper, secure and up-to-date fashion. 

http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.kap.org.tr/
mailto:burcu.nergiz@eczacibasi.com.tr
mailto:dilek.alkan@eczacibasi.com.tr
mailto:ebru.tercan@eczacibasi.com.tr
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b) To reply to the requests for information about the corporation by the corporation's shareholders. 

c) Preparing documents which need to be made available to shareholders for information and review in relation 

to the General Assembly Meeting, and taking measures to ensure that the General Assembly Meeting is held 

in accordance with the relevant legislation, the articles of association and other internal regulations.  

d) To observe and monitor that obligations arising from the Capital Market legislation, including any issue 

related to Corporate Governance and Public Disclosure, are met. 

The Investor Relations Department submitted its report regarding its activities conducted in 2020 to the 

Corporate Governance Committee on February 17, 2021, and the report submitted to the Committee was 

assessed by the Board of Directors on February 25, 2021.  

The Investor Relations Department of the Company plays an active role in protecting and facilitating the 

exercise of the shareholders' rights, particularly the right to obtain and examine information. 

In 2020, the Company received 16 written demands of information from the shareholders and they were replied 

within framework of the disclosure policy.   

Exercise of Shareholders' Right to Obtain Information 

In the satisfaction of demands for the exercise of shareholders' rights, utmost attention is paid for compliance 

with the effective regulations, the Articles of Association, and other internal regulations, measures are taken 

to procure the exercise of such rights, and all shareholders are treated equally. 

The Company makes no distinction between the shareholders for the exercise of rights to obtain and examine 

information, and it shares all required information, excluding trade secrets, with the shareholders in order to 

properly exercise the shareholders' rights. Information is provided in a full timely and carefully way to fairly 

reflect the reality. 

Questions received by the Investor Relations Department within the year are replied, excluding confidential 

information and trade secrets, both by phone and in writing following communication with the highest 

authority in the respective subject. In order to extend the shareholders' right to obtain information, care is 

exercised to ensure that any information that may affect the exercise of their rights is presented to the 

shareholders in updated form in electronic media. Such information and developments that may affect the 

exercise of shareholders' rights are disclosed to the public through material disclosures and are also published 

on the website. 

Our Articles of Association does not include any regulation regarding the appointment of a special auditor as 

an individual right; however, pursuant to article 438 of the Turkish Commercial Code, each shareholder may 

request from the General Assembly the clarification of certain issues through special auditing, even though it 

is not included in the agenda, in order to exercise shareholders' rights, where necessary and if the rights to 

obtain and examine information have been exhausted. The shareholders have not made any such demand until 

today. In addition, the activities of the Company are periodically audited by the Independent Audit Firm 

approved during the General Shareholders' Meeting. 

General Assembly Meetings 

Invitation to a General Shareholders' Meeting is announced at least 3 weeks prior to date of General 

Shareholders' Meeting, excluding the days of announcement and meeting, by considering the Turkish 

Commercial Code, the Capital Market legislation, our Articles of Association, and Corporate Governance 

Principles. The Company's Articles of Association has been issued pursuant thereto. 

On the date when our Board of Directors decides to hold a General Shareholders' Meeting, the public is 

informed by making required disclosures, including the items of the agenda, through PDP and Electronic 

General Meeting System ("EGMS") and we publish them in Turkish Trade Registry Gazette. 

The announcement for invitation to the General Shareholders' Meeting is published on the Company's website 

and also on the Turkish edition of a daily newspaper no less than 3 weeks in advance of the date of the General 

Shareholders' Meeting using any means in addition to the methods set forth in the legislation to ensure that the 

invitation is received by the maximum number of shareholders. 
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In order to facilitate participating in the General Assembly meeting, meetings are held open to public in city 

center. It is possible also for the willing stakeholders to participate in General Shareholders' Meetings. 

Financial statements and reports including annual reports, profit distribution proposal, General Assembly 

Information Document issued regarding general assembly agenda, other documents forming basis for the 

general assembly agenda, the last version of the Articles of Association and, if there shall be amendment to the 

Articles of Association, amendment text, and its reason, are kept open for examination in the places to which 

shareholders can reach in the easiest way, including the Company's headquarters and website, as of the date of 

announcement made for the invitation to the General Shareholders' Meeting. On the information documents 

related to agenda, information envisaged for each agenda item is provided to shareholders.  

Power of attorney samples for those to be represented by attorney are announced at the Trade Registry Journal 

before the General Shareholders' Meeting and are provided for the use of shareholders at PDP and the website. 

At the General Shareholders' Meeting, the issues on the agenda are conveyed impartially, in detail, clearly and 

in a comprehensible manner; and shareholders are given the opportunity to express their opinions and to ask 

questions under equal circumstances, and the opportunity is given to discuss the annual report and performance 

indicators of the Company. 

Minutes of General Shareholders' Meetings is disclosed to the public through PDP and can be also accessed 

from EGMS and the Company's website.  

In 2020 , the Company held 1 General Shareholders' Meeting. The Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of our 

Company held on April 9, 2020, at 11: 00 hrs at Altın Damlası Meeting Room at Büyükdere Caddesi Ali Kaya 

Sokak No: 5 Levent- Istanbul to discuss the agenda in 2019 and it was carried out with a sufficient number of 

81.63%. Among the shareholders, 2 real persons and 6 legal entities registered themselves in the List of 

Attendants. Our General Shareholders' Meeting was held under the supervision of the Ministerial 

Representative appointed by Istanbul Provincial Directorate of Commerce of Istanbul Governorate of the 

Republic of Turkey. At the General Shareholders' Meeting, our shareholders exercised their rights to ask 

questions. The Company received no demand for the addition of an item to the agenda by the shareholders. No 

questions were raised by our shareholders at the General Shareholders' Meeting. Wishes and expectations were 

submitted.  

Information was provided at the General Shareholders' Meeting under an individual agenda item about the 

donations and aids made in 2019; the upper limit for donations to be made in 2020 was determined as TL 

500,000, and no change was made in the donation policy. 

According to CMB regulations, in 2020, there was no transaction where the affirmative vote of the majority of 

the Independent Board Members was sought in order to make a decision at the Board of Directors but where 

the decision was left to the General Assembly due to the negative vote of the mentioned members. 

In 2020, it was not in question the performance of any material transaction, by the shareholders having 

management control, or the Board members, or the senior executives having administrative responsibility, and 

their spouses and second degree relatives by blood and marriage, which might cause conflict of interests with 

the Company or its affiliate companies, and/or the performance of any transaction in type of commercial 

business within the subject of the business of the Company or its affiliate companies by the same on behalf of 

them or on behalf of others, or their participation in another partnership, engaging in the same type of 

commercial businesses, with the title of unlimited partner. 

In 2020, there was no transaction, notified to the Board of Directors, made by the persons who have the 

opportunity to access the Company information in a privileged manner, on behalf of them within the scope of 

activities of our Company. 

Voting Rights and Minority Rights 

In our Company, practices that make it difficult to exercise the voting rights are avoided, and each shareholder, 

even cross-border, is given the chance to exercise the voting right in a fair, easy and convenient way. With 

regards to the voting for agenda items during the General Shareholders' Meetings, open vote method by a show 

of hands is used, provided that the provisions for voting in electronic media are reserved. Each agenda item is 

individually voted during the meetings.     
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There is not any privilege in our Articles of Association regarding the exercise of voting rights and each share 

has one voting right. In our Company, there is no regulation prescribing that a voting right is to be used after 

a while from the date of acquisition. In our Articles of Association, there is no provision which prevents a 

person, who is not a shareholder, from voting by proxy as a representative. Cumulative vote method is not 

applied. 

Our main partner Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., which holds 81.57 percent of shares of our Company's capital and 

whose 11.54 percent of the capital is owned by our Company, votes at our general shareholders' meetings. 

However, our Company does not vote at the General Shareholders' Meetings of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 

 

Our Articles of Association does not include any provision that prescribes or makes difficult the representation 

of minority in management, or that provides for the determination of minority in such a way that the minority 

would be less than one-twentieth of the capital. 

 

Transfer of Shares 

 

In our Articles of Association, there is not any provision restricting or making difficult the free transfer of 

shares. 

 

Dividend Right 

The Profit Distribution Policy of our Company and the annual profit distribution proposal of our Board of 

Directors are prepared in accordance with the profit distribution statement determined by CMB and are 

submitted for the information of our shareholders in PDP concurrently with the decision of the Board of 

Directors. The mentioned proposal is available in our annual report and is submitted to the approval of the 

shareholders at the General Shareholders' Meetings. In addition, the profit distribution statement and the profit 

distribution history, as well as detailed information regarding capital increases are disclosed to the public on 

the website. In 2020, a gross cash dividend at the rate of %47.62 was distributed to the shareholders. 

Profit Distribution Policy 

Within the scope of the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code, the Capital Market Legislation, Tax 

Legislation, the relevant legislation, and the article related to profit distribution in the Articles of Association; 

the Board of Directors decided to apply a profit distribution policy within the framework of the following 

concept, and this decision was submitted to the approval of the shareholders and accepted by them during the 

Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting held on May 14, 2013. 

In accordance with our Company's Profit Distribution Policy; 

- The principle was adopted to distribute dividend as cash and/or bonus share over the “distributable profit 

for the period”, calculated within the scope of the Capital Market Legislation and the other relevant 

legislation, based on the net profit for the year in the financial statements issued within the scope of the 

Capital Market Legislation and made be subject to independent audit. 

- In our Articles of Association, there is not a specific regulation envisaging the application of giving profit 

share to our employees and members of the Board of Directors together with preferred stock related to 

obtaining share from profit, and promoter’s dividend share. 

- The profit distribution proposals submitted by our Board of Directors to the approval of our General 

Assembly are issued by considering the current profitability of our corporation and the delicate balances 

between the possible expectations of our shareholders and the projected growth strategies of our 

corporation.   

 - The attention is paid to make the profit share payments (cash and/or bonus share) within the legal periods 

and as soon as possible following the General Shareholders' Meetings so as to be until the end of the period 

envisaged within the legislation at the latest. 

This dividend policy is still applied and our Board of Directors has not made any change within this regard. 
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DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY 

Corporate Website and Its Content 

A separate investor relations section has been created for publicly traded companies of the Group in the website 

of Eczacıbaşı Group (www.eczacibasi.com.tr). Information and documents stipulated by the Corporate 

Governance Principles of CMB and other relevant legislation are available in the "Investor Relations" on the 

website www.eczacibasi.com.tr. This section can be accessed via the Company's legal website 

(www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr). 

The Investor Relations Section offers information in Turkish for the last 5 years as a minimum. Moreover, the 

documents related to the General Assembly meeting, annual board of directors reports and annual financial 

reports are also available in English. Care is taken to ensure that the information contained therein is constantly 

updated, is identical and consistent with the disclosures made in accordance with the relevant legislation, and 

does not contain any conflicting or missing information. 

The Investor Relations Department is responsible for preparing the content on the website, updating the 

information changed, and adding additional information. The studies to provide better service of the website 

continue. In addition, the website address is stated on the letterhead of the Company. 

 

STAKEHOLDERS 

Informing the Stakeholders 

Since it is a holding company, our company does not have a direct relationship with stakeholders such as 

customers and dealers. Information is provided to the stakeholders of our Company through General Assembly 

and by replying personal applications, by inviting them to meetings for matters concerning to them or by using 

the Group's website and electronic communication means where necessary, provided that it is within the scope 

of CMB legislation. Information to the public is provided both during press conferences held and statements 

made through media, and information is provided to employees, either face to face or virtually, during various 

organizations such as Strategic Planning, General Manager information and dissemination meetings (in such 

meetings, changes such as target sharing, salary, social benefits, and allowances are announced), and, when 

necessary, employee are informed via text messages, too. Eczacıbaşı Group has a portal called "Port-e" 

accessed by the employees and it is ensured that the employees can access any information and document to 

concern them, the significant announcements, changes in management, and press releases through this portal. 

In addition, the Corporate Communications Department within Eczacıbaşı Group publishes an internal periodic 

journal entitled "Yaşam" in order to increase the communication with the employees. 

Moreover, with our General Shareholders' Meetings open to all stakeholders, the information provided on the 

corporate website, our annual reports, it is aimed to inform not only the shareholders but also all stakeholders. 

The corporate governance structure of the Company gives the opportunity for all stakeholders including 

employees and representatives to convey their concerns regarding transactions not appropriate in terms of laws 

and ethics, through verbal-written and other means of communication. Stakeholders may submit those matters, 

which they believe do not comply with the legislation and are unethical, to the Compliance Board established 

within Eczacıbaşı Group via the communication form available atwww.eczacibasi.com.tr or  

www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr  and through the address uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr.  Such complaints may be 

communicated to the Audit Committee after being reviewed by the Audit Board of Eczacıbaşı Group. The 

Code of Conduct booklet of Eczacıbaşı Group is published at the address 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf. In addition, 

employees are able to submit those matters, which they believe do not comply with the issues on the Code of 

Conduct booklet of Eczacıbaşı Group and are unethical, to the Compliance Board established within Eczacıbaşı 

Group via the notification line on the corporate portal. 

 

Participation of Stakeholders in Management 

Models designed to encourage participation of Eczacıbaşı Group stakeholders in the Company's management 

are being developed. On the other hand, requests and suggestions made during meetings held with employees 

and other stakeholders are assessed by the managers, and policies and applications for these are realized. Within 

http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eyh.eczacibasi.com.tr/
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
mailto:uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
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this framework, it is ensured that the stakeholders participate in the management with information provided at 

the General Shareholders' Meetings for shareholders and with information provided through various meetings, 

Corporate Portal ("Port-e"), and electronic mail for employees. In addition, the evaluations of employees 

regarding applications are collected through the Employee Loyalty questionnaires made throughout Eczacıbaşı 

Group once every two years and whose actions are followed annually, and the employee loyalty and 

satisfaction are measured. The improvement targets for questionnaire results are added to the performance 

cards of General Managers by also considering the Company's activities. 

 

Human Resources Policy and Ethical Rules 

Our company is a part of the Eczacıbaşı Group and implements the Human Resources Policy and the Code of 

Conduct that apply to the Eczacıbaşı Group companies. Please visit  

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz  for the Human Resources 

Policy of our Group and https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-

kurallari.pdf  for the Code of Conduct.  

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Structure and Composition of the Board of Directors 

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the activities and management of the Company are conducted 

by a board of directors comprised of minimum five members to be elected among the shareholders upon the 

decision of the General Assembly pursuant to the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code.  The authorities 

and responsibilities of members of the Board of Directors and managers are explicitly defined in the Articles 

of Association. In our company, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager are not the 

same person. 

The majority of the Board members are non-executive members. A non-executive member of the Board of 

Directors is a person who does not hold any administrative duty in the Company other than being a member of 

the Board of Directors and who is not involved in the daily workflow and ordinary course of activities of the 

Company.  

The Board of Directors is comprised of 8 members, including one executive member (General Manager).  

Members of the Board of Directors can take office at companies affiliated with Eczacıbaşı Group, however, as 

a principle, they may not take office outside the Group.  

The curriculum vitae information of the members of the Board is provided in the preamble section of the annual 

report and on the website. 

It is considered that having diversity in terms of knowledge, experience, and point of view in our Board of 

Directors will make a positive contribution to the Company's activities and to the effective working of the 

Board of Directors. Currently, a member of our Board of Directors is a woman.  

During the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting dated 9 April 2020, 2 independent members capable of 

fulfilling their duties without being influenced by anything were elected among the Board members in 

accordance with the Corporate Governance Principles of the Capital Markets Board. All of the Independent 

Members of the Board fully meet the "independency criteria" specified in the Communiqué. The candidates 

for Independent Member of the Board submitted their declarations of independence and their background 

information to the Corporate Governance Committee before the General Shareholders' Meeting and all of them 

were identified as independent members by the Board of Directors. 

The declarations of independence of our Independent Members of the Board are provided at the end of the 

report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/tr/eczacibasi-toplulugu/insan-kaynaklari-politikamiz
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
https://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/_Media/Upload/eczacibasi-toplulugu-davranis-kurallari.pdf
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Information of our members of the board of directors and their duties outside the partnership; 

 

(*) The Board of Directors was elected to be in charge for one year during the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting dated 9 April 

2020, and will hold the office until the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting where operations of the year 2020 are to be 

discussed. 

 

Principles of Operation of the Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors holds meetings as required by the Company businesses, as laid down in the Articles of 

Association of our Company. Agenda of meetings of the Board of Directors is determined upon notification of 

issues, explicitly ordered in the Articles of Association to be submitted to decision of the Board of Directors, 

by relevant departments to the Company's senior management and to the members of the Board of Directors. 

Attention is paid that the information and documents related to the agenda of a Board meeting are submitted 

in such periods of time that members can carry out necessary examinations and assessments. In 2020, our 

Board of Directors held 18 meetings in total either physically or virtually and the participation of members to 

such meetings was 90.22% on average. Physical meetings are held in the Company's headquarters and the 

invitation to meetings is made by telephone and/or e-mail. No electronic portal is used for activities of the 

Board of Directors. In the event that the Board members cannot participate in meetings, they can submit their 

opinions in writing.  Material decisions of the Board of Directors are disclosed to the public through PDP. 

Each member of the Board of Directors has one voting right. No prevailing voting right and veto right has been 

granted to members of the Board of Directors. The resolutions taken in the Board of Directors meetings were 

unanimously taken by those present, and there was no member of the Board opposing to the resolutions taken. 

As no such opposition or view was declared at the meetings of the Board of Directors held in 2020, no public 

disclosure was made in this regard. 

At the meetings of the Board of Directors, the issues on the agenda are discussed openly and in all respects. 

The Chairman of the Board of Directors makes his best efforts to guarantee active participation of non-

executive members in the meetings of the Board of Directors. There is no Board member to whom authority 

was transferred upon allocation of duties. The Board of Directors holds an evaluation meeting to review 

whether it has duly discharged all its responsibilities. For the evaluation of 2020, independent experts were not 

employed.  

 

Name-Surname 

(*) 
Position 

As of the Most Recent Situation  

Duties Performed outside the Corporation 

Ferit Bülent 

Eczacıbaşı 

Chairman of the 

Board of Directors 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. - Chairman of the Board / Chairman of the 

Board of Presidents (Executive Board) of Eczacıbaşı Group / Chairman 

and Member of the Board in the companies of Eczacıbaşı Group  

Rahmi Faruk 

Eczacıbaşı 

Vice Chairman of 

the Board of 

Directors 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. - Chairman of the Board / Chairman of the 

Board of Presidents (Executive Board) of Eczacıbaşı Group / Chairman 

and Member of the Board in the companies of Eczacıbaşı Group 

Atalay Muharrem 

Gümrah 

Member of the 

Board of Directors 

Eczacıbaşı Group CEO / Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. - General Manager 

Member of the Boards of Directors at companies of Eczacıbaşı Group 

Simhan Savaşcın 

Başaran 

Member of the 

Board of Directors 
Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. Chief Legal Advisor, 

Seyfettin Sarıçam 

Member Board of 

Directors - General 

Manager 

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. Financial Affairs and Financing Group 

President / Member of the Board in the companies of Eczacıbaşı Group  

Mustafa Sacit 

Basmacı 

Member of the 

Board of Directors                     

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. - Chairman of the Audit Board / Member of 

Board of Directors in Eczacıbaşı Group Companies 

Ahmet Turgut 

Tokgöz 

Independent 

Member of the 

Board of Directors 

- 

Erkan Durusoy 

Independent 

Member of the 

Board of Directors 

- 
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Our Company offers a "Directors and Officers liability insurance" to members of the Board of Directors and 

senior executives under the umbrella insurance of the Group. 

Number, Composition and Independence of Board Committees 

Our Company has committees to enable the Board of Directors to effectively and efficiently fulfill its duties 

and responsibilities, and the committees conduct their activities within the framework of the determined 

working principles.  

The fields of duty and the working principles of the committees, as well as the members to form such 

committees are determined by the Board of Directors and announced to the public on the website. 

All the members of the Audit Committee and the presidents of the other committees are elected among the 

independent members of the Board of Directors. The CEO and the General Manager cannot take charge in 

committees. 

Considering our board structure, some of our board members take part in more than one committee within the 

scope of the obligation to form three different committees. Given its existing activities and organization and 

management structure established in accordance with such activities, board members sitting at more than one 

committee do not cause them to neglect their committee duties or do not result them spending insufficient time 

for such duties. Members working at more than committee also assure communication and collaboration 

between committees. Given professions, knowledge and experiences of board member, persons who are 

experts of subject matters are appointed to committees.  The existing structure does not hinder the active 

fulfillment of duties by the committees, considering the qualifications and specialties required by committee 

membership. 

The Board of Directors provides the committees with any resource and support required for the fulfillment of 

their duties. The committees can invite any manager they deem required to their meetings and receive opinion 

of such manager. 

The committees make use of independent expert views on issues which they deem necessary in relation to their 

activities, and fees for consultancy services are borne by the Company. In 2020, the Board of Directors did not 

get any consultancy services from any independent person and/or organization. 

The committees convene in such frequencies required by the effectiveness of their works and stipulated in their 

working principles. 

Audit Committee 

Information on Members of the Committee in charge of Audit: 

Name and Surname Title in the 

Committee 

Position Executive/non-

executive 

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz Chairman Independent Member of the Board 

of Directors 

Non-executive 

Erkan Durusoy Member Independent Member of the Board 

of Directors 

Non-executive 

The Audit Committee fulfills the duties stipulated in the Capital Market Legislation and the CMB Corporate 

Governance Principles. All the members of the Audit Committee are independent members of the Board of 

Directors. During the meeting of our company's Board of Directors held on April 10th, 2020, it was resolved 

that the committee be composed of 2 members and Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz be appointed as the President and 

Erkan Durusoy be appointed as member.  

The working principles of the Committee are announced on our website and the Committee holds regular 

meetings four times a year. Moreover, it submits its opinion, to the Board of Directors, with regards to election 

of independent auditor and its opinion built regarding accuracy, authenticity and compliance of annual and 

interim financial statements, to be disclosed to public, with the accounting principles followed by the 
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partnership also by considering the assessments of the responsible managers of the partnership and of the 

independent auditors. The Audit Committee held 8 meetings related to its activities in 2020. 

The activities carried out by the Committee in 2020 are mainly as follows: 

 

- It prepared its proposal regarding the Independent Audit Firm it determined for the audit of the financial 

statements and the annual report issued in 2020 and the reports related to the Committee of Early Detection 

of Risk, and submitted it to Board of Directors for approval. 

- It made its own assessment regarding the accuracy, authenticity and compliance of the financial statements 

of 2020, disclosed to public, with the accounting principles followed by the Company by receiving opinions 

from the Company's responsible managers and also from the independent auditor in June and December, 

and submitted it to the Board of Directors for approval. 

- Information was received from the Independent Audit Firm regarding the 2020 year-end audit work. 

- It obtained the necessary information about the internal control and internal audit activities of the Company 

from the Audit Board. 

 

Corporate Governance Committee 

Information on Members of the Corporate Governance Committee; 

Name and Surname Title in the 

Committee 

Position Executive/non-

executive 

Erkan Durusoy Chairman Independent Member of the Board 

of Directors 

Non-executive 

Mustafa Sacit Basmacı Member Member of the Board of Directors Non-executive 

Bedriye Burcu Nergiz Member Investor Relations Manager - 

It was established in order to monitor the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance principles, to 

perform improvement studies in this regard, and to make suggestions to the Board of Directors. During the 

meeting of our company's Board of Directors dated April 10th, 2020, it was decided to form a Corporate 

Governance Committee consisting of three members and to appoint Erkan Durusoy, the independent member 

of the Board of Directors, as President and Mustafa Sacit Basmacı and Gülnur Günbey Kartal (Investor 

Relations Manager) as members. As individual Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee could 

not be established due to the structure of the Board of Directors, it was decided upon the same decision that 

the Corporate Governance Committee would fulfill also the duties of these committees. 

It was decided to appoint Bedriye Burcu Nergiz, who was appointed as Investor Relations Manager at the 

Board of Directors Meeting dated November 9, 2020, as a member of the Corporate Governance Committee.  

The Corporate Governance Committee determines whether the corporate governance principles are applied in 

the Company, if not, the reason thereof, and the conflicts of interest arising from not fully observing these 

principles, and makes suggestions to the Board of Directors for improving the practices, and oversees the 

activities of the Investor Relations Department. The Corporate Governance Committee held 5 meetings related 

to its activities in 2020.  

The working principles of the Committee are found on our website.  
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Committee of Early Detection of Risk   

Information on Members of the Committee of Early Detection of Risk; 

Name and Surname Title in the 

Committee 

Position Executive/non-

executive 

Erkan Durusoy Chairman Independent Member of the Board 

of Directors 

Non-executive 

Simhan Savaşcın 

Başaran 
Member Member of the Board of Directors Non-executive 

In accordance with the Communiqué, with series IV number 63, of CMB that entered into force after its 

publication on the volume of the Official Gazette number 28567 dated February 22nd, 2013; our Board of 

Directors removed the risk issue, included within the duties and responsibilities of the Corporate Governance 

Committee, from the duties and responsibilities of this committee and decided to establish the "Committee of 

Early Detection of Risk" to work in this regard. During the meeting of our company's Board of Directors held 

on April 10th, 2020, it was resolved that the committee be composed of 2 members and Erkan Durusoy be 

appointed as the President and Simhan Savaşçın Başaran be appointed as member. The working principles of 

the Committee are announced on our website. 

The Committee of Early Detection of Risk makes suggestions and recommendations to the Board of Directors 

for the issues related to the early determination and assessment of any strategic, operational, financial, legal 

and any other risks to endanger the existence, development, and continuance of the Company; the calculation 

of effects and possibilities of such risks; the management of such risks in accordance with the corporate risk 

taking profile of the Company; reporting of such risks; implementing the required precautions related to the 

determined risks; taking such precautions into consideration in the decision mechanisms; and creating effective 

internal control systems accordingly and the integration thereof, in order to comply both with the regulations 

of the Capital Markets Board on Corporate Governance and article 378 of the Turkish Commercial Code 

number 6102. The duties and the working principles of the Committee of Early Detection of Risk have been 

determined within the framework of the Capital Market Legislation, the Company's Articles of Association, 

the Turkish Commercial Code and the regulations, provisions, and principles included in the "Corporate 

Governance Principles" of the Capital Markets Board. The Article 378 of the Turkish Commercial Code 

stipulates that, with its bimonthly report to be submitted, the Committee will assess the relevant period 

regarding the risks that may affect the existence and the continuation of the Company, will refer hazards, if 

any, and will show solutions. Within this framework, the Committee of Early Detection of Risk held 7 meetings 

related to its activities in 2020. 

Assessment of the Board of Directors Related to the Activities of the Committees 

Established by the Board of Directors, the committees discharged their duties and responsibilities set forth in 

their duty and working principles and took care to convene at frequencies deemed necessary for effective work. 

The committees informed the Board of Directors, verbally and in writing, about their works. 

Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism 

The risk management of our company is dealt with a holistic perspective, and a continuous and systematic 

process is applied. The strategic, operational, financial, compliance and sustainability related risks and all other 

risks likely to affect existence of, achievement by the Company of its short and long-term objectives and 

endanger its development and continuity are assessed at each level of the organization starting from the Board 

of Directors level. 

In order to manage the risks in accordance with the corporate risk-taking profile of the Company, process 

owners perform the necessary analysis and studies, follow up the results and report them regularly. Care is 

taken at all levels to take into account the risks and their effects in decision-making mechanisms by 

implementing the necessary measures related to the identified risks.   
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The Board of Directors creates internal control systems to include risk management, information systems, and 

processes that are able to minimize risks that may affect the Company's stakeholders, including, notably the 

shareholders, by also considering the views of the relevant committees of the Board of Directors. Necessary 

improvements are made by following up effectiveness in order to ensure integration of risk management and 

internal control systems into the Company's corporate structure.    

 

The primary risks incurred by the Company are monitored under two main titles as financial risks (foreign 

exchange, interest, liquidity, and credit) and nonfinancial risks (strategic, operational, compliance and 

sustainability), and the Board of Directors is periodically informed about these risks. Detailed information 

related to risk management is available in the relevant section of the annual report. 

 

Strategic Targets of the Company 

The Board of Directors manages and represents the Company through strategic decisions by observing, in the 

first place, long-term interests of the Company, using a reasonable and cautious risk management approach 

that keeps the Company’s risk, growth and yield balance at the right level. 

The Board of Directors defines the strategic targets of the Company, determines the needed human and 

financial resources, and audits the performance of the management. 

The Board of Directors observes that the Company's activities are in compliance with the legislation, the 

Articles of Association, internal regulations, and the adopted policies. During the Board of Directors and Senior 

Management meetings held periodically, the Company's objectives and its activities realized are monitored so 

as to include the performances of the previous periods. The current situation of the Company is reviewed and 

new targets and strategies are developed where deemed necessary as a result of existing conditions. 

 

Financial Rights  

It was resolvedthat the Independent Members of the Board of Directors elected during the Ordinary General 

Shareholders' Meeting held on April 9th, 2020 be paid a fee in accordance with the principles under which they 

shall maintain their status of independence in the light of the principles set forth in the "Corporate Governance 

Communiqué". 

Other members of the Board of Directors are paid with no fee in accordance with the decisions of the General 

Assembly. None of the Board members made any financial transaction related to the Company. During the 

period of 1st January 2020 - 31st December 2020, the Company did not give security or lend to and did not 

make loan available to any Board member or executive. 

Prior to the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting held on April 9th, 2020, the remuneration principles of 

the Board members and senior executives were put down in writing and was submitted as a separate item on 

the agenda to the attention of the shareholders during the General Shareholders' Meeting.  

Regarding the compensation for the independent members of the Board of Directors, no payment plan based 

on the Company’s performance is used. 

 

Benefits provided to members of the Board of Directors and senior executives  
 

There are long-term benefits provided to the senior executives during the interim accounting periods that ended 

on 31st December 2020 and 2019. The total annual remuneration (attendance fee) paid to two Independent 

Members of the Board of Directors is as follows: 

 

 Benefits provided to senior executives (TL)  2020   2019 
Wages and other short-term benefits  282,000 261,000 

 282,000  261,000 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INFORMATION FORM (CGIF) 
 

1. SHAREHOLDERS 

 1.1. Facilitating the Exercise of 

Shareholders' Rights 

 

The number of investor meetings 

(conference, seminar, etc.) organised by the 

company during the year 

- 

1.2. Right to Obtain and Examine 

Information 
 

The number of special audit request(s) - 

The number of special audit requests that 

were accepted at the General Shareholders' 

Meeting 

- 

1.3. General Assembly  

Link to the PDP announcement that 

demonstrates the information requested by 

Principle 1.3.1. (a-d) 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439    

Whether the company provides materials for 

the General Shareholders' Meeting in English 

and Turkish at the same time 

The English and Turkish versions of documents were not provided 

concurrently on PDP, but the English versions of the documents related 

to the General Shareholders' Meetings were uploaded to the Company's 

website following the announcement of their Turkish versions on PDP. 

The links to the PDP announcements 

associated with the transactions that are not 

approved by the majority of independent 

directors or by unanimous votes of present 

board members in the context of Principle 

1.3.9 

There is no transaction in this regard. 

The links to the PDP announcements 

associated with related party transactions in 

the context of Article 9 of the Communique 

on Corporate Governance (II-17.1) 

There is no transaction in such nature. 

The links to the PDP announcements 

associated with common and continuous 

transactions in the context of Article 10 of 

the Communique on Corporate Governance 

(II-17.1) 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827230 

The name of the section on the corporate 

website that demonstrates the donation policy 

of the company 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding/ Corporate Governance 

- Donation and Aid Policy 

The relevant link to the PDP with minute of 

the General Shareholders' Meeting where the 

donation policy has been approved 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/836939  

The number of the provisions of the articles 

of association that discuss the participation of 

stakeholders to the General Shareholders' 

Meeting 

There is no such article of such nature in the articles of association. It is 

possible for those stakeholders who wish to do so to attend general 

assembly meetings with no right of taking the floor. 

Identified stakeholder groups that 

participated in the General Shareholders' 

Meeting, if any 

 

Apart from the shareholders, members of the Board of Directors, some 

employees from the Eczacıbaşı Group and our Company, and an 

independent audit company's representative attended the Ordinary 

General Assembly Meeting where the 2019 activities were discussed. 

 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827230
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/836939
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1.4. Voting Rights  

Whether the shares of the company have 

differential voting rights 
No 

In case that there are voting privileges, 

indicate the owner and percentage of the 

voting majority of shares. 

 

The percentage of ownership of the largest 

shareholder 
% 81.57 

1.5. Minority Rights  

Whether the scope of minority rights 

enlarged (in terms of content or the ratio) in 

the articles of the association 

Hayır (No) 

If yes, specify the relevant provision of the 

articles of association. 
 

1.6. Dividend Right  

The name of the section on the corporate 

website that describes the dividend 

distribution policy 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate 

Governance - Profit Distribution Policy 

Minutes of the relevant agenda item in case 

the board of directors proposed to the general 

assembly not to distribute dividends, the 

reason for such proposal and information as 

to use of the dividend 

It was decided to distribute dividends. 

PDP link to the related general shareholder 

meeting minutes in case the board of 

directors proposed to the general 

assembly not to distribute dividends 

It was decided to distribute dividends. 

 

 

General Assembly Meetings 

 

General 

Board 

Date 

The 
number of 
informatio
nrequestsr
eceivedby 

the 
company 
regarding 

the 
clarificatio

n of the 
agenda of 

the 
General 

Shareholde
rs' Meeting 

Shareholder 

participation 

rateto the 

General 

Shareholders' 

Meeting 

Percentage 
of shares 
directly 

presentat 
the GSM 

Percentage of 
sharesreprese
ntedby proxy 

Specify the name of 
the page of the 

corporate website that 
contains the General 

Shareholders' 
Meeting minutes, and 

also indicates for 
each resolution the 
voting levels for or 

against 

Specify the name of 

the page of the 

corporate website 

that contains all 

questions asked in the 

general assembly 

meeting and all 

responses to them 

The number 

of the 

relevant item 

or paragraph 

of General 

Shareholders' 

Meeting 

minutes in 

relation to 

related party 

transactions 

Thenum

berof 

declarati

ons by 

insiders 

received

bythe 

boardof 

directors 

The link to the 

related PDP 

general 

shareholder 

meeting 

notification  

09/04/2020 0 % 81.63 % 0.01 % 81.62 

Investor 

Relations / 

Eczacıbaşı 

Yatırım 

Holding / 

General 

Assembly - 

General 

Assembly 

Minutes 

Investor 

Relations / 

Eczacıbaşı 

Yatırım 

Holding / 

General 

Assembly - 

General 

Assembly 

Minutes 

None 0 

 

https://www.

kap.org.tr/tr/

Bildirim/836

939 
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2. DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY 
 

2.1. Corporate Website 

Specify the name of the sections of the 

website providing the information requested 

by the Principle 2.1.1. 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Financial Information 

- Announcements and Presentations - Corporate Governance - General 

Assembly -  Frequently Asked Questions -  Contact 

If applicable, specify the name of the sections 

of the website providing the list of 

shareholders (ultimate beneficiaries) who 

directly or indirectly own more than 5% of 

the shares. 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate 

Governance / Shareholding Structure 

List of languages for which the website is 

available 

Most of the information, although not all, is prepared in English.  

Annual Report, Annual Financial Reports, Minutes of the General 

Assembly Meetings, General Meeting Information Document, General 

Assembly Invitation and Proxy Form for the Casting of Votes which 

are of particular importance for the use of shareholder rights are also 

available in English on the website. 

 

2.2. Annual Report 

 
The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information requested by 

principle 2.2.2. 

a) The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information on the duties 

of the members of the board of directors 

and executives conducted out of the 

company and declarations on independence 

of board members 

 

The duties of the members of the Board of Directors conducted out of 

the Company are presented in the Annual Report /  Described in the 

Corporate Governance Section / Board of directors / Operating 

Principles of the Board of Directors. Statements of independence can 

be found at the end of the Annual Report / Corporate Governance 

Report. 

 

b) The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information on committees 

formed within the board structure 

Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance Section / 

Board of Directors. 

c) The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information on the number 

of board meetings in a year and the 

attendance of the members to these 

meetings 

Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance Section / 

Board of directors / Operating Principles of the Board of Directors. 

ç) The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information on 

amendments in the legislation which may 

significantly affect the activities of the 

corporation 

There is no legislative changs that may significantly affect the 

Company's activities. 

d) The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information on significant 

lawsuits filed against the corporation and 

the possible results thereof 

There is no lawsuit brought against the company that may affect its 

financial position. 

e) The page number or name of the section of 

information about the Company's conflicts 

of interest with the organizations from 

which it receives services such as 

No investment consultancy and rating service was procured.  
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investment consultancy and rating services 

and about the measures taken to prevent 

such conflicts 

f) The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information on the cross 

ownership subsidiaries that the direct 

contribution to the capital exceeds 5% 

It is explained on page 3 of the Annual Report. 

g) The page numbers and/or name of the 

sections in the Annual Report that 

demonstrate the information on social 

rights and professional training of the 

employees and activities of corporate social 

responsibility in respect of the corporate 

activities that arises social and 

environmental results 

Described in the Human Resources Policy  and  Code Of Conduct and 

Section of the Annual Report. 

3. STAKEHOLDERS 
 

3.1. Corporation’s Policy on Stakeholders 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the employee remedy or 

severance policy 

Although intra-company regulations do not a written compensation 

policy, compensation rights of beneficiaries are managed according 

to national and international legal norm. 

The number of definitive convictions the 

company was subject to in relation to breach of 

employee rights 

None. 

The position of the person responsible for the 

alert mechanism (i.e. whistleblowing 

mechanism) 

Compliance Board of Eczacıbaşı Group 

The contact detail of the company alert 

mechanism. 

uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr  

Telephone  : 0212 371 72 72  

 Fax            : 0212 371 72 66 

3.2. Supporting the Participation of the 

Stakeholders in the Corporation’s 

Management 

 

Name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the internal regulation 

addressing the participation of employees on 

management bodies. 

Eczacıbaşı Group Human Resources Practices Manual (Personnel 

Regulation)’ does not have a public link. 

Corporate bodies where employees are actually 

represented 

1) Our company does not have permanent employees, management 

services are outsourced. 

 

3.3. Human Resources Policy  

The role of the board on developing and ensuring 

that the company has a succession plan for the 

key management positions 

 Developing a succession plan for the key management positions is 

determined by the Company's Human Resources Planning Board 

and monitored by Eczacıbaşı Group's Talents and Remuneration 

Committee. 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the human resource policy 

covering equal opportunities and hiring 

principles. Also provide a summary of relevant 

parts of the human resource policy. 

The equal opportunities policy of Eczacıbaşı Group is published 

atwww.eczacibasi.com.tr / Social Responsibility / Sustainability / 

Gender Equality, and the human resources policy covering hiring 

principles of Eczacıbaşı Group is published at 

www.eczacibasi.com.tr / Group / Human Resources / Talent 

Selection / Recruitment. 

Whether the company provides an employee 

stock ownership programme 
There isn't an employee stock ownership programme 

mailto:uyum@eczacibasi.com.tr
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
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4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS-I 

 4.2. Principles of Operation of the Board of 

Directors 

Date of the last board evaluation conducted 02.02.2021  

Whether the board evaluation was externally 

facilitated 
No 

Whether all board members released from their 

duties at the GSM 
Yes 

Name(s) of the board member(s) with specific 

delegated duties and authorities, and descriptions 

of such duties 

There is no Board member to whom authority was transferred upon 

allocation of duties. Any two of members of the Board of Directors 

are authorized to jointly sign on behalf of the Company. 

Number of reports presented by internal auditors 

to the audit committee or any relevant committee 

to the board 

0 

Specify the name of the section or page number 

of the annual report that provides the summary of 

the review of the effectiveness of internal 

controls 

 

     Information on the Annula Report, the Company’s Internal 

Control System and Internal Audit Activities, and Opinion of the 

Managing Body in that regard 

Name of the Chairman Ferit Bülent Eczacıbaşı 

Name of the CEO Seyfettin Sarıçam 

If the CEO and Chair functions are combined: 

provide the link to the relevant PDP 

announcement providing the rationale for such 

combined roles 

They are not the same person. 

Link to the PDP notification stating that any 

damage that may be caused by the members of 

the board of directors during the discharge of 

their duties is insured for an amount exceeding 

25% of the company's capital 

Insurance was subscribed under the umbrella insurance of the Group 

and the sum insured is above 25% of the Company capital. Since it 

is covered by the Group's umbrella insurance, no PDP disclosure 

was made. 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the human resource policy 

covering discrimination and mistreatments and 

the measures to prevent them. Also provide a 

summary of relevant parts of the human resource 

policy. 

Eczacıbaşı Group's policy covering discrimination and mistreatment 

and the measures to prevent them is published at 

www.eczacibasi.com.tr / Home / Code of Conduct. 

The number of definitive convictions the 

company is subject to in relation to health and 

safety measures 

0 

3.5. Ethical Rules and Social Responsibility  

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates the code of ethics 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate 

Governance - Work Ethics 

The name of the section on the company website 

that demonstrates the corporate social 

responsibility report. If such a report does not 

exist, provide the information about any 

measures taken on environmental, social and 

corporate governance issues. 

The activities carried out for corporate social responsibility issues in 

Eczacıbaşı Group are published at www.eczacibasi.com.tr/ Social 

Responsibility. 

Any measures combating any kind of corruption 

including embezzlement and bribery 

The measures taken by Eczacıbaşı Group for combating corruption 

are included in the Code of Conduct Policy and published on the 

website www.eczacibasi.com.tr/ Home / Code of Conduct. 

http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
http://www.eczacibasi.com.tr/
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The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates current diversity policy 

targeting women directors 

There is not a written diversity policy targeting women directors. 

The number and ratio of female directors within 

the Board of Directors 
Number: 1 ; Ratio: 12.5% 

 

Composition of Board of Directors 

Name, 

Surname 

of Board 

Member 

 

 

 

With Executive 

Duty 
Or Not 

Whether an 

Independent 

Director Or Not 

 

The 

First 

Election 

Date 
To Board 

 

Link to 

PDP Notification 

That Includes 

The Independency 
Declaration 

 
Whether 

theIndependent 
Director Considered 
By The Nomination 

Committee 

 

Whether 

She/he is 

the Director 
who Ceased to 

Satisfy 
Independence 

Criterion or 

Not 

Whether the 

Director 

HasAt Least 
5 Years’ 

Experience 

On Audit, 
Accounting 

And/OrFina
nce Or Not 

Ferit Bülent 

Eczacıbaşı 
 Non-executive 

Not 

independent 

director 

15/04/1993 -  Not applicable 
Not 

applicable 
 Yes 

Rahmi 

Faruk 

Eczacıbaşı 

 

Non-executive 

Not 

independent 

director 

15/04/1996 -  Not applicable 
 Not 

applicable 

 

Yes 

Mustafa 

Sacit 

Basmacı 

 

Non-executive 

Not 

independent 

director 

18/05/2004 -  Not applicable 
 Not 

applicable 

 

Yes 

Atalay 

Muharem 

Gümrah 

Non-executive 

Not 

independent 

director 

13/04/2017 -  Not applicable 
 Not 

applicable 

 

Yes 

Seyfettin 

Sarıçam 
 Executive 

Not 

independent 

director 

01/10/2016 -  Not applicable 
 Not 

applicable 

 

Yes 

Simhan 

Savaşcın 

Başaran 

 Non-executive 

Not 

independent 

director 

15/04/2014 -  Not applicable 
 Not 

applicable 
 No 

Erkan 

Durusoy 
 Non-executive 

Independent 

director 
11/04/2019 

https://www.kap.

org.tr/tr/Bildirim/

827439 

Considered No  Yes 

Ahmet 

Turgut 

Tokgöz 

Non-executive 
Independent 

director 
12/04/2018 

https://www.kap.

org.tr/tr/Bildirim/

827439 

Considered  No Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/827439
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4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS-II 

   4.4. Meeting Procedures of the Board of 

Directors 

Number of physical board meetings in the 

reporting period (meetings in person) 
18 

Director average attendance rate at board 

meetings 
% 90.22 

Whether the board uses an electronic portal to 

support its work or not 
No 

Number of minimum days ahead of the board 

meeting to provide information to directors, as 

per the board charter 

Although there is no minimum time by which information and 

documents relevant to the agenda items should be provided to all 

board members before the meeting, within framework of our 

established practices, based on nature of matters to be discussed in 

the agenda, information and documents are made available to board 

members for review with ample time allowing them to carry out 

necessary assessment and review. 

The name of the section on the corporate website 

that demonstrates information about the board 

charter 

 

The meeting procedures of the Board of Directors are determined in 

accordance with the principles of the Turkish Commercial Code, 

article 17 of our Articles of Association, and the established 

practices of our Company that has been in place for a long time. In 

this framework, agenda of the meeting is determined beforehand, 

and meetings are held according to a schedule consistent with the 

functioning of our company, providing information, documents and 

data required for the meeting. There is not a separate written 

regulation in this regard. 

Number of maximum external commitments for 

board members as per the policy covering the 

number of external duties held by directors 

Although there is no such policy, members of the Board of Directors 

can take office at companies affiliated with Eczacıbaşı Group, 

however, as a principle, they may not take office outside the Group. 

4.5. Committees Established within the Board 

of Directors 
 

Page numbers or section names of the annual 

report where information about the board 

committees are presented. 

Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance Section / 

Board of Directors 

Link(s) to the PDP announcement(s) with the 

board committee charters 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/817981 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/820333 

 

Composition of Board Committees-I 
 
  

Names of the Board Committees 

Name Of 

Committees 

Defined As 

"Other" In The 

First Column 

Name-Surname of 

Committee Members 

Whether 

Committee 

Chair Or Not 

Whether Board Member 

Or Not 

 Audit Committee  Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz Yes  Board member 

Audit Committee  Erkan Durusoy  No Board member 

Corporate Governance Committee  Erkan Durusoy Yes Board member 

Corporate Governance Committee  Mustafa Sacit Basmacı  No Board member 

Corporate Governance Committee  Bedriye Burcu Nergiz  No Not board member 

 Committee of Early Detection of 

Risk 
 Erkan Durusoy Yes Board member 

 Committee of Early Detection of 

Risk 
 Simhan Savaşçın Başaran No Board member 

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/817981
https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/820333
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4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS-III 

 4.5. Committees Established within the Board 

of DirectorsII 

Specify where the activities of the audit 

committee are presented in your annual report or 

website (Page number or section name in the 

annual report/website) 

Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance Section / 

Board of Directors / Audit Committee heading. 

 

Specify where the activities of the corporate 

governance committee are presented in your 

annual report or website (Page number or section 

name in the annual report/website) 

Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance Section / 

Board of Directors / Corporate Governance Committee heading. 

Specify where the activities of the nomination 

committee are presented in your annual report or 

website (Page number or section name in the 

annual report/website) 

No separate nomination committee was established in accordance 

with article 4.5.1 of the Communiqué number II.171. The duties of 

the nomination committee are fulfilled by the corporate governance 

committee Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance/ 

Board of Directors/ Corporate Governance Committee. 

Specify where the activities of the early detection 

of risk committee are presented in your annual 

report or website (Page number or section name 

in the annual report/website) 

Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance/ Board of 

Directors/ Committee of Early Detection of Risk heading. 

Specify where the activities of the remuneration 

committee are presented in your annual report or 

website (Page number or section name in the 

annual report/website) 

No separate compensation committee was established in accordance 

with article 4.5.1 of the Communiqué number II.171. The duties of 

this committee are fulfilled by the corporate governance committee. 

Described in the Annual Report / Corporate Governance/ Board of 

Directors/ Corporate Governance Committee. 

 

4.6. Financial Rights Offered to Members of 

the Board of Directors and Executives 

 

 

Specify where the operational and financial 

targets and their achievement are presented in 

your annual report (Page number or section name 

in the annual report) 

Described in the Financial position section of the Annual Report. 

Specify the section of website where 

remuneration policy for executive and non-

executive directors are presented. 

Investor Relations / Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding / Corporate 

Governance - Remuneration Policy 

Specify where the individual remuneration for 

board members and senior executives are 

presented in your annual report (Page number or 

section name in the annual report) 

Annual Report / Corporate Governance Section / Benefits provided 

to members of the Board of Directors and senior executives are 

explained in the benefits section. 

 

 

Board Committees  II 

 

Names of the Board Committees 

 

Name of The 

Committee 

Defined As 

"Other" In 

The First 

Column 

ThePercentageof 

Non-executives 

The 

Percentage 

of 

Independent 

Members In 

The 

Committee 

 

The Number of 

Meetings Held by 

the Committee In 

Person 

The Number of Report 

son its Activities 

Submitted to the Board 

 Audit Committee  % 100 % 100 8 8 

 Corporate Governance 

Committee 
 % 67 % 33 5 5 

 Committee of Early Detection of 

Risk 
 % 100 % 50 7 7 
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KURUMSAL YÖNETİM UYUM RAPORU (URF) 

 

Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

COMPLIANCE REPORT (CRF) 

     

1.1. FACILITATING THE EXERCISE 

OF SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS 

1.1.2 - Up-to-date information and 

disclosures which may affect the exercise 

of shareholder rights are available to 

investors at the corporate website. 

X      

1.2. RIGHT TO OBTAIN AND 

REVIEW INFORMATION 
     

1.2.1 - Management did not enter into any 

transaction that would complicate the 

conduct of special audit. 

X      

1.3. GENERAL ASSEMBLY      

1.3.2 - The company ensures the clarity of 

the General Assembly agenda, and that an 

item on the agenda does not cover 

multiple topics. 

X      

1.3.7 - Insiders with privileged 

information have informed the board of 

directors about transactions conducted on 

their behalf within the scope of the 

company's activities in order for these 

transactions to be presented at the General 

Shareholders' Meeting. 

    X  

1.3.8 - Members of the board of directors 

who are concerned with specific agenda 

items, auditors, and other related persons, 

as well as the officers who are responsible 

for the preparation of the financial 

statements were present at the General 

Shareholders' Meeting. 

X      

1.3.10 - The agenda of the General 

Shareholders' Meeting included a separate 

item detailing the amounts and 

beneficiaries of all donations and 

contributions. 

X     

It was stated in the 

agenda that donations 

and aid were not made 

during the year. 

1.3.11 - The General Shareholders' 

Meeting was held open to the public, 

including the stakeholders, without having 

the right to speak. 

 X    

Our general assembly 

meetings are held in a fashion 

open to the public, yet our 

ordinary general assembly 

meeting for activities of 2019 

was not held in a manner 

open to the public, 

considering the public health 

requirements, health and 

safety of our shareholders, 

within framework of 

measures taken due to Covid-

19 outbreak. 
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
Partial 

 1.4. VOTING RIGHTS      

1.4.1 - There is no restriction preventing 

shareholders from exercising their 

shareholder rights. 

X     

 

 

 

 

1.4.2 - The company does not have shares 

that carry privileged voting rights. 
X     

 

 

 

 

1.4.3 - The company withholds from 

exercising its voting rights at the General 

Shareholders' Meeting of any company 

with which it has cross-ownership, in case 

such cross-ownership provides 

management control. 

X     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1.5. MINORITY RIGHTS      

1.5.1 - The company pays maximum 

diligence to the exercise of minority 

rights. 

X     

 

 

 

 

 

1.5.2 - The Articles of Association extend 

the use of minority rights to those who 

own less than one twentieth of the 

outstanding shares, and expand the scope 

of the minority rights. 

  X   

Our company does not have 

any privileged share that 

may limit exercise of 

shareholding/scarcity 

rights. Utmost care is taken 

for our shareholders to 

exercise their shareholding 

rights. Given our existing 

shareholding structure, 

distribution of our 

outstanding shares and 

general practices across our 

country, no change for 

expanding scope of scarcity 

rights in our articles of 

association is not foreseen, 

and applicable provisions 

associated with 

preservation of scarcity 

rights will continue to be 

adhered to. 

 1.6. DIVIDEND RIGHT      

 1.6.1 - The dividend policy approved by 

the General Shareholders' Meeting is 

posted on the company website. 

X     
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

1.6.2 - The dividend distribution policy 

comprises the minimum information to 

ensure that the shareholders can have an 

opinion on the procedure and principles of 

dividend distributions in the future. 

X      

1.6.3 - The reasons for retaining earnings, 

and their allocations, are stated in the 

relevant agenda item. 

    X 
Profit distribution was carried 

out. 

1.6.4 - The board reviewed whether the 

dividend policy balances the benefits of 

the shareholders and those of the 

company. 

X      

1.7. TRANSFER OF SHARES      

1.7.1 - There are no restrictions 

preventing shares from being transferred. 
X      

2.1. CORPORATE WEBSITE    

2.1.1 - The company website includes all 

elements listed in Corporate Governance 

Principle 2.1.1. 

X      

 2.1.2 - The shareholding structure (names, 

privileges, number and ratio of shares, and 

beneficial owners of more than 5% of the 

issued share capital) is updated on the 

website at least every 6 months. 

X      

 2.1.4 - The company website is prepared 

in other selected foreign languages, in a 

way to present exactly the same 

information with the Turkish content. 

 

 
X    

Most of the information on 

our corporate website is 

available in English. Annual 

Report, Annual Financial 

Reports, Minutes of the 

General Assembly Meetings, 

General Meeting Information 

Document, General Assembly 

Invitation and Proxy Form for 

the Casting of Votes which are 

of particular importance for 

the use of shareholder rights 

are also available in English 

on the website. It is on our 

agenda to make improvements 

on the website and to add 

more content to the website in 

English. 

 

 2.2. ANNUAL REPORT    

 2.2.1 - The board of directors ensures that 

the annual report represents a true and 

complete view of the company's activities. 

X      

 2.2.2 - The annual report includes all 

elements listed in Corporate Governance 

Principle 2.2.2. 

X     
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

3.1. CORPORATION’S POLICY ON 

STAKEHOLDERS 
   

3.1.1 - The rights of the stakeholders are 

protected pursuant to the relevant 

regulations, contracts and within the 

framework of bona fides principles. 

X      

3.1.3 - Policies or procedures addressing 

stakeholders' rights are published on the 

company's website. 

X      

3.1.4 - A whistleblowing programme is in 

place for reporting legal and ethical issues. 

 

X      

3.1.5 - The company addresses conflicts of 

interest among stakeholders in a balanced 

manner. 

X      

3.2. SUPPORTING THE 

PARTICIPATION OF THE 

STAKEHOLDERS IN THE 

CORPORATION’S MANAGEMENT 

   

3.2.1 - The Articles of Association, or the 

internal regulations (terms of 

reference/manuals), regulate the 

participation of employees in management. 

    X 

Our Company does not have 

any permanent employees and 

the management services are 

carried out by outsourced 

services and consultancy. 

3.2.2 - Surveys/other research techniques, 

consultation, interviews, observation 

method etc. were conducted to obtain 

opinions from stakeholders on decisions 

that significantly affect them. 

    X 

Important decisions which 

have consequences for the 

stakeholders have not made. 

 

3.3. HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY    

3.3.1 - The company has adopted an 

employment policy ensuring equal 

opportunities, and a succession plan for all 

key managerial positions. 

X      

3.3.2 - Recruitment criteria are 

documented. 
X      

3.3.3 - The company has a policy on 

human resources development, and 

organises trainings for employees. 

X      

3.3.4 - Meetings have been organised to 

inform employees on the financial status of 

the company, remuneration, career 

planning, education and health. 

    X 

Our Company does not have 

any permanent employees but 

the Eczacıbaşı Group's 

policies and practices in this 

regard apply also to our 

Company. 

3.3.5 - Employees, or their representatives, 

were notified of decisions impacting them. 

The opinion of the related trade unions was 

also taken. The opinion of the related trade 

unions was also taken in this regard. 

    X 

Our Company does not have 

any permanent employees but 

the Eczacıbaşı Group's 

policies and practices in this 

regard apply also to our 

Company. 
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

3.3.6 - Job descriptions and performance 

criteria have been prepared for all 

employees, announced to them and taken 

into account to determine employee 

remuneration. 

    X 

Our Company does not have 

any permanent employees but 

the Eczacıbaşı Group's 

policies and practices in this 

regard apply also to our 

Company. 

3.3.7 - Measures (procedures, trainings, 

raising awareness, goals, monitoring, 

complaint mechanisms) have been taken to 

prevent discrimination, and to protect 

employees against any physical, mental, 

and emotional mistreatment. 

    X 

Our Company does not have 

any permanent employees but 

the Eczacıbaşı Group's 

policies and practices in this 

regard apply also to our 

Company. 

3.3.8 - The company ensures freedom of 

association and supports the right for 

collective bargaining. 

    X 

Our Company does not have 

any permanent employees but 

the Eczacıbaşı Group's 

policies and practices in this 

regard apply also to our 

Company. 

3.3.9 - A safe working environment for 

employees is maintained. 
    X 

Our Company does not have 

any permanent employees but 

the Eczacıbaşı Group's 

policies and practices in this 

regard apply also to our 

Company. 

3.4. RELATIONS WITH CUSTOMERS AND 

SUPPLIERS    

3.4.1 - The company measured its 

customer satisfaction, and operated to 

ensure full customer satisfaction. 

    X 

Our company is a partnership 

that is a holding and carries 

out investment activities. 

 

3.4.2 - Customers are notified of any 

delays in handling their requests. 
    X 

Our company is a partnership 

that is a holding and carries 

out investment activities. 

3.4.3 - The company complied with the 

quality standards with respect to its 

products and services. 

    X 

Our company is a partnership 

that is a holding and carries 

out investment activities. 

3.4.4 - The company has in place adequate 

controls to protect the confidentiality of 

sensitive information and business secrets 

of its customers and suppliers. 

X      

3.5. ETHICAL RULES AND SOCIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY 
   

3.5.1 - The board of the corporation has 

adopted a code of ethics, disclosed on the 

corporate website. 

X      

3.5.2 - The company has been mindful of 

its social responsibility. It has adopted 

measures to prevent corruption and 

bribery.  

X     
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

4.1. ROLE OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 

 

4.1.1 - The board of directors has ensured 

strategy and risks do not threaten the long-

term interests of the company, and that 

effective risk management is in place. 

X     

 

 

 

 

4.1.2 - The agenda and minutes of board 

meetings indicate that the board of 

directors discussed and approved strategy, 

ensured resources were adequately 

allocated, and monitored company and 

management performance. 

X     

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.2. PRINCIPLES OF OPERATION OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

4.2.1 - The board of directors documented 

its meetings and reported its activities to 

the shareholders. 
X     

 

 

 

4.2.2 - Duties and authorities of the 

members of the board of directors are 

disclosed in the annual report. 

X     

 

 

 

 

4.2.3 - The board has ensured the company 

has an internal control framework adequate 

for its activities, size and complexity. 

X     

 

 

 

 

4.2.4 - Information on the functioning and 

effectiveness of the internal control system 

is provided in the annual report. 

X     

 

 

 

 

4.2.5 - The roles of the Chairman and 

Chief Executive Officer are separated and 

defined. 

X     

 

 

 

 

4.2.7 - The board of directors ensures that 

the Investor Relations department and the 

corporate governance committee work 

effectively. The board works closely with 

them when communicating and settling 

disputes with shareholders. 

X     

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.2.8 - The company has subscribed to a 

Directors and Officers liability insurance 

covering more than 25% of the capital. 

X     

 

Insurance was procured under 

the umbrella insurance of 

Eczacıbaşı Group and exceeds 

25%. 
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

4.3. STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 
 

4.3.9 - The board of directors has approved 

the policy on its own composition, setting 

a minimal target of 25% for female 

directors. The board annually evaluates its 

composition and nominates directors so as 

to be compliant with the policy. 

  X   

One of our current members 

of the Board of Directors is 

female (12.5%), and the 

minimum ratio of 25% 

stipulated in the principle has 

not been fulfilled. Equality of 

opportunity, at Eczacıbaşı 

Group of which our company 

is a part, has been adopted as 

one of the basic sustainability 

priorities. Actions are taken 

based on the perspective that 

the long-term success is not 

only based on increased 

overall share of women within 

the organization, but also 

active roles played by them. 

The said priority is taken into 

account when determining 

candidate board members for 

our company. Although the 

targeted ratio concerning ratio 

of female employees at the 

management and time are 

determined (the ratio 

determined for 2020 is 35%), 

no target ratio and time 

concerning female members 

have been determined 

specifically for the board of 

directors. Specifically for the 

board of directors, 

determination of 25% as the 

minimum female member 

ratio and the relevant time is 

among our long term targets. 

4.3.10 - At least one member of the audit 

committee has 5 years of experience in 

audit/accounting and finance. 

X      

4.4. BOARD MEETING 

PROCEDURES 

 

4.4.1 - Each board member attended the majority 
of the board meetings in person.  X    

Within framework of 

measures taken due to Covid-

19 outbreak, no physical 

meeting was held starting 

from April, discussions were 

held though digital channels 

when deemed necessary, and 

decisions were taken by 

circulating them among 

members. 
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

4.4.2 - The board has formally approved a 

minimum time by which information and 

documents relevant to the agenda items 

should be supplied to all board members. 

  X   

Although there is no minimum 

time by which information 

and documents relevant to the 

agenda items should be 

provided to all board members 

before the meeting, within 

framework of our established 

practices, based on nature of 

matters to be discussed in the 

agenda, information and 

documents are made available 

to board members for review 

with ample time allowing 

them to carry out necessary 

assessment and review. No 

problems were encountered in 

this regard within framework 

of such functioning, and there 

was no need to draw up a 

separate written text. We 

have, in our agenda, the 

matter of drawing up written 

regulations after conducting a 

comprehensive study on 

working principles of the 

board of directors in days to 

come. Such regulation will 

also include determination of 

a minimum time. 

4.4.3 - The opinions of board members that 

could not attend the meeting, but did 

submit their opinion in written format, 

were presented to other members. 

    X 

It is possible to convey written 

opinions, and members not 

attending to the meeting did 

not submit anything to that 

effect. 

4.4.4 - Each member of the board has one 

vote. 
X      

4.4.5 - The board has a charter/written 

internal rules defining the meeting 

procedures of the board. 

  X   

The meeting procedures of the 

Board of Directors are determined 
in accordance with the principles 

of the Turkish Commercial Code, 

article 17 of our Articles of 
Association, and the established 

practices of our Company that has 

been in place for a long time. In 
this framework, agenda of the 

meeting is determined 

beforehand, and meetings are held 
according to a schedule consistent 

with the functioning of our 

company, providing information, 
documents and data required for 

the meeting. There was no need to 

draw up a separate written text in 
connection with this functioning 

that has turned into an established 

rule. We have, in our agenda, the 
matter of drawing up written 

regulations on working principles 

of the board of directors in days 
to come. 
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

4.4.6 - Board minutes document that all 

items on the agenda are discussed, and 

board resolutions include director's 

dissenting opinions if any. 

X      

4.4.7 - There are limits to external 

commitments of board members. 

Shareholders are informed of board 

members' external commitments at the 

General Shareholders' Meeting. 

 X    

Duties to be assumed by board 

members outside Eczacıbaşı 

Group have been limited as a 

principle. Since care is taken for 

electing persons who will make 

a contribution to businesses and 

management of our Company 

due to nature of their duties 

within the Group, who have no 

obstacle for fulfilling their 

responsibilities related to board 

of directors membership, and 

could spare sufficient time for 

our Company, a restriction for 

duties assumed by members of 

the board of directors within the 

Group is not foreseen in the 

short term. Duties assumed by 

members of the board of 

directors outside the company 

are made available to 

shareholders for review in a 

public manner with our annual 

reports and Company's Overall 

Information Form available at 

PDP. 

4.5. BOARD COMMITTEES       

4.5.5 - Board members serve in only one 

of the Board's committees. 
  X   

 

Some of our board members work 

in more than one committee. 

Given its existing activities and 

organization and management 

structure established in 

accordance with such activities, 

board members sitting at more 

than one committee do not cause 

them to neglect their committee 

duties or do not result them 

spending insufficient time for 

such duties. Members working at 

more than committee also assure 

communication and collaboration 

between committees. Given 

professions, knowledge and 

experiences of board member, 

persons who are experts of 

subject matters are appointed to 

committees.  The existing 

structure does not hinder the 

active fulfillment of duties by the 

committees, considering the 

qualifications and specialties 

required by committee 

membership. No change has been 

planned yet in this regard. 
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Compliance Status  Remarks 

Yes Partial No Exemt 
Not 

applicable 
 

4.5.6 - Committees have invited persons to 

the meetings as deemed necessary to 

obtain their views. 

X      

4.5.7 - If external consultancy services are 

used, the independence of the provider is 

stated in the annual report. 

    X 
No service of such nature was 

procured. 

4.5.8 - Minutes of all committee meetings 

are kept and reported to board members. 
X      

4.6. FINANCIAL RIGHTS OFFERED 

TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE 

MANAGERS 

 

4.6.1 - The board of directors has 

conducted a board performance evaluation 

to review whether it has discharged all its 

responsibilities effectively. 

 X    

Our board of directors holds 

an annual meeting whereby it 

evaluates operations of the 

Company and results thereof 

and overall performance of 

the management. However, 

there is no methodology or a 

written performance 

assessment system used for 

performance assessment of the 

board of directors and/or its 

members. Performances of all 

companies under the roof of 

the Group including our 

company are periodically 

reviewed, but no less 

frequently than quarterly. The 

performance evaluation of the 

company's senior management 

is carried out under the 

performance evaluation 

system of the human 

resources. When required, it is 

possible to consider 

outsourcing services for 

performance assessment of the 

board of directors form 

specialized institutions. 

 4.6.4 - The company did not extend any 

loans to its board directors or executives, 

nor extended their lending period or 

enhanced the amount of those loans, or 

improve conditions thereon, and did not 

extend loans under a personal credit title 

by third parties or provided guarantees 

such as surety in favour of them. 

X      

4.6.5 - The individual remuneration of 

board members and executives is disclosed 

in the annual report. 

X      
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

I hereby declare to be the candidate to serve as an “independent member” at the Board of Directors of 
the Company titled ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A. Ş. in the scope of the criteria stated 
in the legislation, the Articles of Association and the Capital Markets Board's Corporate Governance 
Communiqué. In this scope;  

 In the last five years, significant duties and responsibilities have not been established in the executive 
position to be undertaken, no more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or preference shares are 
held together or alone or a commercial relationship has not been established in a significant manner 
by me, my husband and blood relatives and relatives by marriage up to second degree with the 
Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or significant influence 
and partners who control over the Company or have significant influence over the Company and legal 
entities in which these partners have management control,  

 In the last five years, I have not been the partner ( 5 % or over), the employee working in the 
management position who will assume significant tasks and responsibilities or the Board Member 
during periods when service or product is purchased or sold in companies where the company has 
purchased or sold significant amounts of services or products within the framework of the agreements 
made, especially the audit (including tax audit, legal audit, internal audit), grading and consultancy of 
the Company,  

 Due to the fact that I’m acting as an Independent Board Member, I have the vocational training, 
knowledge and experience to fulfill the tasks I will undertake,  

 I will not work full-time in public institutions and organizations after being elected as a member, except 
for university faculty member, provided that the legislation is in compliance,  

 According to Income Tax Law, I’m resident in Turkey, 

 I have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience, which can allow me to make 
positive contributions to the Company's activities, to protect my impartiality in conflicts of interest 
between the company and shareholder, to freely decide upon the interests of the stakeholders,  

 I will spare time for corporate activities that can interfere with the operation of the Company's activities 
and fully meet the requirements of the tasks I undertake,  

 I have not been a member of the Board of Directors of the Company for more than six years in the last 
ten years,  

 I have not been the Independent Board Member more than five out of the publicly-traded Companies 
in total and more than three out of the Companies in which the Organization or partners have 
management control who have management control over the Company,  

 I have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected as the Board Member.  

 

09.03.2021 

 

 

 

Ahmet Turgut TOKGÖZ  
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

I hereby declare to be the candidate to serve as an “independent member” at the Board of Directors of 
the Company titled ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A. Ş. in the scope of the criteria stated 
in the legislation, the Articles of Association and the Capital Markets Board's Corporate Governance 
Communiqué. In this scope;  

 In the last five years, significant duties and responsibilities have not been established in the executive 
position to be undertaken, no more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or preference shares are 
held together or alone or a commercial relationship has not been established in a significant manner 
by me, my husband and blood relatives and relatives by marriage up to second degree with the 
Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or significant influence 
and partners who control over the Company or have significant influence over the Company and legal 
entities in which these partners have management control,  

 In the last five years, I have not been the partner ( 5 % or over), the employee working in the 
management position who will assume significant tasks and responsibilities or the Board Member 
during periods when service or product is purchased or sold in companies where the company has 
purchased or sold significant amounts of services or products within the framework of the agreements 
made, especially the audit (including tax audit, legal audit, internal audit), grading and consultancy of 
the Company,  

 Due to the fact that I’m acting as an Independent Board Member, I have the vocational training, 
knowledge and experience to fulfill the tasks I will undertake,  

 I will not work full-time in public institutions and organizations after being elected as a member, except 
for university faculty member, provided that the legislation is in compliance,  

 According to Income Tax Law, I’m resident in Turkey, 

 I have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience, which can allow me to make 
positive contributions to the Company's activities, to protect my impartiality in conflicts of interest 
between the company and shareholder, to freely decide upon the interests of the stakeholders,  

 I will spare time for corporate activities that can interfere with the operation of the Company's activities 
and fully meet the requirements of the tasks I undertake,  

 I have not been a member of the Board of Directors of the Company for more than six years in the last 
ten years,  

 I have not been the Independent Board Member more than five out of the publicly-traded Companies 
in total and more than three out of the Companies in which the Organization or partners have 
management control who have management control over the Company,  

 I have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected as the Board Member.  

 

09.03.2021 

 

 

 

Erkan DURUSOY 
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ACTIVITY REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ISSUED PURSUANT TO THE 9. 

ARTICLE OF COMMUNIQUE ON PRINCIPLES RELATED TO FINANCIAL REPORTING 

IN CAPITAL MARKET NUMBER II-14.1 OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS BOARD 

 

RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGARDING ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS AND ACTIVITY REPORTS 

 

DECREE DATE  : 26.02.2021 

RESOLUTION NUMBER  : 5 

 

We hereby present, acknowledge, accept and undertake that we are responsible and liable for Statement 

of Financial Status, Statement of Profit or Loss, Other Comprehensive Income Statement, Statement of 

Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Footnotes ("Financial Reports"), within the framework 

of Corporate Governance Communiqué numbered II-17.1, dated 10.01.2019 and 2/49 Annual Report 

including the Corporate Governance Compliance Report ("CRF"), Corporate Governance Information 

Form ("CGIF") and the Sustainability Principles Compliance Framework statement prepared in 

accordance with the principles and procedures set out in the Board Principle Decision have been prepared 

by us for the period January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2020 according to According the to the Capital 

Markets Board ( "CMB") in II-14.1 in Capital Markets Financial Reporting Communiqué on Principles ( 

"Notice") within the scope and Public Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Board ("ASB"), 

published by Turkey Accounting Standards / Turkey Formats determined by the POA and CMB in 

accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards ("TAS / TFRS")  

 

a) that, it is evaluated by us, 

 

b) that, within framework of our knowledge within our duties and responsibility areas in our company, 

these documents do not contain a misleading explanation on important matters or do not contain any 

deficiency which may render them misleading as of date of explanation; 

  

c) within the best of our knowledge we have in the duty and responsibility area your company, financial 

statements as drawn up according to applicable financial reporting standards fairly reflect the facts 

concerning assets, liabilities, financial status and profit and loss of our company, and that the annual report 

fairly reflects development and performance of the business, and financial status of our  

 

company as well as substantial risks and uncertainties faced by the company. 

  

 

Best regards, 

   

Ahmet Turgut Tokgöz 

Chairman of the Audit Committee 

 

Erkan Durusoy 

Member of the Audit Committee  

 

SEYFETTİN SARIÇAM 

General Manager 
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the General Assembly of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

 

A. Audit of the financial statements 

 

1. Our opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (the 

“Company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statement of 

profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements comprising a 

summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”). 

 

2. Basis for opinion 

 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the Standards on Independent Auditing (the “SIA”) that are 

part of Turkish Standards on Auditing issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards 

Authority (the “POA”). Our responsibilities under these standards are further described in the “Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We hereby declare that we 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Rules for Independent Auditors (the 

“Ethical Rules”) and the ethical requirements regarding independent audit in regulations issued by POA 

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Ethical Rules and regulations. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained during the independent audit provides a sufficient and appropriate basis for our 

opinion. 

 

3. Key audit matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. Key audit matters were addressed in the context of 

our independent audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

http://www.pwc.com.tr/


 

 

Key Audit Matters 
How the key audit matter was addressed in 
the audit 

Financial investments and investments 
accounted for using the equity method - Fair 
value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding 
A.Ş. 
 
The Company classified its stake in its ultimate 
parent, Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. and is accounted for 
at fair value and classified as financial investments of 
where fair value changes recognized through other 
comprehensive income in the accompanying 
financial statements. The Company also owns 
additional stake in Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. through 
its associate, EİS  
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi 
ve Ticaret A.Ş.’s (“EİS”), accounted for using the 
equity method. 
 
As a result of the fair value study performed by the 
Company as of 31 December 2020, the Company 
recognized its shares in Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. at a 
fair value of TRY1,013,832,183 in the accompanying 
financial statements. Besides, although it is not 
presented as a separate financial statement line item 
in the accompanying financial statements, the fair 
value of the shares of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. which 
are classified as financial investment in statement of 
financial position of EİS and that is calculated with 
Company’s ownership ratio on EİS, amounts to 
TRY1,221,810,219. 
 
We focused on this matter during our audit for the 
following reasons below: 
 
-  Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. financial investment that 

is carried at fair value is material to the 
accompanying financial statements and the 
related fair value study requires specialist 
involvement. 

 
-  The fair value model includes future management 

estimates (ie. weighted average cost of capital 
rate, growth rate and minority discount) where 
realization of such management estimates in the 
future include inherent uncertainties. 

 
Please refer to Notes 2.3, 2.4, 3 and 17 to the 
financial statements for the relevant disclosures. 
 

In summary, the following audit procedures are 
performed in the audit of fair value measurement 
study of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.: 
 
-  The consistency of the information used in the 

fair value study and the mathematical accuracy 
of the related calculation with the financial 
statements are checked. 

 
-  The expertise of those, who carried out the 

valuation study, is assessed in accordance with 
SIA 500 “Audit Evidence”. 

 
-  Data from external sources, such as “market 

value” and “similar acquisitions”, used in the 
valuation models are compared to the relevant 
independent data sources. 

 
-  The reasonableness of the key management 

estimates used in the discounted cash flow 
models (ie. weighted average cost of capital 
rate, growth rates and minority discount) are 
evaluated with the support of our specialists 
and the sensitivity analysis performed are 
checked. In addition, the future revenue 
estimates used in modelling are compared to 
the prior year results and future budgets of 
related companies. 

 
-  The compliance of the related disclosures with 

respect to financial investments with TFRS are 
checked. 

 
Based on the above procedures performed we had 
no material finding on the financial investments. 

  



 

 

4. Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial 

statements 

 

The Company management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

5. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

 

Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows: 

 

Our aim is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance expressed as a result of an independent audit conducted in 

accordance with SIA is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that a material misstatement will 

always be detected. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an independent audit conducted in accordance with SIA, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 

· Assess the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  



 

 

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

independent auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence.  We also communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
  



 

 

B. Other responsibilities arising from regulatory requirements 

 

1. No matter has come to our attention that is significant according to subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of 

Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and that causes us to believe that the Company’s 

bookkeeping activities concerning the period from 1 January to 31 December 2020 period are not in 

compliance with the TCC and provisions of the Company’s articles of association related to financial 

reporting. 

 

2. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted the 

necessary explanations to us and provided the documents required within the context of our audit. 

 

3. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the TCC, the auditor’s report on the early risk 

identification system and committee was submitted to the Company’s Board of Directors on  

26 February 2021. 

 

 

PwC Bağımsız Denetim ve 

Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. 

 

 

 

 

Ediz Günsel, SMMM 

Partner 

 

Istanbul, 26 February 2021 
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

1

Audited Audited
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 20 83,041,369 105,678,582
Other receivables 5 22,766,386 246,636

- Other receivables due from other parties 22,766,386 246,636
Prepaid expenses 7 776 -

- Prepaid expenses due to other parties 776 -
Current income tax assets 15 1,511,762 -

Total current assets 107,320,293 105,925,218

Financial investments 3, 17 1,206,279,307 980,475,892
- Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income 1,206,279,307 980,475,892
Investments accounted for using equity

accounting method 3, 6 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754
Right of use assets 14,884 25,578
Intangible assets 2,397 4,497

- Other intangible assets 2,397 4,497
Prepaid expenses 7 62,387 29,518

- Prepaid expenses due to other parties 62,387 29,518
Other non-current assets 9 8,657,642 7,885,315

- Other non-current assets due to other parties 8,657,642 7,885,315

Total non-current assets 2,796,100,987 2,268,611,554

TOTAL ASSETS 2,903,421,280 2,374,536,772

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

2

Audited Audited
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

LIABILITIES

Short term borrowings 17,563 12,625
- Short term lease liabilities due to related parties 17,563 12,625

Trade payables 895,719 617,292
- Trade payables due to related parties 3, 4 894,829 616,991
- Trade payables due to other parties 4 890 301

Current tax liabilities 15 - 636,868
Other short-term liabilities 9 83,057 110,913

- Other short-term liabilities to other parties 83,057 110,913

Total current liabilities 996,339 1,377,698

Long term borrowings - 15,248
- Lease liabilities due to related parties - 15,248

Deferred income 383 383
- Deferred income due from related parties 383 383

Deferred tax liabilities 15 54,664,879 43,374,667

Total non-current liabilities 54,665,262 43,390,298

Total Liabilities 55,661,601 44,767,996

Share capital 10 105,000,000 105,000,000
Adjustment to share capital 10 105,173,533 105,173,533
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss 2,012,374,792 1,580,366,570

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (*) 2,013,132,356 1,581,124,134

- Defined benefit plans re-measurement gains/losses (757,564) (757,564)
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss 1,876,525 1,876,525

- Foreign currency translation differences 1,876,525 1,876,525
Restricted reserves 10 35,622,785 35,622,785
Retained earnings 451,728,363 429,100,813
Net income for the period 135,983,681 72,628,550

Total Equity 2,847,759,679 2,329,768,776

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,903,421,280 2,374,536,772

(*) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income’ is presented under ‘Other
revaluation on remeasurement gains’ in PDP (KAP) templates.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements..



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

3

Audited Audited
1 January - 1 January -

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

PROFIT OR LOSS

Revenue - -
Cost of sales (-) - -

Gross profit - -

GROSS PROFIT - -

General administrative expenses (-) 11 (4,893,322) (5,540,758)
Other operating income 12 65,188,306 49,627,248
Other operating expenses (-) 12 (16,502,337) (6,467,034)

Operating profit 43,792,647 37,619,456

Share of income/(loss) of investments
accounted for using equity method 6, 13 96,912,943 39,332,050

Operating income before finance expense 140,705,590 76,951,506

Financial expenses (-) 14 (4,564) (6,111)

Profit before tax from continuing opration 140,701,026 76,945,395

Tax expense from continuing operations (4,717,345) (4,316,845)

Income tax expenses (-) 15 (4,717,304) (4,317,422)
Deferred tax income/(expenses) 15 (41) 577

Net profit from continuing operations 135,983,681 72,628,550

Earnings per share from continuing operations 16 1.30 0.69

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)
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Audited Audited
1 January - 1 January -

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Profit for the period 135,983,681 72,628,550

Other comprehensive income/(expenses)

Other comprehensive income
not to be reclassified to profit or loss 432,008,222 224,215,438

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at
fair value through comprehensive income (*) 225,803,415 96,770,085

- Gain on financial assets measured
at equity-based method - 35,270,350

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at
fair value through comprehensive income, tax effect (**) (11,290,171) (3,430,191)

Share of other comprehensive income
of investments accounted for using equity based method
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, net 6 217,494,978 95,605,194

Other comprehensive income (after tax) 432,008,222 224,215,438

Total comprehensive income 567,991,903 296,843,988

Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Attributable To: 567,991,903 296,843,988

Non-controlling interests - -
Owners of the company 567,991,903 296,843,988

Earnings per share from continuing operations 16 5.41 2.83

(*) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income’ is presented under ‘Other
revaluation on remeasurement gains’ in PDP (KAP) templates.

(**) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, tax effect’
is presented under ‘Other revaluation on remeasurement gains, tax effect’ in PDP (KAP) templates.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Items not to Items to
be reclassified be reclassified

to Profit to Profit
or Loss or Loss

Gains on Financial
Assets Measured

Defined at Fair Value Foreign
Paid in Adjustment to Benefit Plans through Other Currency Net

Share Share Re-measurement Comprehensive Translation Restricted Retained Profit Total
Notes Capital Capital Gains/(Losses) Income Differences Reserves Earnings /(Loss) Equity

1 January 2019 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 1,420,345,426 1,876,525 35,622,785 343,631,914 100,782,169 2,111,674,788

Transfers - - - - - - 100,782,169 (100,782,169) -
Dividend paid 10 - - - - - - (78,750,000) - (78,750,000)
Total comprehensive income - - - 187,536,776 - - - 72,628,550 260,165,326

- Net Profit for the period - - - - - - - 72,628,550 72,628,550
- Other comprehensive income - - - 187,536,776 - - - - 187,536,776

Decrease due to other changes (*) - - - (26,758,068) - - 63,436,730 - 36,678,662

31 December 2019 10 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 1,581,124,134 1,876,525 35,622,785 429,100,813 72,628,550 2,329,768,776

1 January 2020 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 1,581,124,134 1,876,525 35,622,785 429,100,813 72,628,550 2,329,768,776

Transfers - - - - - - 72,628,550 (72,628,550) -
Dividend paid 10 - - - - - - (50,001,000) - (50,001,000)
Total comprehensive income - - - 432,008,222 - - - 135,983,681 567,991,903

- Net Profit for the period - - - - - - - 135,983,681 135,983,681
- Other comprehensive income - - - 432,008,222 - - - - 432,008,222

31 December 2020 10 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 2,013,132,356 1,876,525 35,622,785 451,728,363 135,983,681 2,847,759,679

(*) In accordance with the Board of Directors decision on 15 May 2019, Kaynak Tekniği Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (‘Kaynak Tekniği’), which represents 15.86% of the capital of Kaynak Tekniği, has a total of 766,811 shares, each of which has a 
nominal value of 1 TL, and all of the shares of Company B with a nominal value of 766,811 TL. Pursuant to the principles included in the contract, it has been transferred to Lincoln Electric France S.A.S for $ 11,442,922. Due to the sale of
the asset, fair valuation differences accounted under other comprehensive income are classified in previous years' profits.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Audited Audited
1 January - 1 January -

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash flows from operating activities (15,275,437) (9,375,941)

Net profit for the period 135,983,681 72,628,550
Income from continuing operations 135,983,681 72,628,550

Adjustments to reconcile net profit (123,489,397) (84,931,835)
Adjustments related to depreciation and amortization 17,025 15,971
Adjustments related to interest income 12 (2,211,784) (5,491,086)
Adjustments related to interest expenses 14 4,564 6,111
Adjustments related to unrealized foreign currency translation differences (6,745,760) (10,642,449)
Adjustments related to dividend income 12 (22,357,844) (34,141,946)

Adjustments related to undistributed profit of investments
accounted for using the equity method 6 (96,912,943) (48,142,289)
- Adjustments related to undistributed profit of associates (96,912,943) (48,142,289)

Adjustments related to tax (income)/expense 15 4,717,345 4,316,845
Other adjustments related to profit/loss reconciliations - 9,147,008

Changes in operating assets and liabilities (23,075,151) (765,683)
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in changes in other receivables (22,519,750) (25,615)

- (Increase)/decrease in short-term other receivables due to other parties (22,519,750) (25,615)
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses (33,645) (5,006)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in trade payables 278,427 187,984

- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables due to related parties 277,838 188,636
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables due to other parties 589 (652)

Adjustments for other changes in working capital (800,183) (923,046)
- (Increase)/decrease in oter assets related with other operations (772,327) (976,466)
- Increase/(decrease) in liabilities related with other operations (27,856) 53,420

Cash flows from operating activities (10,580,867) (13,068,968)
Interest received 2,171,364 5,431,176
Tax refunds/payments (6,865,934) (1,738,149)

Cash flows from investing activities 35,872,149 138,356,796

Cash outflows related to share purchase or capital
increase of subsidiaries and associates 6 (1,326,200) (20,210,256)

Cash inflows from selling other equity instruments purchased by the entity - 63,436,730
Dividends received 3 37,198,349 95,130,322

Cash flows from financing activities (50,020,105) (78,766,587)

Cash outflow from leasing liabilities (19,105) (16,587)
Dividend paid (-) 10 (50,001,000) (78,750,000)

NET İNCREASE ON CASH AND CASH EQUİVALENTS BEFORE 
   THE EFFECT OF FOREİGN EXCHANGE DİFFERENCES (29,423,393) 50,214,268

Effect of foreign exchange-rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6,745,760 10,642,449

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,677,633) 60,856,717

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 20 105,561,332 44,704,615

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 20 82,883,699 105,561,332

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)
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1. ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 29 December 1973 in 
accordance with the Capital Markets Law and other related regulations to perform capital market
operations.

The Company’s principal activities are, joining the capital of companies which has the ability or
potential to profit and invest the stocks of those companies to other securities.

At 31 December 2020, 18.43% of total shares of the Company are publicly listed (31 December 2019:
18.43%). The ultimate parent of the Company is Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., which has 81.57% of the 
shares of the Company (31 December 2019: 81.57%) (Note 10). The control of the main partner belongs
to the Eczacıbaşı family. As stated in note 2.1 the Company classifies and accounts EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, 
Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi (‘EİS’), İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat 
Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. (‘İntema’) and E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve Tic. 
A.Ş. (‘E-kart’) as investments accounted for using equity method. 

The Company does not have any employees as of 31 December 2020 and management activities are
carried out through the procurement of services (31 December 2019: None).

The Company’s registered address is as follows:

Kanyon Ofis Büyükdere Caddesi, No: 185 Levent, Şişli, İstanbul. 

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2020 have been approved by the Board of
Directors on 26 February 2021. General Assembly and specific regulatory institutions have the power to
amend the financial statements

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Presentation

2.1.1 Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the CMB’s
Communiqué Serial II, No: 14.1, ‘Basis of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets’ (‘the Communiqué’)
published in the Official Gazette numbered 28676 on 13 June 2013. According to the article 5 of the
Communiqué, financial statements are prepared in accordance with Turkish Accounting
Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (‘TAS/TFRS’) and its addendum and interpretations
(‘TAS/TFRS’) issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (‘POA’).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with the “2019 TFRS
Taxonomy” which was published on 15 April 2019 by POA and the format and mandatory information
recommended by CMB.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

2.1.1 Statement of compliance (Continued)

In accordance with the decleration of CMB, based on the decision taken at 17 March 2005, that there is
no need to inflation accounting application for publicly listed companies effective after 1 January 2005.
Financial statements of the Company were prepared within the framework of this decision.

The Company maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles in the Turkish Commercial Code (‘TCC’) and tax legislation.
Subsidiaries of the company which currently operate in foreign countries maintain their books of account
and prepare their financial statements in accordance with the local tax legislations of the countries where
they are operating and they maintain their books of account and prepare their financial statements in
terms of national currency.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

2.1.2 Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The financial statements are presented in TL, which is the functional currency of the Company and the
presentation currency of the Company.

2.1.3 Comparative information and restatement of prior period financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in the comparative prior period to enable the determination
of changes in financial position and performance. In order to comply with the presentation of current
period financial statements, necessary comparative figures are reclassified, and significant differences
are explained.

2.1.4 Investments accounted for using equity method

The Company accounts its associates using the equity method (‘equity method’) under the following
conditions.

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which the
investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Equity method is applied when the investor has significant influence over the investee. Under the equity
accounting method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate or a joint venture is recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of the investee’s profit or loss
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary
for changes in the investor’s proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee’s
other comprehensive income (Note 6).
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

According to TAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, after application of the equity
method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its
investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in the income
statement. Detailed explanations regarding to the impairment in assets are presented in Note 2.3.

Nominal capital of the associates accounted for using the equity method and the Company’s shares in
those associates’ shares are presented below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Direct Stock Direct Stock

Nominal shareholding market Nominal shareholding market
capital of parent value capital of parent value

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal     
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.     685,260,000 %29.69 1,517,764,557 685,260,000 %29.67 754,304,742
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri        
   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 19,440,000 %46.21 358,430,638 19,440,000 %46.21 83,184,654
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri
   Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 3,110,000 %31.01 - 3,110,000 %31.01 -

Assets, liabilities, equity, gross profit and profit/(losses) of associates included in the financial
statements by equity method as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Total Total
31 December 2020 assets liabilities Equity Gross profit Profit/(Loss)

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi 5,970,231,000 687,923,000 5,282,308,000 300,669,000 322,114,000
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri   
   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 362,921,159 335,807,963 27,113,196 81,287,751 2,732,689
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri
   San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 109,718,035 127,205,791 (17,487,756) 20,866,671 (14,378,120)

Total Total
31 December 2019 assets liabilities Equity Gross profit Profit/(Loss)

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi 4,838,337,000 561,079,000 4,277,258,000 315,814,000 162,728,000
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri  
   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 411,005,948 386,625,441 24,380,507 77,588,303 (289,513)
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri
   San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 82,701,835 87,039,793 (4,337,958) 47,816,328 16,917,939

2.1.5 Changes in accounting policies

Significant changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and prior period financial
statements are restated.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Accounting policy changes arising from the first application of a new TFRS are applied retrospectively
or prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions of that TFRS. Significant accounting
errors (if any) are applied retrospectively and prior period financial statements are restated. Changes in
accounting estimates are applied in the current period when the change is made only for a period, and
both in the period when the change is made and prospectively.

2.1.6 Changes in the accounting estimates and errors

If changes in estimates are for only one period, changes are applied to the current year but if changes in
estimates are for the following periods, changes are applied both to the current and following years
prospectively, The Company did not have any major changes in the accounting estimates during the
current year.

Significant accounting errors are corrected retrospectively, by restating the prior period financial
statements.

2.1.7 Going concern

The Company prepared its consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

2.1.8 Segment reporting

Since the operations of the company is in Turkey and operates in one field segment reporting is not
prepared for the period.

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting policies of the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2020 have been
applied consistently to those used in the prior year except for the new and amended TFRS standards and
TFRYK interpretations as of 1 January 2020.

a) Standards, amendments and interpretations as of 31 December 2020:

- Amendments to TAS 1 and TAS 8 on the definition of material; effective from Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. These amendments to TAS 1, “Presentation of financial
statements”, and TAS 8, “Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors”, and
consequential amendments to other TFRSs:

- Use a consistent definition of materiality throughout TFRSs and the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting,

- Clarify the explanation of the definition of material and
- Incorporate some of the guidance in TAS 1 about immaterial information.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

The mentioned amendment does not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Company.

● Amendments to TFRS 3 - definition of a business; effective from Annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2020. This amendment revises the definition of a business. According to
feedback received by the IASB, application of the current guidance is commonly thought to be
too complex, and it results in too many transactions qualifying as business combinations. The
mentioned amendment does not have a significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Company.

● Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39 and TFRS 7 - Interest rate benchmark reform; effective
from Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. These amendments provide certain
reliefs in connection with interest rate benchmark reform. The reliefs relate to hedge accounting
and have the effect that IBOR reform should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate.
However, any hedge ineffectiveness should continue to be recorded in the income statement.
Given the pervasive nature of hedges involving IBOR-based contracts, the reliefs will affect
companies in all industries. The mentioned amendment does not have a significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Company.

- TFRS 16, changes related “Leases - COVID 19 related lease concessions”; Effective
from annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Due to the COVID-19 outbreak,
some privileges were provided to lessees in lease payments. These concessions can take a
variety of forms, including suspension or postponement of lease payments. On 28 May
2020, with the amendment to the TFRS 16 Leases standard, the IASB introduced an
optional facilitating application for lessees to not evaluate whether the privileges granted
due to COVID-19 in lease payments are a change in the lease. Lessees may choose to
account for such lease concessions in accordance with the provisions that apply in the
absence of a change to the lease. This ease of implementation often causes the lease
concession to be accounted for as variable lease payment in periods when an event or
condition that triggers a reduction in lease payments occurs. The mentioned amendment
does not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Company.

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at
31 December 2020:

● TFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts”; Effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021. This standard replaces TFRS 4, which currently permits a wide variety of practices in
accounting for insurance contracts. TFRS 17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all
entities that issue insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation
features. It is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Company.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

● Amendments to TAS 1, “Presentation of financial statements” on classification of liabilities;
effective from 1 January 2022. These narrow-scope amendments to TAS 1, “Presentation of
financial statements”, clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current,
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected
by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a
waiver or a breach of covenant). The amendment also clarifies what TAS 1 means when it refers
to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. The effects of this change on the financial position and
performance of the Company are evaluated.

- Narrow amendments in TFRS 3, TAS 16, TAS 37 and some annual improvements in
TFRS 1, TFRS 9, TAS 41 and TFRS 16; effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022.

o Amendments to TFRS 3, “Business Combinations”; this amendment updates a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in TFRS 3 without
changing the accounting requirements for business combinations.

o Amendments to TAS 16, “Tangible fixed assets”; prohibits a company from deducting
the income from the sale of manufactured products from the amount of the tangible fixed
asset until the asset is ready for use. Instead, the company will reflect such sales revenue
and related cost in profit or loss.

o Amendments to TAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; this amendment specifies what costs a company involves when deciding
whether to lose from a contract.

Annual improvements, TFRS 1, “The first implementation of Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards” make minor changes in the explanatory examples of TFRS 9, “Financial
Instruments”, TAS 41, “Agricultural Activities” and TFRS 16.

The effects of this change on the financial position and performance of the Company are being
evaluated.

 Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 and TFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform Phase 2; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The Phase
2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms, including the
replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one. The effects of this change on the
financial position and performance of the Company are being evaluated.

 Amendments to TFRS 17 and TFRS 4, “Insurance contracts”, deferral of TFRS 9;
effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. These amendments defer
the date of application of TFRS 17 by two years to 1 January 2023 and change the fixed date of
the temporary exemption in TFRS 4 from applying TFRS 9, Financial Instrument until 1 January
2023. The effects of this change on the financial position and performance of the Company are
being evaluated.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Except for the equity method principles explained in Note 2.1.4, the significant accounting policies
applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank deposits and short-term investments, which can
easily be converted into cash for a known amount, and which have high liquidity and insignificant
conversion risk with maturities of three months or less (Note 20).

Financial assets

Classification and measurement

Company classified its financial assets in three categories; financial assets carried at amortized cost,
financial assets carried at fair value though profit of loss, financial assets carried at fair value though
other comprehensive income. Classification is performed in accordance with the business model
determined based on the purpose of benefits from financial assets and expected cash flows. Management
performs the classification of financial assets at the acquisition date.

a) Assets recognized at amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, whose payments are fixed or predetermined, which are not actively
traded and which are not derivative instruments are measured at amortized cost. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities more than 12 months after the balance sheet date. Those with
maturities more than 12 months are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s financial assets
carried at amortized cost comprise ‘trade receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement
of financial position. In addition, with recourse factoring receivables classified in trade receivables are
classified as financial assets carried at amortized cost since collection risk for those receivables are not
transferred to counterparty.

Impairment

Company has applied simplified approach and used impairment matrix for the calculation of impairment
on its receivables carried at amortized cost, since they do not comprise of any significant finance
component. In accordance with this method, if any provision provided to the trade receivables as a result
of a specific events, Company measures expected credit loss from these receivables by the life-time
expected credit loss. The calculation of expected credit loss is performed based on the past experience
of the company and its expectations for the future indications.

b) Financial assets carried at fair value

Assets that are held by the management for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets are measured at their fair value. If the management do not plan to dispose these assets
in 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are classified as non-current assets. Company make a
choice for the equity instruments during the initial recognition and elect profit or loss or other
comprehensive income for the presentation of fair value gain and loss.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

i) Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss comprise of ‘derivative instruments’ in the
statement of financial position. Derivative instruments are recognized as asset when the fair value of the
instrument is positive, as liability when the fair value of the instrument is negative. Company’s financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss consist of forward contracts, currency swaps and cross
currency fixed interest rate swap.

ii) Financial assets carried at value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise of ‘financial assets’
in the statement of financial position. In addition, trade receivables collected from factoring companies
due to without recourse factoring activities are classified as financial assets carried at fair value through
other comprehensive income since the collection risk of these receivables are transferred to the factoring
companies and management’s business plan for them is ‘hold to sell’. When the financial assets carried
at fair value through other comprehensive income are sold, fair value gain or loss classified in other
comprehensive income is classified to retained earnings.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date, Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from
translation of monetary assets and liabilities are reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statements of profit or loss are determined by dividing net profit by
the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding during the year concerned
(Note 16).

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares ‘bonus
shares’ to existing shareholders from retained earnings, For the purpose of earnings per share computations,
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus
shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by giving them a retroactive effect for the year in
which they were issued and for each earlier period.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent events cover any events which arise between the reporting date and the statement of
financial position date, even if they occurred after any declaration of the net profit for the period or
specific financial information publicly disclosed.

The Company adjusts its financial statements if such subsequent events arise which require an
adjustment to the financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements,

a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

i. Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
ii. Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
iii. Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity,

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

ii. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),

iii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party,
iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity,
v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity, If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity,

vi. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a),
vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged (Note 3).

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably (Note 8).
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation and deferred income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible, The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting.

In accordance with the regulation numbered 7061, published in Official Gazette on 5 December 2017,’
Law on the Amendment of Some Tax Acts and Some Other Laws’, corporate tax rate for the years 2018,
2019 and 2020 has increased from 20% to 22%. Therefore, deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
31 December 2019 are calculated with 22% tax rate for the temporary differences which will be realized
in 2019 and 2020, and with 20% tax for those which will be realized after 2021 and onwards, however
since the effect of change in tax rate on financial statements is immaterial, calculated amount is not
accounted in financial statements as of 31 December 2020.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which are used in the
computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized, Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future (Note 15).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively, Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as capital, Dividends payable on ordinary shares are recognized as an
appropriation of the profit in the period in which they are declared,

Impairment of assets

Except for financial asset,all type of assets are subject to tests for indicators of impairment, Accordingly,
when the carrying value of the assets exceeds its net recoverable value an impairment is recognized, Net
recoverable value is the higher of the net sales value or value in use, Value in use of an asset is estimated
as the total of projected future cash inflows and salvage value at the end of the useful life of the asset.

The Company management assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired, If any such indication exists, the Company management estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset and recognizes an impairment loss for the exceed portion of the asset
carrying value, In the subsequent period, if there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased, the impairment
may is reversed under certain conditions.

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the Company considers, as
a minimum, the following indications:

(a) There are observable indications that the asset’s value has declined during the period significantly
more than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use,

(b) Significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken place during the period, or
will take place soon, in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
entity operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated,

(c) Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the
period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating an asset’s value
in use and decrease the asset’s recoverable amount materially,

(d) The carrying amount of the net assets of the entity is more than its market capitalisation.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

The Company considers for all of its assets, except goodwill, whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may
have decreased at each reporting period and, if such a conditions exists, the Company reverses the
impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an individual asset, Unless the related asset is accounted
and measured under a different standard, reversal of the impairment is accounted under statement of
comprehensive income.

TFRS 16, “Leases” standard

The Company as the lessee

At inception of a contract, the Company assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period in exchange for consideration. The Company considers the following matters when assessing
whether the agreement transfers the right to control the use of an identified asset for a limited period:

a) The contract contains an identified asset: - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly.
b) The asset should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically

distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, the asset is not identified.
c) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of an

asset throughout the period of use and
d) The Company has the right to direct use of the asset. The Company concludes to have the right

of use, when it is predetermined how and for what purpose the Company will use the asset. The
Company has the right to direct use of asset if either:

i. The Company has the right to operate the asset (or to direct others to operate the asset in a
manner that it determines) throughout the period of use, without the supplier having the
right to change those operating instructions; or

ii. The customer designed the asset (or specific aspects of the asset) in a way that
predetermines how and for what purpose the asset will be used throughout the period of
use.

At the commencement date, the Company recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in financial
statements.

Right-of-use asset

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise:

a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,
c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

To apply a cost model, the Company measure the right-of-use asset at cost:

a) Less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and
b) Adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The Company apply the depreciation requirements in TAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment” in
depreciating the right-of-use asset, subject to the requirements. If the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciate the right-of-use asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, The Company
depreciate the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The Company apply TAS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’ to determine whether the right-of-use asset is
impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

Lease liability

At the commencement date, the Company measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The alternative borrowing rate has been determined by
taking into account the borrowing rates of the Company companies on the contract dates.

a) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable,
b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or

rate as at the commencement date,
c) The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and
d) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising

an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Company measure the lease liability by:

a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
c) Remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect

revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. The Company determine the
revised discount rate as the interest rate implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, if that
rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of reassessment, if
the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. After the commencement date, The
Company remeasure the lease liability to reflect changes to the lease payments. The Company recognize
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The duration of the contracts constituting the rental liability of the company varies between 1 and 3
years.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Extension and early termination options

In determining the lease liability, the Company considers the extension and termination options. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable both by the Company and by the
respective lessor. Extension and termination options are included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended and the options are enforcable by Company’s initiative in the contract.
The Company remeasures the lease term, if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances
occurs which affects the initial assessment. As result of the evaluations performed in the current period,
there is no lease obligation or right of use assets arising from the inclusion of extension and early
termination options in the lease period.

Variable lease payments

Lease payments arising from a portion of the Company’s lease agreements consist of variable lease
payments. These variable lease payments, which are not covered by the TFRS 16 standard, are recorded
as rent expense in the income statement in the relevant period. In the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the Company does not have any contracts with variable lease payments.

Practices that facilitate

Short-term lease contracts with a lease term of 12 months or less and contracts for information
technology equipment leases (predominantly printers, laptops, mobile phones, etc.) determined by the
Company as low value are evaluated within the scope of the exemption granted by TFRS 16, "Leases"
standard. Payments related to these contracts continue to be recognized as an expense in the period they
occur. A single discount rate has been applied to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar asset class in a similar
economic environment).

The Company - as the lessor

All the leasings of the Company as lessor are operational leasings. For operational leasings, leased assets
are classified under investment properties, tangible assets or other current assets in the balance sheet and
rental income is accounted in the income statement in equal amounts for the leasing period. Rental
income is accounted in the consolidated income statement for the leasing period on a straight-line basis.

The Company distributes an amount that takes place in an agreement which includes an item that has or
has not one or more extra leasing qualities along with a leasing item through applying the TFRS 15
“Revenue arising from agreements made with customers” standard.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.4 Significant accounting assumptions, estimations and judgements

Preparation of financial statements requires the usage of estimations and assumptions which may affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the statement of financial position date, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities and reported amounts of income and expenses during financial period,
Although the estimations and assumptions are based on the best estimates of the management’s existing
incidents and operations, they may differ from the actual results, Judgments that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a
significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
include:

Determination the effect of recoverable amount

The Company, assess its assets that are accounted in its financial statements at each balance sheet date
in order to determine whether any of the assets’s carrying value exceed the amount to be recovered
through use or sale of the asset, In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired
and in determing the recoverable amount of the asset, the Company uses both internal and external
sources, Within this context, the Company estimates, at each balance sheet date, cash inflows and
outflows through use or sale of assets and when the carrying value of any asset exceed the recoverable
amount, the Company reduces the carrying value of the asset to its recoverable amount.

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income:

The company subsequently measures its financial assets carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income with their fair values. In this context, the company determines its financial assets
whose shares are traded in the stock exchange by multiplying the closing price announced at BIST with
the ownership rate. In addition to this, when a price for an identical financial asset is not observable it
is estimated that the fair value of the related asset can not be reliably determined and the fair value of
the related financial assets shall be found by using another valuation technique, With in this context, the
Company measures the fair value of its fair value through other comprehensive income assets by
discounting the free cash flows of its financial assets by the weighed average cost of capital. The fair
vaule calculation of the Company’s financial assets is based on the Company management’s approved
projections and is sensitive to the estimations and assumptions that are used in the projected cash flows.
As a result, the estimates made here may not be an indication of the values that the Company can obtain
in a current market transaction, and the actual values may deviate significantly from the estimates
(Note 17).

2.5 Significant changes regarding the current period

The necessary actions have been taken by the Company management to minimize the possible effects
of COVID-19, which affects the whole world, on the Company's activities and financial position. The
effects of the COVID-19 epidemic on the activities of the Company are evaluated comprehensively,
saving measures and additional measures are taken to ensure effective expense and cash management to
reduce negative effects.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.5 Significant changes regarding the current period (Continued)

It could not be estimated how long the COVID-19 effect would last and how wide the effect would
spread both in Turkey and the World. As the severity and duration of the effects become clearer, it will
be possible to make a more specific and healthy evaluation for the medium and long term. In addition
to this, while preparing the financial statements of the Company as of 31 December 2020, the possible
effects of the COVID-19 outbreak were evaluated, the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation
of the financial statements were reviewed and the fair value determination studies have been updated
and reflected the differences for financial assets included in the year end financial statements as of
31 December 2020 (Note 17).

3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Details of transactions between the Company and other related parties as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
are disclosed below.

Trade payables 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 894,829 616,991

Total (Note 4) 894,829 616,991

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 1,013,832,183 826,040,560
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. 192,447,124 154,435,332

Total (Note 17) 1,206,279,307 980,475,892

Investments accounted for using equity accounting method

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

EİS 1,568,555,362 1,268,924,522
İntema 12,529,008 11,266,232

Total (Note 6) 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754
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3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Dividend income
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (Note 12) 20,709,004 24,580,209
EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Note 6) (*) 14,840,505 60,988,376
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. (Note 12) 1,648,840 9,561,737

Total 37,198,349 95,130,322

(*) Related amounts are eliminated from the financial statements in accordance with the accounting policies
applied for the investments accounted for using the equity method explained in Note 2.1 and are not
included in the statement of profit or loss.

General administrative expenses

Services obtained and rental expenses
1 January - 1 January -

Transactions with related parties 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 4,054,099 4,549,413
Eczacıbaşı Bilişim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 16,989 16,988
EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve  
   Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 14,925 12,771
Eczacıbaşı Spor Kulübü  - 170,000

Total (Note 11) 4,086,013 4,749,172

(**) Contains Companys’ legal, financial, corporate identity, budgeting, auditing and human resources services
received from Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.. These expenses are billed back to Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 
accordingly to the time spent for the relevant service.

Finance expenses

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Interest expenses from leasing payables (***) 4,564 6,111

Total (Note 14) 4,564 6,111

(***) The interest expense related to the debts arising from the leasing transactions of the Company from EİS 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.  
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3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Benefits paid to management

There is no long-term benefit of key management for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. Short-
term benefit of key management for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are stated below:

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Salaries and other benefits (****) 282,000 261,000

282,000 261,000

(****) It consists of the amount paid to the independent board members of the company.

4. TRADE PAYABLES

Short-term trade payables
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Trade payables due to related parties (Note 3) 894,829 616,991
Trade payables due to other parties 890 301

Total 895,719 617,292

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Short-term other receivables
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Deposits and guarantees given (*) 22,519,750 -
Receivables from tax office 246,636 246,636

Total 22,766,386 246,636

(*) As of 31 December 2020, the deposits and guarantees given amounting to TL 22,519,750 consist of cash
guarantees given to the intermediary institution for financial investment transactions.
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6. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Investments accounted for using equity method 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754

Total (Note 3) 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754

As of 31 December 2020, Company’s shares in its associates, EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş, and İntema İnşaat ve Tesis Malzemeleri A,Ş, and E-Kart Elektronik Kart 
Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. are equal to 29.69% and 46.21% and 31.01% respectively (31 December 2019: 
29.67%, 46.21%, and 31.01% respectively). The carrying value of of EIS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş and İntema İnşaat Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş., determined in accordance 
with equity method, as of 31 December 2020 is TL 1,568,555,362 and TL 12,529,008 respectively (31
December 2019: TL 1,268,924,522 and TL 11,266,232 for EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş. and İntema İnşaat ve Tesis Malzemeleri A,Ş. respectively.). 

Movements of investments in associates through the period are as follows:

2020 2019

Opening 1 January 1,280,190,754 1,186,031,630

Company’s share in the associate’s profit (Note 13) 96,912,943 48,142,289
Eleminated dividend payments of associates (-) (14,840,505) (60,988,376)
Share purchase effect during the period 1,326,200 -
Effect of changes in fair value of financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income 217,233,142 95,249,194
Deduction of previous year's participation losses with

capital increase (Note 13) (*) - (8,810,239)
Effect of capital increase (*) - 20,210,256
Effect of other changes recognized in comprehensive income 261,836 356,000

Closing 31 December 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754

(*) Related amounts are due to capital increase to subsidiary of the Company, İntema İnşaat and Tesisat Malz. 
Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş.. 
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7. PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term prepaid expenses
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Prepaid expenses for the following months 776 -

Total 776 -

Long-term prepaid expenses
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Prepaid expenses for the following years 62,387 29,518

Total 62,387 29,518

8. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) The company does not have any blocked accounts as of 31 December 2020.
(31 December 2019: None).

b) As of 31 December 2020, the Company has letters of guarantee given amounting to TL 30,000
(31 December 2019: TL 30,000)

c) As of 31 December 2020 the Company has no lawsuits againts the Company (31 December 2019:
None).

9. OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Other non-current assets

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Deferred VAT 8,657,642 7,885,315

Total 8,657,642 7,885,315

Other short-term liabilities
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Taxes and funds payable 83,057 110,913

Total 83,057 110,913
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10. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES VE OTHER EQUITY ITEMS LERİ 

a) Paid in capital

The paid-in capital of the Company is TL 105,000,000 (31 December 2019: TL 105,000,000) divided
by 105,000,000 shares each with a nominal value of TL 1 (31 December 2019: TL 1).

The Company has no preferred stock as of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: None).

The Company’s registered share capital ceiling is TL 500,000,000 (31 December 2019: TL 500,000,000).
The registered capital ceiling permission is effective until 2022.

The shareholders and their shareholding percentages as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows
with the historical amounts:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Total Share (%) Total Share (%)

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 85,653,274 81.57 85,653,274 81.57
Other (Listed) 19,346,726 18.43 19,346,726 18.43

Capital 105,000,000 105,000,000 100.00

Adjustment to share capital 105,173,533 105,173,533

Adjusted capital 210,173,533 210,173,533

Adjustment to share capital represents the difference between the cash contributions adjusted for
inflation and the cash contributions prior to adjustment for inflation.

The profits accumulated under legal books that do not qualify for the below clause, can be distributed.

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (‘TCC’), The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory
profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-
in/authorized share capital, The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all
cash distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in/authorized share capital, Under the TCC, the legal
reserves can only be used to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed
50% of paid-in/authorized share capital.

b) Restricted reserves

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 restricted reserves appropriated from profit is as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Legal reserves 21,141,540 21,141,540
Gain on sale of real estate fund 13,593,750 13,593,750
Gain on sale of shares of associates 887,495 887,495

Total 35,622,785 35,622,785
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10. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES VE OTHER EQUITY ITEMS LERİ (Continued) 

Profit distribution:

In accordance with the decision taken on 9 April 2020, it has been decided to pay dividends amounting
to 50,001,000 with an equivalent of TL 0,40477 per each share. Payments have been completed on
16 April 2020 (During the period ended at 31 December 2018, in accordance with the decision taken on
11 April 2019 it has been decided to pay dividend amounting to TL 78,750,000, with an equivalent of
TL 0,6375 per each share and dividends were paid out on 24 May 2019).

11. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General administrative expenses

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Services received from related parties (Note 3) 4,086,013 4,749,172
Outsourced service expenses 143,324 409,011
Other 663,985 382,575

4,893,322 5,540,758

12. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Other operating income
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Foreign exchange gains 40,497,729 9,994,216
Dividend income (Note 3) 22,357,844 34,141,946
Bank interest income 2,211,784 5,491,086
Other 120,949 -

65,188,306 49,627,248

Other operating expense (-)
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Foreign exchange losses 16,489,556 6,175,234
Other 12,781 291,800

16,502,337 6,467,034
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13. SHARES INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED BY EQUITY METHOD OF PROFITS /
LOSSES)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Shares from the profits of investments accounted
using the equity method (Note 6) 96,912,943 39,332,050

96,912,943 39,332,050

14. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Interest expenses from leasing payables (Note 3) 4,564 6,111

4,564 6,111

15. TAXATION

The Company is subject to Turkish corporate taxes, Provision is made in the accompanying financial
statements for the estimated charge based on the Company’s results for the years and periods, Turkish
tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax return.

Corporate Tax

The corporate tax rate to be accrued over the taxable corporate income is based on the tax base remaining
after the addition of non-deductible expenses from the tax base in determining the commercial income
and deducting the tax-exempt earnings, non-taxable income and other discounts (if any, previous year
losses and investment discounts used if preferred). is calculated.

1 January 2006 entered into force with effect from the date of 21 June 2006 and 5520, Income Tax Law
of the 5th of Article (1) paragraph (d) according to the provisions in Turkey established securities
portfolio of investment funds and partnerships Business earnings are exempt from corporate tax. The
mentioned corporate tax exemption is also valid in terms of temporary tax application. No further tax is
paid if the profit is not distributed.

In accordance with the regulation numbered 7061, published in Official Gazette on 5 December 2017,’
Law on the Amendment of Some Tax Acts and Some Other Laws’, corporate tax rate for the years 2018,
2019 and 2020 has increased from 20% to 22%, Therefore, deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
31 December 2019 are calculated with 22% tax rate for the temporary differences which will be realized
in 2019 and 2020, and with 20% tax for those which will be realized after 2021 and onwards, however
since the effect of change in tax rate on financial statements is immaterial, calculated amount is not
accounted in financial statements.
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15. TAXATION (Continued)

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis, Advance corporate income tax rate applied
in 2019 is 22% (2019: 22%), Losses can be carried forward for offset against future taxable income for
up to 5 years, However, losses cannot be carried back for offset against profits from previous periods.

Furthermore, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments, Companies
file their tax returns between 1 - 30 April following the close of the accounting year to which they relate.
Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and may
revise assessments within five years.

Withholding taxation

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds
surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are Turkish
residents and Turkish branches of foreign companies, Income withholding tax applied in between
24 April 2003 - 22 July 2006 is 10% and commencing from 22 July 2006, this rate has been changed to
15% upon the Council of Ministers’ Resolution No: 2006/10731, Undistributed dividends incorporated
in share capital are not subject to income withholding tax.

Withholding tax at the rate of 19.8% is still applied to investment allowances relating to investment
incentive certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003, Subsequent to this date, the investments without
investment incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.

Corporate Tax Law is changed with Law No, 5520 dated 13 June 2006, and most of the articles of
mentioned law have become effective as of 1 January 2006. Accordingly, corporate tax rate in Turkey is
22% for 2020 (2019: 22%). Corporation tax is payable on the total income of the Company after adjusting
for certain disallowable expenses, corporate income tax exemptions (participation exemption, investment
incentive allowance, etc.) and corporate income tax deductions (like research and development
expenditures deduction). No further tax is payable unless the profit is distributed except withholding tax at
the rate of 19.8% on the investment incentive allowance utilized within the scope of the Income Tax Law
Transitional Article 61.

The taxes distribution on the consolidated statement of financial position for the periods
1 January - 31 December 2020 and 2019 are summarized below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current period corporate tax liability (-) (4,717,304) (4,317,422)
Prepaid taxes 6,229,066 3,680,554

Current period income tax asset/(liability) 1,511,762 (636,868)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current period corporate tax (-) (4,717,304) (4,317,422)
Deferred income tax (41) 577

Total tax expense (4,717,345) (4,316,845)
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15. TAXATION (Continued)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Profit before tax from continuing oprations 140,701,026 76,945,395

Theoretical tax expense generated by the current tax rate (-) (30,954,226) (16,927,987)
Shares of associates accounted for using

equity accounting method 21,320,847 10,284,337
Tax-exempt dividend income 4,918,726 7,511,228
Tax-exempt gain on subsidiary - (3,929,014)
Other (2,692) (1,255,409)

Total tax expense (4,717,345) (4,316,845)

Deferred tax

The Company recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising
between the financial statements prepared in accordance with TAS/TFRS and the tax financial statements,
Such temporary differences generally arise due to revenues and expenses being recognised in different
fiscal periods in accordance with tax regulations and TAS/TFRS, The tax rate used for deferred tax assets
and liabilities is 20% (31 December 2019 : 22%).

The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
accounted as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using the enacted tax rates is as follows:

Total temporary Deferred tax
differences assets/liabilities

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019

Temporary differences related to fair value through
other comprehensive

income assets (-) (*) (Note 17) (1,093,308,285) (867,504,870) (54,665,415) (43,375,244)
Adjustments regarding leasing transactions 2,679 2,623 536 577

Deferred tax liabilities (-) (54,664,879) (43,374,667)

(*) The Corporate Taxation Law numbered 5520 (‘KVK’), which was be implemented as at 1 January 2006, has amended
the old KVK application numbered 5422 on ‘Tax Exemption of Immovable and Subsidiary Sales Revenues’, Only 75%
of the profits arising from the sale of immovable properties (real estates) and participation shares, founding shares,
usufruct shares and preferential rights in the assets of the institutions for at least two full years are taxable exceptions,
As the Company management expects to hold the profit that would be earned from related financial inestments under
equity at least for 2 years, begining from 1 January 2006, the taxation rate used in deferred tax rate is determined as
5% in the deferred tax calculaiton, As the related temporary differences are accounted under equity, related deferred
tax liability is also net-off from financial assets fair value fund under the equity.
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15. TAXATION (Continued)

The movement of deferred income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2019

Opening - 1 January (43,374,667) (39,945,053)

Recognized under statement of comprehensive income (11,290,171) (3,430,191)
Recognized under statement of other

comprehensive (expenses)/income (41) 577

Closing - 31 December (54,664,879) (43,374,667)

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

1 January - 1 January -
Earnings per share 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Average number of
shares for period 105,000,000 105,000,000

Net profit from continuing operations
attributable to parent Company’s shareholders 135,983,681 72,628,550

Earning per share from continuing operations 1.30 0.69

Other comprehensive income of
parent company shareholders’ 567,991,903 296,843,988

Earnings per share from continuing operating activities
- thousand ordinary shares (TL) 5.41 2.83

17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Long-term financial investments 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Financial assets measured at fair value
through comprehensive income 1,206,279,307 980,475,892

Total 1,206,279,307 980,475,892
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Share 31 December Share 31 December
Non-public financial investments (%) 2020 (%) 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (*) 11.54 1,013,832,183 11.54 826,040,560
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. 10.29 192,447,124 10.29 154,435,332

Total 1,206,279,307 980,475,892

(*) The company has determined a fair value by using valuation techniques for its financial assets that are not
traded in an active market. These valuation techniques include based on current transactions in line with
market conditions or other essentially similar investment instruments and discounted cash flow analysis
taking into account the conditions specific to the invested company. Changes in fair values are accounted
for in the "Gain from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income" account from
equity items. In fair value determination of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., the methods shown below are used; 

i) Rent income; discounted cash flows (Level 3).
ii) Real estates; current transaction cost, arm’s length price and expertise values (Level 2 and 3).
iii) Net asset values of remaining assets and liabilities in cash (Level 3).
iv) The multiplication of ownership interest rates of Eczacıbaşı Holding with the fair values of all 

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

The methods used in fair value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. are as follows: 

Fair Value Measurement Methods Code

Market price (II)
Discounted cash flows (III)
Current transaction price (IV)
Net asset value (V)
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Eczacıbaşı Holding 

Proportion of Fair value
power held by measurement

Eczacıbaşı Holding (%) (*) method

Entity Name 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 100.00 100.00 (I) (I) (I) (I)
EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Fin. Yat. San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 74.84 74.82 (I) (I) (I) (I)
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malz. Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 77.38 77.38 (III) (II) 3. sıra 1. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 98.10 98.10 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Esan Eczacıbaşı Endüstriyel Hammaddeler San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 99.66 99.69 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Vitra Karo San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 92.79 92.79 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Tüketim Ürünleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 100.00 100.00 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
EİP Eczacıbaşı İlaç Pazarlama A.Ş. 74.84 74.82 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 44.23 44.23 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
ESİ Eczacıbaşı Sigorta Acenteliği A.Ş. 4.92 4.92 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Momentum Teknoloji Yatırımları A.Ş  100.00 100.00 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Sağlık Hizmetleri A.Ş. (***) - 88.48 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Gayrimenkul Geliştirme ve Yatırım A.Ş. 74.92 74.92 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç Ticaret A.Ş. 74.85 74.83 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 81.57 81.57 (V) (V) 2. sıra 2. sıra 
Kanyon Yönetim İşletim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 50.00 50.00 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Toplu Konut Holding A.Ş. 27.00 27.00 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Ekom Eczacıbaşı Dış Ticaret A.Ş. 89.74 89.73 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı-Monrol Nükleer Ürünler San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 60.62 62.85 (III) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Villeroy & Boch Fliesen GmbH 90.67 90.66 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Vitra Fliesen GmbH & Co. KG 92.79 92.79 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Tasfiye Halinde Eczacıbaşı-Baxter Hast. Ür. San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 37.42 37.41 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Bilişim San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 96.62 96.62 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Vitra Plitka 92.79 92.79 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 

(*) Proportion of ownership interest represents the effective shareholding of Eczacıbaşı Holding directly 
through the shares held in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and indirectly by these companies.

(**) The capital of Eczacıbaşı Holding was increased free of charge from TL 213 million to TL 852 million on 
22 May 2020, by covering the entire increase from internal resources. In this context, the share ratio of our
company in Eczacıbaşı Holding remained the same and the number of shares increased from 24,580,209 to 
98,320,836.

(***) The company has been sold at 2 March 2020.
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(I) In the fair value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding, for the stand-alone fair value of EİS 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., the effect of the mutual 
subsidiary with Eczacıbaşı Holding has been taken into consideration, In the related stand-alone 
fair value determination;

i) Kanyon Shopping Mall and Office Building; discounted cash flows of rent incomes
(Level 3),

ii) Financial assets; current transaction cost (Level 2) and current market prices (Level 1),
iii) Real estates; current transaction cost, arm’s length price and expertise values (Level 2 and 3),
iv) Net asset value of remaining assets in cash (Level 2) and liabilities in cash (Level 3),

In this context, the fair value has been calculated as TL 2,378,814,000 as of 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: TL 2,215,724,000). As of 31 December 2020, market/stock value of EİS 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. amounts to TL 5,112,040,000 
(31 December 2019: TL 2,542,315,000).

(II) The securities measured at market values are valued by the strike price as of 31 December 2019
in Borsa Istanbul (‘BIST’), As of year-end, there are no financial instruments listed in a stock
exchange other than BIST.

(III) The discount rates used in discounted cash-flow method are determined for each entity separately
taking into consideration the following factors:

i) The countries in which each entity is located and the risk premiums of these countries,
ii) The market risk premiums for each entity and
iii) The industry risk premiums for the sectors in which each entity operates,

Comparable risk premiums (in line with observable market data) are used in the determination of
discount rates.

For the calculation of discount rates used for companies valuated with discounted cash flow
method cost of equity and cost of capital have been evaluated considering to risk free return rate
and risk premiums, Accordingly weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC’) rates are calculated
with regards to sustainable debt to equity ratios of each industry of related company, As of 31
December 2019, if WACC would be 100 base point higher/lower, fair value of asset held for sale
would be thousand TL 379,239 lower/thousand TL 465,665 higher.

In this context, the discount rates used for companies with functional currency TL are changed
between 16.6% - 18% (31 December 2019: 15% - 18%) while the discount rate used for
companies with functional currency USD is none (31 December 2019: 9.5%), EUR is 7.4% (31
December 2019: 6.9%), and GBP is 7.5% (31 December 2019: 7.2%).

(IV) Current transaction price consists of the financial instruments of which fair values are measured
by comparable costs of current transactions as of the statement of financial position date.
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(V,VI) The fair values of these companies are determined by net asset values and net book values, the
net asset value is calculated by deducting liabilities from monetary assets, whereas net book
values are calculated by their cost values.

(VII) In the discounted cash flow method used within the scope of the valuation, the long-term
growth rate for the Turkish Lira was used as 5%. If this rate was 50 basis points higher/lower,
the amounts were TL 101,995 and TL 93,648 (31 December 2019: TL 65,592 and TL 60,265)
respectively.

The fair value of each company calculated according to the methods mentioned above is multiplied by
the effective partnership ratio of Eczacıbaşı Holding and the total fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding has 
been found, and the calculation detail of the amount included in the Company's financial statements as
of 31 December is summarized in the table below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Total fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (*) 9,947,927,477 8,105,277,900
Total share of the Company within the total fair value
  of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 1,147,991,251 935,349,412
The effect of mutual subsidiary 119,298,978 97,201,288

Fair value before liquidity discount 1,267,290,229 1,032,550,700

Miniority discount (-) (253,458,046) (206,510,140)

Fair value of the Company in consolidated financials 1,013,832,183 826,040,560

(*) Reflects the amount multiplied with the total proportion of ownership interests.

(**) As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 the direct capital share of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 
within Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. is 11.54%. 
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

As presented in the table above, TL 9,947,927,477 (31 December 2019: TL 8,105,277,900) of fair value
before minority discount is calculated by using the fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding A,Ş, which amounts 
to TL 1,147,991,251 (31 December 2019: TL 935,349,412) which is multiplied by 11.54%
(31 December 2019: 11.54%), the share participation of Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A,Ş in Eczacıbaşı 
Holding A,Ş, and the result equals to TL 119,298,978 (31 December 2019: TL 97,201,288) is added to 
TL 1,267,290,229 (31 December 2019: TL 1,032,550,700), which is calculated as the effect of reciprocal
shares between Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A,Ş, and Eczacıbaşı Holding A,Ş is discounted 
from the total amount and fair value of (31 December 2019: TL 826,040,560) is reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. By deducting 20% minority discount from this amount, the fair value
of TL 1,013,832,183 in the financial statements has been obtained.

As of 31 December 2020, the effect of a change of 100 basis points in the minority discount applied for
financial investments whose fair value is determined by the discounted cash flow method is TL
12,672,899 (31 December 2019: TL 10,325,502).

18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in
debt and equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

(a) Credit risk

Most of the the Company’s credit risk arises from the trade receivables, marketable securities and time
deposits in the banks. The bank deposits got off less than three months, Marketable securities comprise
the government bonds those are issued by the Turkish Republic Prime Ministry Undersecretariat for the
Treasury.
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risks exposed by types of financial instruments

Receivables
Trade Receivables Other Receivables

Financial Cash and cash
31 December 2020 Related party Other Related party Other instruments (*) equivalent

Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D) - - - 22,766,386 1,206,279,307 83,041,369

- Collateralized or secured with guarantees part of maximum credit risk - - - - - -

A. Neither past due nor impaired net book value - - - 22,766,386 1,206,279,307 83,041,369

B. Past due but not impaired net book value - - - - - -

C. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - - -

- Past due (gross amount) - - - - - -

- Impairment (-) - - - - - -
D. Off balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - -

(*) As of 31 December 2020, all related financial instruments amounting to TL 1,206,279,307 consist of financial assets whose fair value difference is reflected to other comprehensive income of the
related parties of the Company.

In determining the above amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, such as collateral received, are not considered. The Company's financial assets exposed
to credit risk do not have any impaired assets. In addition, the Company does not have assets that involve risks other than those of the non-statement of financial
position and have not been impaired.
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Receivables
Trade Receivables Other Receivables

Financial Cash and cash
31 December 2019 Related party Other Related party Other instruments (*) equivalent

Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D) - - - 246,636 980,475,892 105,678,582

- Collateralized or secured with guarantees part of maximum credit risk - - - - - -

A. Neither past due nor impaired net book value - - - 246,636 980,475,892 105,678,582

B. Past due but not impaired net book value - - - - - -

C. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - - -

- Past due (gross amount) - - - - - -

- Impairment (-) - - - - - -
D. Off balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - -

(*) As of 31 December 2019, all related financial instruments amounting to TL 980,475,892 consist of financial assets of which the fair value difference of the Company's related parties is
reflected to other comprehensive income.

In determining the above amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, such as collateral received, are not considered. The Company's financial assets exposed
to credit risk do not have any impaired assets. In addition, the Company does not have assets that involve risks other than those of the non-statement of financial
position and have not been impaired.
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The Company's management has tried to manage the credit risk of receivables according to customer-
specific credit risk analysis through such methods as advances obtained from customer or work with
letter of credit. The Company protects itself from any dispute by analysing the reliability of their
customers, putting required sales terms to sales contracts. Furthermore, the Company management
follows the delays in collections from its customers by analysing aging analyses and takes precautions
to such kind of delays.

Trade receivables are spread out to various sectors and geographical clients, The Company reviews
customers’ collection risk and ensure the receivable if needed.

b) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the inability of the Company to match the net funding requirements with sufficient
liquidity, A decrease in funding sources mainly due to market instability or a decrease in credit risk
results in liquidity risk, The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and
other liquid assets in order to fund the current and prospective debt requirements.

The distribution of expiration of the financial liabilities as of 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 according to their contract dates is as follows:

31 December 2020
Contractual Less Between Between More

cash flow than 3 3-12 1-5 than 5
Book Total months months years years

Maturities of contractual terms Value (I+II+III+IV) (I) (II) (III) (IV)

Trade payables 895,719 895,719 895,719 - - -
Lease liabilities 17,563 17,563 4,094 13,469 - -

Total liabilities 913,282 913,282 899,813 13,469 - -

31 December 2019

Contractual Less Between Between More
cash flow than 3 3-12 1-5 than 5

Book Total months months years years
Maturities of contractual terms Value (I+II+III+IV) (I) (II) (III) (IV)

Trade payables 617,292 617,292 617,292 - - -
Lease liabilities 27,873 27,873 2,943 9,682 15,248 -

Total liabilities 645,165 645,165 620,235 9,682 15,248 -
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

c) Market Risk

i) Currency risk

In the case of owning of foreign currency assets, liabilities and non-balance sheet liabilities, the risk that
is exposed to resulting from the currency movements is defined as the foreign exchange risk.

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 the monetary assets and liabilities of foreign currency are as follows:

31 December 2020 Functional Curreny (TL) USD EUR

Monetary financial assets 82,722,732 11,219,937 40,274

Other receivables 22,519,750 - 2,500,000

Total Assets 105,242,482 11,219,937 2,540,274

Total Liabilities - - -

Net foreign currency position 105,242,482 11,219,937 2,540,274

Functional
31 December 2019 Curreny (TL) USD EUR

Monetary financial assets 93,063,853 15,666,788 -

Total Assets 93,063,853 15,666,788 -

Total Liabilities - - -

Net foreign currency position 93,063,853 15,666,788 -
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

31 December 2020
Profit/Loss Equity

Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency

10% change in USD against TL:

USD net asset/liabilitiy 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 8,235,995 (8,235,995)
Hedge Positions (-) - - - -

USD net effect 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 8,235,995 (8,235,995)

10% change in EUR against TL:

EUR net asset/liabilitiy 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 2,288,253 (2,288,253)
Hedge Positions (-) - - - -

EUR net effect 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 2,288,253 (2,288,253)

Total 10,524,248 (10,524,248) 10,524,248 (10,524,248)

31 December 2019
Profit/Loss Equity

Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency

10% change in USD against TL:

USD net asset/liabilitiy 9,306,385 (9,306,385) 9,306,385 (9,306,385)
Hedge Positions (-) - - - -

USD net effect 9,306,385 (9,306,385) 9,306,385 (9,306,385)

Total 9,306,385 (9,306,385) 9,306,385 (9,306,385)

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, the exchange rates used in the calculation of TL equivalents of
foreign currency assets and liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

USD 7.3405 5.9402
EUR 9.0079 6.6506
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

c) Market Risk (Continued)

ii) Interest risk

The Company management uses its interest-bearing assets in short-term investment instruments within
the framework of the principle of managing it with natural measures by balancing the maturities of
interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

As of 31 December 2020, there are no financial assets exposed to interest rate risk other than time
deposits in the financial statement of the Company. In addition to this, the Company is exposed to
interest rate risk due to change in weighted average cost of capital included in free cash flow models
used in valuation of equity based financial investments at Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. classified as financial 
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company presents the possible
expected effects of the changes in interest rates or in components of interest in Note 19. In addition to
these, as the Company does not have a financial assets or liabilities with variable interest rate and the
effect of the possible repricing would have not material effect on carrying value of the time deposits,
the Company has not presented sensitivity analyze on time deposits.

The interest rate applied to the financial assets as of the 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as
follows:

Assets 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
TL (%) TL (%)

Time deposits - 10.25

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
USD (%) USD (%)

Time deposits 2.50 2.25

Interest rate types of the Company’s financial instruments as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 are
presented below.

Financial instruments with fixed interest 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Time deposits 82,371,270 101,800,250

iii) Price risk

The Company is not subject to price risk as there is no equity investment that are classified under
financial assets measured on fair value through profit and loss (31 December 2019: None).
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19. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Level classifications of financial assets and liabilities given at their fair values:

Finansal varlıkların ve yükümlülüklerin gerçeğe uygun değeri aşağıdaki gibi belirlenir: 

 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices),
 Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs),

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are reflected to the financial statements
at their fair values at each balance sheet date, The following table provides information on how to
determine the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities:

31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair value through other comprehensive
income assets (*) (**) - 355,120,717 851,158,590

- 355,120,717 851,158,590

31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair value through other comprehensive
income assets (*) (**) 14,196,107 332,086,372 634,193,413

14,196,107 332,086,372 634,193,413

(*) The detailed information required for Levels 2 and 3 is given in Note 19.

(**) The detailed information on methods used in the determination of fair value is given in Note 17.

As of 31 December 2020, the fair value of financial assets whose fair value difference is reflected in
other comprehensive income is TL 1,206,279,307 (31 December 2019: TL 980,475,892).

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Opening
634,193,413 611,488,049

Total income recognized under other comprehensive income 217,130,476 35,142,213
Classification changes within the period (-) (165,299) (12,436,849)

Closing 851,158,590 634,193,413
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20. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash in banks 83,041,369 105,678,582
Demand deposits 670,099 3,878,332
Term deposits with a maturity of less than three months (*) 82,371,270 101,800,250

Total 83,041,369 105,678,582

(*) As of 31 December 2020, the maturity of time deposits is less than 1 month and the average interest rates
applied are 2.50% for USD deposits (31 December 2019: for time deposits with maturities less than
1 month, the average interest rates applied are 10.25% for TL deposits, 2.25% for USD deposits.).

As of 31 December 2020, and 2019 cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statements
of cash flows are presented below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 83,041,369 105,678,582
Rediscount (-) (157,670) (117,250)

Total 82,883,699 105,561,332

21. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. held on 20 January 2021, 
it was decided to distribute a dividend amounting to TL 130,545,961 (TL 15,065,009 per the Company's
share) for the year 2020, and this amount was paid on 21 January 2021 to the Company.

…………………..
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